
AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING

CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF MAUMELLE

APRIL 18, 2016

6: 00 PM

CITY HALL

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The City of Maumelle welcomes people of diverse cultures and beliefs.  Any religious
viewpoint expressed during invocation, or at any other time during the meeting,
reflects only the personal opinion of the speaker. It is not intended to proselytize,
advance, or disparage any religious belief.

3. SPECIAL GUESTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

A.  Safe Digging Proclamation

B.  Quorum Court Report— Justice of the Peace Paul Elliott

C.  Assistant Attorney General— Bilenda Harris-Ritter

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES– April 41h REGULAR MEETING

5. PUBLIC COMMENT

During Public Comment,  issues NOT on the agenda may be addressed.    Public

comments concerning items on the agenda will be allowed when that item is
discussed by the Council.   Anyone wishing to make a comment must fill out the
provided form and present it to the City Clerk.  In the interest of time comments will

be limited to three ( 3) minutes.  This privilege may be revoked by the Mayor in
the case of inappropriate language or comments.  Any public member shall first
state his or her name and address, followed by a concise statement of the person's
position or concern.  All remarks shall be addressed to the Mayor or the Council

as a whole, not to any particular member of the Council. No person other than the
Council members and the person having the floor shall be permitted to enter into any
discussions without permission of the Mayor.

6.  FINANCIAL STATEMENT REVIEW (second meeting of each month)

7. PROCEDURAL MOTION

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

A.  First Reading Ordinance 901 Amending Chapter 62, Solid Waste Mayor Watson

With no objections, Mayor Watson may call for the first reading of the ordinance amending Chapter 62,
Solid Waste, of the Maumelle City Code. NO ACTION IS REQUIRED.



B.  Second Reading Ordinance 904 Accepting Dedication of Streets & Drainage Mayor Watson

With no objections, Mayor Watson may call for the second reading of the ordinance accepting and
confirming the dedication of a portion of River Pointe Drive. NO ACTION IS REQUIRED.

C.  Second Reading Ordinance 905 Accepting Dedication of Streets & Drainage Mayor Watson

With no objections, Mayor Watson may call for the second reading of the ordinance accepting and
confirming the dedication of certain streets and drainage associated with The Villa at River Pointe Drive.
NO ACTION IS REQUIRED.

D.  Second Reading Ordinance 906 Regarding a Franchise Agreement with Ritter Communications
Mayor Watson

With no objections, Mayor Watson may call for the second reading of the ordinance approving a
franchise agreement with Ritter Communications. NO ACTION IS REQUIRED.

9. NEW BUSINESS

A.  Tree Board Appointment—Genoveva Gilbert

B.  Charter School Board Appointment—Don Henderson

C.  Civil Service Commission Appointment— Billy Herrington

D.  Resolution 2016- 15 Authorizing an Escrow Agreement Mayor Watson

With no objections, Mayor Watson may call for the reading of the resolution authorizing the execution
of an escrow agreement to further the realization of the Counts Massie Extension. A MOTION IS IN

ORDER.

E.  Resolution 2016- 16 Amending the 2016 General Fund Budget Mayor Watson

With no objections, Mayor Watson may call for the reading of the resolution escrowing funds for an
agreement to further the realization of the Counts Massie Extension.  A MOTION IS IN ORDER.

F.  Resolution 2016- 17 Changing the Name of the Maumelle Diamond Center Alderman Lewis

With no objections, Mayor Watson may call for the reading of the resolution changing the name of the
Maumelle Diamond Center to the Burch Johnson Diamond Center.  A MOTION IS IN ORDER.

10. MAYOR' S COMMENTS

A.  Garden Oaks Alleyways Bid Opening— May 2, 2016

B.  Personnel Changes

11. PLANNING COMMISISON REPORT

A. Mayor Watson

12. ALDERMEN' S COMMENTS

13. CITY ATTORNEY' S COMMENTS

14. CITY CLERK' S COMMENTS



15. FYI

A.  Building Permits Report

B. National Historic Preservation Month Proclamation

C.  April Planning Commission Liaison—Alderman Anderson

16. ADJOURNMENT



V07National Safe Digging Month

WHEREAS, each year, the nation' s underground utility infrastructure is
jeopardized by unintentional damage by those who fail to call 811 to have
underground lines located prior to digging. Undesired consequences such as

service interruption, damage to the environment and personal injury and even
death are the potential results; and

WHEREAS, the Common Ground Alliance and its 1700 members promote
the national Call-Before-You-Dig number, 811, in an effort to reduce these
damages.  Designated by the FCC in 2005, 811 provides potential excavators and
homeowners a simple number to reach their local One Call Center to request
utility line locations at the intended dig site; and

WHEREAS, through education of safe digging practices, excavators and
homeowners can save time and money keeping our nation safe and connected by
making a simple call to 811 in advance of any digging project; waiting the
required amount of time; respecting the marked lines by maintaining visual
definition throughout the course of the excavation; and finally, digging with care
around the marks; and

WHEREAS, all parties agree that safe digging is a shared responsibility.
To know what' s below, call 811 before you dig.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, MAYOR MIKE WATSON, hereby proclaim
the month of April, 2016, as,

National Safe Digging Month

And encourage excavators and homeowners throughout the country to always call
811 before digging.  Safe digging is no accident.

So proclaimed the 18' h
Day of April, 2016.

OF

A*      cr

k Mayor Mike Watson

LLE, A j,A



MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING

CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF MAUMELLE

APRIL 4TH, 2016

6: 00 PM

CITY HALL

Mayor Watson called the meeting to order at 6: 00 p.m. with eight members present.

Mayor Watson gave the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES—MARCH 21s'  REGULAR MEETING

Alderman Scott motioned to approve the March 21St minutes. Alderman Saunders seconded the motioned and

it passed unanimously.

PROCEDURAL MOTION

Alderman Saunders moved to have all ordinances and resolutions read by title only.  Alderman Anderson
seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.

ORDINANCE 901 AMENDING CHAPTER 62, SOLID WASTE

With no objections, Mayor Watson called for the third reading of the ordinance amending Chapter 62, Solid
Waste, of the Maumelle, City Code. The City Clerk gave the reading.

Alderman Saunders stated there were a couple of issues that he was not happy with.  He stated he would like to
be able to put out items to be picked up the night before and not on the day of.

City Attorney Norris stated the practice has generally been to not enforce the night before requirement on
leaves.

Alderman Saunders stated he would like to see the term" brush" be exempt and other items be able to be put out

on the street the night before scheduled pick up.

Alderman Holt agreed with Alderman Saunders.

Alderman Scott motioned to defer the vote for one meeting. Alderman Kelley seconded the motion and it
passed unanimously.

ORDINANCE 902 AMENDING MAUMELLE LAND USE PLAN

With no objections, Mayor Watson called for the third reading of the ordinance amending the current Land Use
Plan to show that the land use on the area identified as " Area to be Rezoned to R1" with the description as

stated on the attached survey, a part of the N1/ 2 Section 29, T-4-N, R- 13- W Pulaski Country, Arkansas, dated
January 21, 2016 that was previously designated as COMM(Commercial) to SFD ( Single Family Detached) to
accommodate the anticipated use by the applicant. The City Clerk gave the reading.

1



Alderman Scott stated one of her constituents was concerned about the amount of traffic in that area and she

wanted their concern noted.

Mayor Watson noted this was a down-zoning and would likely generate less traffic.

Alderman Anderson motioned to accept Ordinance 902. Alderman Mosely seconded the motion and it passed
unanimously.

ORDINANCE 903 AMENDING MAUMELLE ZONING MAP

With no objections, Mayor Watson called for the second reading of the ordinance amending the current zoning
Map to show that the land use on the area identified as " Area to be Rezoned to R- 1" with the description as

stated on the attached survey, a part of the Nl/2 Section 29, T-4-N, R- 13- W Pulaski County, Arkansas, dated
January 21, 2016, that was previously designated as C- 1 to R- 1 to accommodate the anticipated use by the
applicant. The City Clerk gave the reading.

Alderman Anderson motioned to approve Ordinance 903. Alderman Saunders seconded the motion and it

passed unanimously.

Alderman Scott stated there was a Special Planning Commission meeting scheduled for April 14th, 2016 at 5: 30
pm.  Mayor Watson noted that the meeting was to hear the preliminary plat.

TREE BOARD APPOINTMENT

Ken Grunewald, of 123 Lake Valley Drive, introduced himself to the Council and briefly summarized his
interest in serving on the Tree Board.

Alderman Saunders stated he would love to see Mr. Grunewald or other members of the board come to a

Council meeting periodically to update the Council on their efforts.

Alderman Vaprersan motioned to appoint Ken Grunewald to the Tree Board. Alderman Holt seconded the

motion and it passed unanimously.

ORDINANCE 904 ACCEPTING DEDICATION OF STREETS & DRAINAGE

With no objections, Mayor Watson called for the first reading of the ordinance accepting and confirming the
dedication of a portion of River Pointe Drive.  The City Clerk gave the reading.

Mayor Watson stated that the dedication could have been done in 2012 when the preliminary plat was filed and
detailed the circumstances regarding the streets to be dedicated.  He noted the developer had given the City
funds to complete River Pointe Drive at a later date and that the other two streets were being accepted in the
normal manner.

ORDINANCE 905 ACCEPTING DEDICATION OF STREETS & DRAINAGE

With no objections, Mayor Watson called for the first reading of the ordinance accepting and confirming the
dedication of certain streets and drainage associated with The Villa at River Pointe Drive.  The City Clerk gave
the reading.

2



ORDINANCE 906 REGARDING A FRANCHISE AGREEMENT WITH RITTER

COMMUNICATIONS

With no objections, Mayor Watson called for the first reading of the ordinance approving a franchise agreement
with Ritter Communication. The City Clerk gave the reading.

John Strode, of 2400 Ritter Drive, introduced himself and gave an overview of Ritter Communications
development plans.

Alderman Vaprersan asked if he currently had the infrastructure set up or would he have to build in Maumelle.
Mr. Strode stated they currently have some, but there will need to be additional construction along Maumelle
Blvd.

Alderman Saunders brought up the possibility of poles. Mr. Strode stated that erecting poles was unlikely.

City Clerk Clausen stated Section 2 required all of their construction to be in compliance with Maumelle City
Code.

RESOLUTION 2016- 13 SUPPORTING A SAFER GRANT APPLICATION

With no objection, Mayor Watson called for the reading of the supporting the City' s application for a SAFER
grant.  The City Clerk gave the reading.

Chief Ezell detailed the grant conditions and stated that he would have to come back to the Council for approval
if we were awarded the grant.

Alderman Mosley asked Chief Ezell what the situation will be if the grant is awarded and the two years are up.
Chief Ezell stated that would depend on the Council and if revenues are available to continue their service.

Alderman Saunders asked if the Chief would be willing to give the new-hires a letter stating their employment
would not be guaranteed at the end of the grant period.  Chief Ezell stated he would. Alderman Saunders asked

if the grant covers the gear.  Chief Ezell stated it did not, but we should be able to cover that cost.

Alderman Vaprersan motioned approve Resolution 2016- 13. Alderman Anderson seconded the motion and it

passed with only Alderman Lewis voting no.

RESOLUTION 2016- 14 APPROVING THE DISPOSAL OF CITY SURPLUS PROPERTY

With no objections, Mayor Watson called for the reading of the resolution approving the disposal of a mini
excavator for the Public Works Department. The City Clerk gave the reading.

Alderman Scott motioned to approve Resolution 2016- 14. Alderman Vaprersan seconded the motion and it

passed unanimously.

ALDERMEN' S COMMENTS

Alderman Holt noted an issue with yard waste across the street from his home and that he would like to see the

issue addressed by City code.

3



Alderman Vaprersan commended the police officers that apprehended and made the arrest of the 4 dangerous
criminals from Chicago.

Alderman Scott stated they had their first sign ordinance committee meeting.  She noted these meetings are

open to the public.

ADJOURNMENT

Alderman Vaprersan motioned to adjourn the meeting. Alderman Saunders seconded the motion and it passed
unanimously by all in attendance.

Mayor Watson adjourned the meeting at 6: 54 pm.

MAYOR MICHAEL WATSON

CITY CLERK JOSHUA CLAUSEN

APPROVED

April 18, 2016

4



City of Maumelle
Financial Statement Summary

FOR THE MONTH ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

GENERAL FUND

Nonspendable 21, 682

Committed

Assigned 382,474

Unassigned 5, 005,252

Total Fund Balance 5, 409,408

STREET FUND

Restricted 3, 789,024

Assigned

Total Fund Balance 3, 789, 024

SANITATION FUND

Retained Earnings 2, 010,458



CITY OF MAUMELLE

GENERAL FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE MONTH ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

2016 2016 3 MONTH ACTUAL AT OVER/       ACTUAL AT OVER/

BUDGET BUDGET REV BUDGET 3/ 31/ 2016 UNDER) UNDER

Revenues:

State Turnback 257,445 257,445 64,361 55, 509 8,852) 73,553 18, 044)

County Millage Tax 1, 880,000 1, 880,000 470,000 150, 860 319, 140)       132, 750 18, 110

County Sales Tax 3,700,000 3, 700,000 925,000 939,893 14,893 929, 583 10,310

City Sales Tax 2, 300,000 2, 300,000 575,000 718,986 143, 986 581, 672 137, 314

Franchise Fee 1, 600,000 1, 600,000 400,000 403,436 3, 436 437,242 33,807)

Community Service Fees 725,000 725,000 181, 250 183, 881 2,631 183, 000 881

Late& Collection Fees 22, 000 22,000 5, 500 6,054 554 5, 116 937

Building Permits and Fees 180,000 180,000 45,000 28,502 16,498) 49,974 21, 472)

Business License Permits 19, 000 19,000 4,750 14,966 10,216 14,624 343

Parks and Recreation Fees 450,000 450,000 112,500 88,810 23, 690) 98,878 10,068)

Senior Wellness Center Fees 42,000 42,000 10,500 13,354 2, 854 13, 778 424)

Animal Control Fees 12, 000 12, 000 3,000 3,235 235 2, 895 340

Municipal Court 225,000 225,000 56,250 35,722 20, 528) 56,520 20,798)

Police Dept

Fire Dept 12, 000 12, 000 3,000 3, 000)      

Dispatch Services 26,000 26,000 6,500 6,500)      

Federal Grants 58,967 58,967 58,967

State Grants 9,075 9,075 55,433 46,358)

Private Grants 1, 614 1, 614 300 1, 314

Private Donations 100 100)

Investment Income 12, 000 12, 000 3,000 1, 006 1, 994)   803 203

Other Financing Sources 26,627 26,627)

Miscellaneous Income 12, 000 12, 000 3,000 1, 767)  4,767)  2,676 4,443)

Total Revenues 11, 474,445 11, 474,445 2, 868,611 2, 712, 103 156, 510)     2, 665,525 46, 578

Expenditures:

Administration 945,409 945,409 236,352 218, 146 18,206)       201, 555 16, 591

City Council 60,822 65,822 16,456 19, 105 2,650 14, 156 4, 949

City Attorney 110,638 110,928 27,732 24, 397 3,335) 30,027 5, 629)

Court 188,281 188,281 47,070 41, 581 5,489) 43,025 1, 445)

Police 2, 892,978 2, 910,444 727,611 706, 376 21, 235)       666,377 39, 999

Fire 2, 478,991 2,478,991 619,748 602, 914 16, 833)       549, 179 53, 735

Animal Control 355,878 356,962 89, 241 64, 103 25, 138) 62,233 1, 870

Public Works 702,874 702,874 175,719 138,609 37, 110)       126,457 12, 151

Parks 1, 577,200 1, 577,200 394,300 278, 999 115, 301)       266,556 12,443

Senior Services 338,918 341, 739 85,435 71, 212 14, 222) 71, 058 154

CED 203,941 208,952 52,238 50, 053 2, 185) 54,042 3, 989)

Planning& Zoning 143,506 143,611 35, 903 29,659 6, 244) 29,652 6

Code Enforcement 289,892 289,892 72,473 68, 953 3, 520) 67,997 955

City Services 1, 198,242 1, 198,242 299,561 289, 078 10, 483)       312,376 23,298)

Total Operating 11, 487,570 11, 519,347 2, 879,837 2,603, 184 276,653)     2,494,690 108,494

Capital Expenditures 519,600 588,582 147, 145 60, 882 86,263)       101, 941 41, 059)

Total Expenditures 12, 007,170 12, 107,929 3, 026,982 2, 664,066 362, 918)     2, 596,631 67,435

Excess( Deficiency) of
Revenues over Expenditures 532,725)    633,484)       ( 158, 371)   48, 038 206,407 68,894 20,856)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 5, 008,636 5,008,636 1, 252, 159 5,361, 370

Fund Balance, End of Year 4,475,911 4,375, 152 1, 093,788 5,409,408

Page 2



CITY OF MAUMELLE

GENERAL FUND- BALANCE SHEET

FOR THE MONTH ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash 5, 652, 610

Accounts Receivable, net 851, 883

Due From Other Funds 2, 118

Inventory- Court Drug Tests 226

Prepaid Expenses 19, 338

Total Current Assets 6,526, 176

TOTAL ASSETS 6,526, 176

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:

Payroll Liabilities 81, 382

Accounts Payable 2, 525

Other Liabilities 1, 032, 861

Total Liabilities 1, 116, 768

Fund Balance:

Nonspendable

Inventory 226

Due from agency fund 2, 118

Prepaid 19, 338

Restricted

Committed

Assigned to purchase orders 382,474

Unassigned 5, 005,252

Total Fund Balance 5, 409,408

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 6,526, 176

Page 3



CITY OF MAUMELLE

STREET FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE MONTH ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

2016 2016 3 MONTH ACTUAL AT OVER/     ACTUAL AT OVER/

BUDGET BUDGET REV BUDGET 3/31/ 2016 UNDER 3/31/ 2015 UNDER

Revenues:

State Turnback 816,959 816,959 204,240 204,052 188)      196,824 7, 227

Street Aid Program 330,000 330,000 82, 500 83,611 1, 111 81, 596 2, 015

County Millage Tax 560,000 560,000 140, 000 42, 227       ( 97,773)       38,497 3, 730

Street Sign Revenue 2, 000 2,000 500 84 416)  676 592)

Investment Income 19, 000 19,000 4,750 4,003 747) 3, 589 415

Appropriation from Fund Balance
Miscellaneous Income 582 582 582

Total Revenues 1, 727,959 1, 727,959 431, 990 334,558       ( 97,431)      321, 182 12, 795

Expenditures:

Personnel 666,677 666,677 166, 669 146, 119       ( 20, 551)      167,792       ( 21, 673)

Other Operating 417,931 417,931 104,483 38, 179       ( 66, 304)       66,720       ( 28,541)

Total Operating 1, 084,608 1, 084,608 271, 152 184, 297       ( 86, 855)      234,512       ( 50,215)

Capital Expenditures 660,500 660,500 165, 125 27,650      ( 137,475) 1, 192 26,458

Total Expenditures 1, 745, 108 1, 745, 108 436,277 211, 947      ( 224,330)      235,704       ( 23, 757)

Excess( Deficiency) of
Revenues over Expenditures 17, 149)       ( 17, 149)  4,287)      122, 611 126, 898 85,478 36,551

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 3, 369,722 3, 369,722 842,431 3, 666,412

Fund Balance, End of Year 3, 352,573 3, 352,573 838, 143 3, 789,024

Page 4



CITY OF MAUMELLE

STREET FUND- BALANCE SHEET

FOR THE MONTH ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash 3, 792,457

Accounts Receivable, net 121, 708

Total Current Assets 3, 914, 164

TOTAL ASSETS 3, 914, 164

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:

Payroll Liabilities 949

Accounts Payable

Deferred Revenue 124, 192

Total Liabilities 125, 141

Fund Balance:

Nonspendable

Restricted 3, 789,024

Committed

Assigned to:

Capital projects

Eliminate a projected budgetary deficit
Unassigned

Total Fund Balance 3,789,024

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 3,914, 164

Page 5



CITY OF MAUMELLE

SANITATION FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE MONTH ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

2016 2016 3 MONTH ACTUAL AT OVER/     ACTUAL AT OVER/

BUDGET BUDGET REV BUDGET 3/ 31/ 2016 UNDER 3/ 31/ 2015 UNDER

Revenues:

Sanitation Fees 1, 175,000 1, 175,000 293,750 296,745 2, 995 291, 373 5,372

Late and Collection Fees 30,000 30,000 7,500 6,507 993) 6,888 381)

Cart Rental 18,000 18,000 4,500 5,535 1, 035 4,716 819

Sales Tax 8 8 8

Transfer Station 30,000 30,000 7,500 7,307 193) 6, 584 723

Operating Transfer In 29,689 29,689)

Miscellaneous Income

Total Revenues 1, 253,000 1253 000 313,250 316, 102 2, 852 339,251 23, 149)

Expenditures:

Personnel 607,508 607,508 151, 877 139, 900       ( 11, 977)      151, 986 12, 086)

Other Operating 979,000 1, 232, 166 308, 041 42, 071      ( 265,970)       86, 171 44, 100)

Total Expenditures 1, 586,508 1, 839,674 459, 918 181, 971      ( 277, 948)     238, 157 56, 186)

Excess( Deficiency) of
Revenues over Expenditures 333,508) 586,674)     ( 146, 668)       134, 131 280,799 101, 094 33,037

Equity, Beginning of Year 1, 528,268 1, 528,268 382,067 1, 876, 329

Equity, End of Year 1, 194,760 941, 594 235, 399 2,010,458

Page 6



CITY OF MAUMELLE

SANITATION- BALANCE SHEET

FOR THE MONTH ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash 1, 217,392

Accounts Receivable, net 170,422

Total Current Assets 1, 387,814

Noncurrent assets:

Capital Assets 1, 792,456

Less Accumulated Depreciation 1, 123, 564)

Total Noncurrent Assets 668,892

TOTAL ASSETS 2, 056,707

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities:

Payroll Liabilities 3,512

Accounts Payable 1, 030

Sales Taxes Payable 27,224

Reserve for Compensated Absences 14,482

Total Current Liabilities 46,247

Nonurrent Liabilities:

Note Payable- First Security Bank

Total Liabilities 46,247

Equity:
Retained earnings 2, 010,458

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2, 056,707

Page 7



CITY OF MAUMELLE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1: Minimum fund balance policy for the general fund

Ordinance 438 states that the general fund shall maintain a level of fund balance equal to
20% of budgeted operating expenditures. Currently, this figure is $   2, 303,869

Note 2: Fund balance classifications

Effective with the January 31, 2011 financial statements, there are new fund balance classifications
for the General and Street funds. The new classifications and their definitions are as follows:

Nonspendable- fund balance that can' t be spent, such as inventory and prepaid items
Restricted- use of these funds is restricted by external sources, such as law or grant

requirements

Committed- use of these funds is restricted by formal action of the city council
Assigned- use of these funds is restricted by informal action of the city council
Unassigned- fund balance that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned

Page 8



GENERAL FUND BUDGET RESOLUTIONS PASSED IN 2016

2016-04 Upgrade Audio Visual Equipment in Council with GIF grant 5,000

2016-05 Replace 2013 Dodge Charger for police department 15, 137

2016- 12 Police 2015 GIF grant remaning funds 2, 288

22,425

STREET FUND BUDGET RESOLUTIONS PASSED IN 2016

SANITATION FUND BUDGET RESOLUTIONS PASSED IN 2016

Page 9



AN ORDINANCE OF CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAUMELLE,
COUNTY OF PULASKI, STATE OF ARKANSAS,

AN ORDINANCE TO BE ENTITLED:

ORDINANCE NO. 901

AMENDING CHAPTER 62, SOLID WASTE, OF THE MAUMELLE CITY CODE

WHEREAS, Chapter 62 of the Maumelle City Code governs the unlawful disposal of trash
and solid waste, among other things; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend Chapter 62 of the Maumelle City Code.

NOW,  THEREFORE,  BE IT ENACTED AND DECLARED BY THE CITY
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAUMELLE, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1. Chapter 62, Solid Waste; Article I, In General; Section 2, Unlawful disposal of trash

and solid waste, of the Maumelle City Code is hereby amended to read as follows

Sec. 62-2. - Unlawful disposal oftrash and solid waste.

a)      Prohibited. Pursuant to the authority of its power for the health, safety and welfare of the
citizens of the city, the city hereby designated and provided and prohibits the unlawful disposal of
trash, solid waste and other material as defined below, within the city limits. Unlawful disposal of
such solid waste and other material includes, but is not limited to:

1)      Placement in or upon any public or private highway or road, including any portion
of the right-of-way.

2)      Placement in or upon any private property into or upon which the public is admitted
by easement or license, or any private property.

3)      Placement in or upon any public park, or other public property, other than the
property designated or set aside for waste disposal by the governing board or body having
charge thereof.

b)      Definitions. For the purpose of this section, the following words and phrases shall have the
meanings respectively ascribed to them under this section:

4& y.-- Any publie way, generally of less width than a stfeet, used fef the publie tAilit-y pt" oses

and right of way and as an altemate seeondar-y or- emefgeney r-etAe for- vehiele and pedestfi—an
tr-&riie, g2ii situated-andrthe—rcur-vrvrtcrorrg side zrtier-vrlots.

Brush:       Solid waste consisting of leaves grass clippings, biodegradable garden
materials, vegetation, or tree, shrub,  1pant, or-and hedge clippingsor-evided4tat tmaks and limbs



Garbage: Solid waste consisting of putrescible animal, fruit, and vegetable waste

materials resulting from the handling, preparation, cooking and consumption of food, including
waste materials from markets, storage facilities, handling and sale of produce and other food
products.

Occupant: The person residing in a dwelling unit, specifically the head of such household.

Owner: The record title holder of real property.

Rubbish or trash: All putrescible and nonputrescible wastes in solid semisolid or liquid form,

including but not limited to yard or food waste glass metals plastics paper, paperboard and all
other solid semisolid and liquid wastes resulting from industrial commercial, agricultural,
community, and residential activities. '       at o' s

wood, exeelsior-, rubber-, plasties, yafd tfimmings, lea-ves and similar- materials;  neneembustible

fubbish (or-tfash) ineludes glass er-eeker-y, tin eans, aluminum eans, and like materials.

Vehicles: Any wheeled conveyance.

c)      Enforcement.

1)      It shall be unlawful for any person to place, deposit, discard, or otherwise cause to
be put, brush, garbage, rubbish, or any odwf type of waste, on any outside premises within
the city, whether public or private, in r-", '     " ht",

unhealthy eondifiens, except at such places as are and have been designated for the pickup
of such materials_ on the day in  •'hie eit, p ^ k-W oeeufs. The term " outside premises"
shall be construed to include streets, alleys, sidewalks, ditches, yards, lots, fields'-, streams,

exterior portion sop rtions ofbuildings and any other property located within the city limits.

2)      The code enforcement officer shall regularly inspect all outside premises to enforce
the provisions of this section. The code enforcement officer shall issue citations for
violations hereof.

3)      In the prosecution of this section the following presumptions shall apply:

a. If the condition resulting from the violation was found on premises owned
and/or occupied by the person to whom notice was given, then it shall be presumed
that said owner and/or occupant was responsible for said condition. If the person to

whom notice was given fails to remove or otherwise correct said condition without

notifying the code enforcement officer for the reason for his failure to do so within
ten days, then it shall be presumed that the said person notified was in fact

responsible for said conditions not being removed. The presumptions described
above are rebuttable by the person charged and must be rebutted by clear and
convincing evidence in order for the person so charged to be exonerated.

Page 2 of Ordinance 901



b. If the condition resulting from the violation was found on property whereon
multiple dwelling units exist and the party actually committing the violation cannot
with reasonable certainly be determined, then it shall be presumed that the owner
of the subject premises, upon being given notice, is the party responsible for
ensuring that the condition is removed from the premises.

d)      Unlawful to transport in uncovered vehicle. It shall be unlawful for any person engaged in
commercial or for-hire hauling to operate any truck or other vehicle within the limits of the city to
transport litter, trash, or garbage unless said vehicle is covered to prevent its contents from

blowing, dropping or falling off or otherwise departing from the vehicle. In addition, any person
operating his own truck or other vehicle to transport litter, trash or garbage shall take reasonable
steps to prevent its contents from blowing, dropping or falling off or otherwise departing from the
vehicle. Provided, no vehicle hauling predominately metallic material shall be required to be
covered if it is loaded in a manner which will prevent such material from falling or dropping from
the vehicle.

e)      Penalty. Any violator of this section shall upon conviction be punished by a fine of not
more than$ 500.00 plus court costs plus not less than$ 25. 00, nor more than $200.00 for each day

during any part of which the violation shall have continued to occur.

SECTION 2. ( Do not codify). Codification. It is the intention of the City Council of the City of
Maumelle that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made a part of the City Code

of the City of Maumelle, Arkansas, and that the Sections of this ordinance may be renumbered, re-
lettered and the word" Ordinance" may be changed to " Section," " Article," or such other word( s)

or phrase( s) in order to accomplish such intention.

SECTION 3. ( Do not codify). Repealer. All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict

herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict.

SECTION 4. ( Do not codify). Severability. If any clause, sentence, paragraph, section, or other
portion of this ordinance is found to be unconstitutional, invalid or inoperative by a court of
competent jurisdiction, such findings shall not affect the validity of the remainder of these sections,
nor shall any proceeding invalidating any portion of any section operate to affect any portion of
the remainder of said sections not specifically attacked in said proceeding.

APROVED this_ day of 2016.

By:
Michael Watson, Mayor

Page 3 of Ordinance 901



Attest:

City Clerk Joshua Clausen

Approved As To Legal Form:

Caleb Norris, City Attorney

SPONSORED BY:

Mayor Michael Watson

Mosley Saunders Kelley Anderson Lewis Scott Vaprersan Holt

Yes

No

Page 4 of Ordinance 901



AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAUMELLE,

COUNTY OF PULASKI, STATE OF ARKANSAS,

AN ORDINANCE TO BE ENTITLED:

ORDINANCE NO. 904

AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING AND CONFIRMING THE DEDICATION OF A

PORTION OF RIVER POINTE DRIVE AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES

WHEREAS, ARK. CODE ANN. § 14- 301- 102 requires the City of Maumelle (" City") to

pass ordinances accepting and confirming the dedication of public streets and drainage dedicated
to the City; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to accept dedication of certain streets and drainage
identified on the final plat of Lot I the Villa at River Pointe Drive dated November 5, 2014.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE

CITY OF MAUMELLE, ARKANSAS, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Pursuant to the authority and requirements of Ark. Code Ann. § 14- 301- 102, the

City of Maumelle hereby accepts dedication of the right of way, including the accompanying
storm water drainage, with the legal description of" ROW Dedication— River Pointe Drive" and

identified as River Pointe Drive on the Final Plat of Lot I the Villa at River Pointe Drive an

Addition to the City of Maumelle, Pulaski Co. Arkansas, 5 Nov 2014, all as more particularly
shown and described on the plat attached hereto as Exhibit A.

SECTION 2.  The City of Maumelle acknowledges that it received $41, 452.00 from The Villa at
River pointe Drive Land,  LLC,  as stated in the agreement attached hereto as Exhibit B.

Additionally, the City Council hereby ratifies that agreement.

SECTION 3. Repealer. All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are

hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict.

SECTION 4. Severability. If any clause, sentence, paragraph, section or other portion of this
ordinance is found to be unconstitutional,  invalid or inoperative by a court of competent
jurisdiction, such findings shall not affect the validity of the remainder of these sections, nor shall
any proceeding invalidating any portion of any section operate to affect any portion of the
remainder of said sections not specifically attacked in said proceeding.

Approved this, day of 2016.



By:
Michael Watson, Mayor

Attest:

City Clerk Joshua Clausen

Approved As To Legal Form:

Caleb Norris, City Attorney

SPONSORED BY:

Mayor Michael Watson

Mosley Saunders Kelley Anderson Lewis Scott Vaprersan Holt

Yes

No

Page 2 of Ordinance 904



I

L:\

2011\
2011-
004
Multi-
Family
Tract
for
Chris
C

Edward
Jaekson\
ALTA
of

Phase
1\

2011-
05I
Villas
final
Plat.
pro

11/

6/

2014
2:

30:

2WN

I

CRYSTAL
HAY
AMITION

RIVER20INTE
ADDITION

ZONED
PUD

N00e33'
50"
B

210.
10'    

INU
NOOes3'
SO"
s

31327
R-

api
F

F9IBL

OF
WAY

40'

2

LANES
ASPHALT

y       

GGDD

313.
2?' 

w
Axa
a

eurTER

a

e •

t®

a>           ' (  

3

I

N     

dQ

m

N

L+     

0N;

i

6

m

x ;

13

gJIF

13IIr

s

q

I

zi0.
O6'—      

a

afR

p

8

N

SrrArn

IAO
dD

AJ

Sgt

sad

f

N

f

d

e

a

np

s

s

zl.

OfS' 

E

I         

O

A

O

Mg

f

O

Al

O

1

0

I

x7

i

I

ts

2I0.
06'

103

WF
V9'-

WUM.
42-

rr7

f

r

W

E3

ZKJ

0

AP

A

A

7013
zl

6'     

Nps

m

32v

I

0

a

B

iZ

I     —

0

d302°
09'
36"
W

11787'       

ri

r

E5

LD

r

s

ar

s,   

far

ti .

s

f

fill

dI'
misl
ff

11

S

ypi

IP

gS

i.

Sd ..

g

Lp

f   $

g..$

nB

11g

R

i

51
T1"  

t=

4

fill

IA

v

9125$
1       -

PRB= 

U=

n  ..

A

l4"

9

all'
a

a~

8  

oil

x

lS

oxa '

x

a

4a

np

a

Cor

tj

dwg
by: 

JW

date._.

rev
s

one

in

chocked:
RON

Lot
IY

Mt
1 PoktePrim

Holloway
Engineering

c

date:
i1/

6/

2014

sm
mMtlonto
the

Co.

of_       

Surveying
6

Civil
Design, 
PLLC

F

scale: 
18

MOT®       

FuWW
W /

r

200
Casey
Opt

Forillmi
V&

At
Klvw
Polls
Dr+

ov
L.

A

Maumelle. 
Arkansas
72113

holi
wa

firmesbceiobsl.
net

tabbies'

m

M W



AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT ( the " Agreement"), made this lQ day of December, 2013 ( the
Execution Date'), by and between THE VILLA AT RIVER POINTE DRIVE LAND, LLC,

an Arkansas limited liability company ( hereinafter referred to as " Villa") and the CITY OF
MAUMELLE, ARKANSAS, an Arkansas municipality of the first class( the" City'), with Villa

and City being collectively referred to herein as the` parties;"

WHEREAS, Villa is currently constructing a multi-family residential living project at
8000 River Pointe Drive, Maumelle, Arkansas 72113( the" Project");

WHEREAS, the Planned Unit Development( the " PUD') approved by the City relating
to the Project included Villa extending and constructing improvements to River Pointe Drive up
to and including the boundary line of the real property owned by Villa;

WHEREAS, in exchange for the immediate payment of the funds set forth herein, the
City agrees to modify the PUD and release Villa from any obligation to construct improvements
to River Pointe Drive extending to Villa' s property boundary, with that portion being modified
hereunder being the cross-hatched section set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto ( reframed to
herein as the" Extension");

WHEREAS, this Agreement fully and completely replaces that certain Agreement by
and between the parties hereto dated November 7, 2013 covering the same subject matter,
thereby rendering the previous agreement null and void in all respects;

NOW THEREFORE, based upon the premises set forth herein and in exchange for the
consideration set forth herein, the delivery and sufficiency ofwhich is hereby acknowledged, the
parties agree as follow:

I.       ) Payment of Funds to City. In exchange for the premises set forth herein, on the
Execution Date of this Agreement„ Villa shall deposit the sum of $41, 452.00, in good and
immediately available funds, with the City for the purpose of the City, or its agents, later
constructing the Extension of River Pointe Drive.  The parties agree and acknowledge that the
timeframe within which such Extension and improvements may occur is unknown as of the
Execution Date.

2•      Release of Villa. In consideration of the payment ofthe fiords set forth in Section
1 above, the City, as well as its agents, successors and assigns, hereby fully and forever releases,
remises and forever discharges Villa, as well as its members owners, employees,
successo and aSS1 Releasees')gns ( collectively, the Releasees) of and & nm any and all actions, claims,
canes of action, suits, debts, liabilities, dues, accounts, demands, obligations, costs, expenses,
losses, damages and indemnities of every kind or nature whatsoever, whether known or
Unknown- suspected or unsuspected, contingent or fixed, which the City has, ever may have, is
any way related to or arising from the construction ofthe Extension.

3.      Revdsioa of PUD and Maintenance of Existing Faci3Hes.  The parties hereby
agree that this Agreement shall serve to amend the PUD to release Villa from any obligation to

EXHIBIT   .'



construct the Extension.  Villa shall remain responsible for the maintenance of the storm water
management system facilities that have been installed within the Extension as of the Execution
Date.

4.       EXDOUSM The City shall perform everything required to be performed and shall.
Provide and furnish all the labor, materials, necessary tools, equipment, and all transportation
services required to construct the Extension.

5.      _ Indemnity To the fullest extent permitted by law, the City shall indemnify,
defend and hold Villa, its agents, employees, officers and directors, harmless from any and all
claims, actions, costs, expenses, damages, fines, penalties, and liabilities or any nature, including
reasonable attorney' s fees, arising out of or resulting from this Agreement or the carrying out of
said Agreement in any way, whether or not resulting from the negligence or omissions of the
City, or any of its subcontractors, employees or other authorized agents.

6.      Governing Law. This Contract is governed by the law of the State ofArkansas.

7.      Entire Augment.   This written Agreement represents the entire agreement

between the parties hereto. Any modification to this Agreement must be set forth in writing and
signed by all the parties hereto.

WHEREFORE, the parties have hereto set their hands and seals on the day and year first
above written.

THE VILLA AT RIVER POINTE DRIVE LAND, LLC

By:     Blake Jackson
Its:     Manager

CITY OF mu11IELLE

By:
Its:



i

s !c

41.
rc r_""...  _-,  

ase-:.
I L.   i "     a:Y•v•=    '. Vw y-  r

ts //
1/// 11 I i     , t«j       ^.i v       • i•-  t

ire
PF.

fr.HAI Itn 1 1 mFA* .
FF Y1gV R29a 17 -   •. A142". i

111          

7   __,_•`._       '•  
i.

It

j     ••^ si,       
N.U.11 }- 1• 

11        

tF. l'-l•EY.: YI      ' 

Luz
1

fill
r    -

AfroKJy lhs-Sfled 54vrm waft&s  , w,  - o,r ,
vfvw 4t,4

y 7xtlat:.rsssY      
i

y r.. a. k 4Y M. i.WM 1 M. 1....

j AYSLfI!•'    a

2i
YNt     . R'     ' A4TAT'1iiX71ff.Y 4. u.. w f

i



AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAUMELLE,

COUNTY OF PULASKI, STATE OF ARKANSAS,

AN ORDINANCE TO BE ENTITLED:

ORDINANCE NO. 905

AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING AND CONFIRMING THE

DEDICATION OF CERTAIN STREETS, DRAINAGE IN LOT 1 THE

VILLA AT RIVER POINTE DRIVE, AN ADDITION TO THE CITY OF

MAUMELLE, PULASKI CO., ARKANSAS, UPON THE FULFILMENT

OF CERTAIN CONTINGENCIES, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES

WHEREAS, A.C.A Section 14- 301- 102 requires the City of Maumelle (" City") to pass

ordinances accepting and confirming specific streets and drainage dedicated to the City; and

WHEREAS, following the approval of the preliminary plat, including all contingencies,
Maumelle Planning Staff presents this dedication ordinance accepting all public improvements in
the subdivision for ownership and maintenance upon the satisfaction of all construction and
installation requirements and the signing of the final plat.

WHEREAS, certain streets and drainage located within the City Limits of Maumelle and
identified within the boundaries of Lot 1 The Villa at River Pointe Drive are planned for

construction according to the accepted preliminary plat of the area.

WHEREAS, the City of Maumelle desires to accept and confirm the specified streets and
drainage upon the signing of the final plat and upon the presentation of an adequate maintenance
bond, and which have been dedicated to the City for public use.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF MAUMELLE, ARKANSAS, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Pursuant to the authority and requirements of A.C.A. Section 14- 301- 102 and
upon satisfaction of the contingencies hereinbelow, the City of Maumelle accepts and confirms
dedication of the streets and drainage in the area with the legal description stated in " ROW

Dedication— Hominy Lane & Counts Massie Road" on the Preliminary Plat of Lot 1 the Villa at
River Pointe Drive an Addition to the City of Maumelle, Pulaski Co. Arkansas, 6 Jul 2012, all as
more particularly shown and described on the plat attached hereto as Exhibit A.

SECTION 2.   The Maumelle City Council hereby accepts all public improvements in the
aforementioned area for ownership and maintenance upon

a.   satisfaction of all construction and installation requirements and the signing of the
final plat;

b.  provision of  "As-Built"  drawings evidencing the proper construction and
installation of the improvements; and

c.   presentation of a maintenance bond for all dedicated improvements valid for at

least two years from the date of a letter of satisfactory inspection and approval by



the public works director or city engineer on the improvements which are being
accepted by the City of Maumelle.  The amount of the maintenance bond should

be sufficient to cover 50 percent of the total cost of all dedicated or common use
public improvements within the development which include, but are not limited

to, streets, drainage, curbs, sidewalks, etc.

SECTION 3. Pursuant to said authority and as of the date of the fulfillment of the contingencies
above, the City of Maumelle accepts and confirms that the streets and drainage, as indicated
above are hereby deemed City property to be under the care and control of the City of Maumelle.

SECTION 4. All provisions of this ordinance of a general and permanent nature are amendatory

to the Maumelle City Code and the same shall be incorporated in the Code.

SECTION 5. All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby
repealed to the extent of the conflict.

Approved this_ day of 2016.

By:
Michael Watson, Mayor

Attest:

City Clerk Joshua Clausen

Approved As To Legal Form:

Caleb Norris, City Attorney

SPONSORED BY:

Mayor Michael Watson

Mosley Saunders Kelley Anderson Lewis Scott Vaprersan Holt

Yes

No

Page 2 of Ordinance 905



Jv

LSOrwdw i$'ay; WuxSo11iAa°°la: l caner. tArNkan, ea: oIL•.°

Yipeitiwl: rl°r° Nam1a°'•

dT.
QMe1o' 42 PW

MT e" P
PIN FD

A R Y PLAT CaNlnalro• t• round°!, x at t 4 Southeast Cmxr of the NAd BNthxe W, rtm° f tan 1
CITE mmud r•

I AR Mill) CW I'8R` 8 11JC8E 1• °
VOrtM° L' III.

kR;°
olok.,,Nhp•MSaalapnlyg aid Cf Y! l),1tL!M

NN°
nl

layLIY.N tM Cf
unutN

M$
C0°

f°
s

C1tY .° li:
f!°

tM°
xtp

2 

oNL•°
roFa: L

g0p9
agillpWll i4°

0M°

Ip°
xaIwl1N

8008M! 
C° y°1t

tMIM• x,

M
nuflprRUNT OF

VAYA1r1LLaE
OP ROAD    __--_-      

So 1 3

NarMtad
tl'

5
N I E•8rx, 61 siwtnutxLFORCE 01'

OT LIIO

n• nx/

xyE
86W,iwL$

nC•
t

Mace,    
011d7net

Y•m••

CO.

NLB•

nOMndt•
pr,• / 

t thann°

x•
BOYddnNut_

Met 145. 74
d• M••.

t,     

7'

pjpQ^

A Isir

w0Oe1 - X--- X

dN•mM•• 00

iSxnulnCnC°
x E1°MseeaM•roNN OIE. ONuf tot TLMMadre

o} piYfMro1MContaining
th°ACOnce w

W
o

urea y +
NN ad • N.  

C

tlOZ
afineLIM

w esr. -- m------ 

g'     ( Q\   [
Q\ PI q m

wkTER LOW    - w-- w-   
V JS1Ld d l b 11 1E

LI VIL

imm. i. ao B.( h- a.

CA'IION
th*  

tY
al

E

I'
ll a 1,W

66EROM7

ENO, 1yfro 1n aha BouLil• xt Oea Co. of N• andel r axrt•r of SoCL1an f0. To° Iunlp 8 NMtAo" 8 a n7ER  ---------•      Req•! 9 Net, MNxll•. Pu1• NS DOLY, Arkexx NH DmtleulerlY do-. N fol§ox;     ad C
PIKE wYaawr p••• I a N• f ddNIrran pinatthe MuutM L Corner of N said NUCN

p,

pOumt
r of tM

I•    pOH

nmi" fall t°  °n• eint• rllnpiottCoutlti°-1bes Mir nO°

NfiB°
l•oGIMxpL'

t°

88B° f0 fNtYi1G'•
L•! C°

frN p! n

1

Vs Gto
WALL NOIN6 NC

Lxlnp N 0 c• M-')!*

WayM fbrN 888777 yaes Cdqqqq  N

e\T\\

y/

p'

7I{ AY-} 1[ J 1 
F L\/\/''

I}}
LL.J

tk
J

1''}[`

r\`''//p'{,•

AYq,       
an tld•   n W ! rot- Msy Lt. o} Ron L• x,,

3a1pCn•! d Rlpn/Ln-

pf-
Isy• N a° CMY•dIM. aewO Mx V Jid1Y\ l    ® s. V 11 iSC DRWEy iLO G Lr

poft9
N. 38 rlstMevaMS

1N1
1Mfn Chan

t°
8u°

tlieI
TO° e: 0a A9 antlLk dULea NCro11N

death 8!      
tN°it01. 81 f•'•°YCt,• at-.e]

d algq eMN G LM]• ft 8f09 feat Mvf Ip a r•plyt } ffi. pp Gat and d C3UNPCONCf°   F6 dpr•11 87 mll= T a xeond want pa.°! feat tMN•

pOIR®
ry 

1yT,
RL

ryFl
1 R

u/
Y'

pPYX p  }       on0MNq NMyrlyro• Na diet    
Npy7    , y 8p T

Q     '•-•®_` " 
8     ++. ® n WtMa•°° I/,N•a'NNyp!°NN•ffiBlWB tl iwt•en'Afiecotxl•NltgetN. 67° f•it LtMNII° i a1•° 0iq k°° r! W tNtlp I' d I, ro

CAOr
IEIjAtl8a1E}

f8p
a1PFACE

1 fIIl'L
ISrL s1. os

N i•oy°Ns- ENL
f.
1ii••ffir 00tlwilca enON§ o de°

YUnln
nnady12ddfy"

t
eeonx F.••

tN
d, Yr•.. ER w

8m0® OR WOBCMPm f
1C JLJLIE Y I.    LL' 6  lBlC H, L• t  •° flolgnCa

eirNorto e!°drfIrOhNa ffi•Nnfeei UY••
ennd: Ea, L i0Y 88'

fwLfr,°
inin°x°6 Jul

A

oM.. G uwu° i:'r1ecapeifeet NEVfxnoe lef. HdBt• oe SB N= w'e' mld°°eaim•aB". a' fllyry°
df, tene•    

r      >
0T wmN! dear••, 88 NmILx f7 xeaN• E•!: 88. 88 reef. t0 s x!M N the Neat Rfpntrof- Soy O ?   q1 CWYG NON• • d; than°• Nw' th OS lore 89 xnuCx N• xanN So, t l7a. A6 Hit: t_       

JiLL
ACIEAOE PEP 40 IUYfnp NSa RSaM-0}-May SoON 87 daoread' Jd p1nuC•, 18 xCana, EyL A0. 00 f1, t! o a Nlnk Ntan URLMIIM pf p'pN• Hls al• Rand: toes• Updp ... asnGrllha eau. 01 d• evx Nbe

O w
9E 1/ A. NR 1/ 1, SECTION! 0 f0. A4 ACRES ffi•• eadw• NN EA. 71 teat GtRean 7 aT N91n. cama. xa a. ae amx sora M x..

TOTAL IF(iALD lIOIb( RpyDFDKA110N- RNERP'gNTEDRNE7 MNMKW
n•-0Yea•-0• a Tp ac

mt0 La 3 inp n f t iii S'ur m d worms °u0To1 S' an! q ToN, n41p z worN,  s• C
M Mtalmr RYee S wxt, MxN110. Pu1a, k1 CoantY• Mkan• N ear• pertlCularly W, drfaad N to13aYC

CE'aEfl SPACE TRACTS 0•      O'-0'  '- 0' M

Cap= 111•!• 1 tend ! N• Nutneaet Carror } tan afd eootna•• t Bwrem o} tan L1
TA•      a T Pt snpE NMtnw, L Alle' LM M f, alx• ppldw lyfro an tanCfty LL1t L! n• a• t tM° 1t1x 0r

y ittl Oe• iii ids" Ami wwN11. NdPA1•w'N e1Fd•,

tR,
oc k• thane.• Iona.. H City Lixe

feut dynrp• o °'

id.
pr. n   ''

nifamro a
ST»»..       

A   
S8C So

lqp°Iqd°

pC0°
1E City Llnik L1M IbrNn00 UaarNauBn°8° Sfliultaarat

e

PoN° E N 318. 81 fans• tn• ne•    

G`"•,,   ,     

Un
4• uth e§ p lw..•88py R1n° LN

BppA
NC° n0• EN1 90. 00 feet• henps le° vinp• e1d CSLy .! Line

4•'•07(.78 I
8So1°' NeeaOid, 8Ht 80. 00e•Nto theCOpon,

tM°
A°

ftp: effmllmxeontain aNeaa°

ecdT•adnut
a`    T idea

pflyMeadlAµl

pw
ep Tbp ptyn PAyy

pF
N PUMA p pw W LLTa F OOw1TY NT LW° OF w1kIY01 F AT M°Tnll WIpINE NRBdr. WMR

FN spay

e
e'

MRNw08r
L Y

OUNN
aR T- 18w.    

xM,....L0.   
a° L3•„ a"c

a. apEbea arae- MirbLl M ROM ulllfe llwL K CaIPACiN T° A mem of tax aNlta• e WRRo-- uD.
FGy1LE wDL" Red"" I fleAm TNw ftm FRIER[      IRIMGIM

OVAL el asneMaen ar Nu TOT Am w fOyM a    ° av of i y/ i   /      y GRAPHIC
SCALEMef•. 50•     , OF AUT

4
0 50 100§;:.      , y

r srA waw;

L A'a1MS7'S p

w•     11 1I1 / I l  !    I   // //   \ r t // 1II 2a.
I r rrrl I      //       \ \     I

9
i    +     --

I 1   / "$" g c-   \\- a\  \\ y\,\       

i\     

1 I I
II

Ij
1 i I 1I 11 \\ \ \(\      11 \\ 1

I\
1/       

CHRU.esOm. oEonacuAcr

I. Robert 0.I
wr11:.    dMt

Nt
this a]aM] dr.r nkar" NvVtanR13wsula 1t with.  

n. Q
OL T a-

1 ,.:   SOI 171' Yf 1 T
l ossa or E.. dnuN E

x- _   1 l 1 \\    \ \ 1 NIARMAIeAs       ` L'

AlXOFX WlHGAa01TAACW
1. Roo• rk o. Rall- OI, hereby ltY that

p
p

Y
dMreeLly R

g
I a tNnNry. mY•      r N°Nwx:Me

tJ$i
mur e° tN11Y as ct an0 thefr IN, t1aa, tYM NW GI L1Y

L
exdNtfan

o.     v

I I 1 I 1 1 rwaadr. uaenswel.
I I I

Pu• cant G Ne Mosel ri=on Ruled end R• Owl• t, a and• 11 of tn•

eros.•] NY1ns Nan xya•!•e . G aNNart N 11. 1a. Tnf•  III ate!, hm• py a>t• eut• d uNM tM aWNMt: r or Nia wVI-
Pts

aN Repuletlae.   
c

Data of Execution

NNNManningOA fx1an

GENERAL NOTES:

AaEs
O

1. wATtTa WILL rABE 1PPLIffi BY rElarRdt ApG161B%,, M.

MILL E 8Y8. WNWATER CUP06A.       N" LITOLE RdW RAM xT®I.

PARKINS LOT PAYIN& TO BE ANNLT.   ad

A. THE APPNOPRIATE CIN{ AOU ALa N TERMpppy YIrN F r E7
p

da•    
PARCEL RACILLITIffi MILL M ONTAlTED 88PIp iE IOUClie Nlblel"

rOFUNLA 9

Q IDfaID R- 1
I

PARCEL' 9.O CrLO   O I MW W4TpN5     \
h`.   -

s     / j//r     < \ N. Ta°oW

TtBiOR°
IPR OfiEIO

g'

8I°ETEpEO7WED
I

eNMaEF9iYw8t7
EN.

ACE AM TIED
q•Y Rd101R

IDf® R- I q PAPCELZO f rvwl•
TIS\\    _ 

I ` _   \\  
i  /// / l\       - 

e. NaoPOa® YePIROn° io APNIOVNAL Ov
PA1b1&! T BFCfIaw eNwi F

f1100EL I I
T^   /'• `   

d\\      

i/ 1\/ 7.    
INBWKID

pg

MATrO
9E LCR®! OITSNwtTWAL car81lEf8wr000UWM PPRO•=f80LHiIK.

e. 7N LF OF NEN K"L. BTMM MLL Re CQIBTNICi® wrFm THE PROJECT.
APLAIRA

CO,   I 1` -     \     
I/ fp   .• 

8. EFFOR OF CLOSRE EMM L•50.No
tela y

s^•       
lo. ALL WITS TO b LFAND FOR KBfoWtIAL USE. u to r
11. THE E%IsTRaa BMVPL ACCESS Fei TME PAW 8 QMP % y VMZZM MNZW

j
TO R•JNEIBN

pAO9OIr8ylAydrlL
CONfIRUCrIeI OP RWBE ss.

075 I
IOS.m'_     _   

7'-/

l    /

ll      '' f8• A WCGGNDAR
FROM S MIA AArTiBRA ACCE88 w1LL EE PROV70¢D Fdl p jq aCy FIS

II
PFORROTECTIM

PHAGE 1 OF TIE OEVB,

BPIBrr1.
i0A0 MITN NO NOiE TWI A 10 RUW3Np Y,ppE      

2256T 1
FLOOD STATP11ENft Q

11E` r111A AT RPhai I• OME17pVE LAN4 UL I

o'Rn°asa nEEf rr Nr w teN xixeTm

EdonFdac rtmrpe DF THE wALwMhTpw atax OM RD®      aexTe WAP Q
MOl AaiEWIN EFECAAL PmD WZ/Ym ARBA U
SLqmCm

EXHIBIT

a
a



AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAUMELLE,

COUNTY OF PULASKI, STATE OF ARKANSAS,

AN ORDINANCE TO BE ENTITLED:

ORDINANCE NO. 906

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING RITTER COMMUNICATIONS, ITS SUCCESSORS

AND ASSIGNS, TO CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN AND OPERATE A

COMMUNICATIONS NETWORK WITHIN THE CITY OF MAUMELLE, ARKANSAS,

LEVYING A FRANCHISE TAX, PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT THEREOF,

DESCRIBING THE METHOD OF COLLECTION, DECLARING AN EMERGENCY

AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES

WHEREAS, Ritter Communications is constructing a communications network within
the City of Maumelle, Arkansas; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to grant Ritter the privilege of operating and
maintaining a communications network franchise by franchise agreement as set forth herein,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY

OF MAUMELLE, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1:  That permission be and is hereby granted to Ritter, or its other business
names and its successors in interests, assigns, and subsidiary or parent corporations or limited
liability companies, subject to the regulatory authority of the City Council and the FCC and other
regulatory authorities, to construct, maintain and operate, its poles, posts, cables, wires, and all
other necessary overhead apparatus on, over and along; and its conduits, ducts, mains, pipes,
cables, wires, manholes, distributing poles and all other necessary underground appliances on, in,
under and through the streets, alleys and highway, within the limits of the City of Maumelle,
Arkansas, and to sell, furnish, transmit and distribute communications services within the

corporate limits of the City of Maumelle and to use the property of other companies and permit
other companies to use its property upon such arrangements as the two companies may agree,
subject to the following conditions:

SECTION 2:  All construction will be in compliance with City Code, inparticular,
Section 86 regarding utilities. All poles erected by Ritter shall be located so they will not
interfere with the safety or convenience of persons traveling on or over the said streets, alleys
and highways; and in the work of installing and maintaining any underground system, Ritter
shall not open or encumber more of any street, alley or highway than will be necessary to enable
it to perform same with proper economy and efficiency; nor shall it permit such opening or



encumbrance to remain for a longer period than shall be necessary to do the work for which said
opening shall have been made.

SECTION 3:  That all work done under the provisions of this Ordinance in said City,
shall be subject to the supervision of the Public Works Director or some other representative

appointed by said Director or Mayor and Ritter shall replace and properly relay any sidewalk or
street pavement which may have been displaced or damaged by it in the construction and
maintenance of its system in said City.

SECTION 4:  That Ritter shall maintain all poles, cables, wires, conduits, ducts, mains,

pipes, manholes, distributing poles and all other apparatus erected or constructed under the
provisions of this Ordinance, in good and safe order and condition; and shall at all times fully

indemnify, protect, and save harmless the said City from and against all lost and necessary
expenditures arising from the erection, construction and maintenance of its network in said City,
or from its neglect or failure to maintain the said apparatus in good and safe order and condition.

SECTION 5:  That nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to grant unto the said
Ritter any exclusive right, or to prevent a grant of similar privileges to other companies.

SECTION 6:  So long as Ritter, or its other business names and its successors in
interests, assigns, and subsidiary or parent corporations or limited liability companies, shall
operate a communications network within the City, it shall pay to the City a franchise tax in
amount equal to 4.25% of basic local voice service excluding extension, terminal equipment,
toll, yellow pages and other miscellaneous equipment revenues within the corporate boundaries

of the City. This amount will be paid to the City of Maumelle each quarter, and shall be made
during the first ten( 10) days of each month following the end of the quarter; provided, the

amount of the tax levied herein by the City may be collected by Ritter from those of Ritter' s
customers receiving local exchange telephone service within the corporate boundaries of the City
of Maumelle, in accordance with the tariffs of Ritter and the rules, regulations and orders of the

Arkansas Public Service Commission. This Ordinance does not restrict the City from the right to
alter the tax, upon proper notification in advance to the Ritter.

SECTION 7:  If at any point in the future, Ritter begins providing cable television or
video services, Ritter shall pay to the City a municipal franchise adjustment fee in an amount
equal to 4.25% of Ritter' s annual gross revenues, before taxes, derived from sales to all

consumers for the basic maintenance and service charges. Payments shall be made to the City on
the same schedule as the franchise fee payments for basic local voice communications services

set out in Paragraph 6 above.

SECTION S:  Upon thirty (30) days written notice to the Grantee, the City or it' s
designee shall

Page 2 of Ordinance 906



have the right to audit books and records necessary to determine whether the Grantee has paid
the Franchise Fees owed. An audit by the City shall be conducted no more often than annually,
and the audit period shall not be greater than the term of this agreement. The audit shall not last

longer than six( 6) months. Any additional amounts due to the City as a result of the audit shall
be paid within sixty( 60) days following written notice to the Grantee by the City of the
underpayment, which notice shall include a copy of the audit report, or within sixty( 60) days
following resolution of any dispute regarding such notice, whichever is later.

SECTION 9:  ( a) It is expressly agreed and understood by the City of Maumelle and
Ritter that the aforesaid payment shall constitute and be considered as complete payment and

discharge by Ritter, or its other business names and its successors in interests, assigns, and
subsidiary of parent corporations or limited liability companies, of all licenses, fees, charges,
impositions or taxes of any kind( other than automobile license fees, special millage taxes,
general ad valorem taxes, curb cut fees, and other general taxes applicable to all citizens and

taxpayers) which are now or might in the future be imposed by the City of Maumelle under
authority conferred upon the City of Maumelle by law.  In the event such other taxes are imposed
by the City of Maumelle, the obligation of Ritter to pay the City of Maumelle the franchise tax
set out in Section 6 of this Ordinance shall be immediately terminated.

b)      Ritter shall at all times maintain and display the proper warning devices and allow
sufficient space along the public way for the passage of vehicles around areas of construction,
and shall as soon as practicable restore the public ways to as good condition as before the

construction was commenced.

c)      Ritter shall have the authority to divert or detour traffic from the area of
construction on proper notice to the Police Department and Public Works Department of the city

when diversion or detour is necessary for the safety and well-being of the inhabitants of the city.

d)      Ritter shall promptly furnish to the Department of Public Works, or to any other
authority, any and all information which may be requested in regard to any portion of its system,
in any form whatsoever, and any other information in regard to its occupation of the public ways.

e)      Ritter shall remove, raise or lower its wires, cables or lines temporarily to permit

the moving of houses or other structures provided that a person requesting such temporary

removal, raising or lowering of any portion of the system shall pay the expense of such
temporary removal, raising or lowering, and provided that Ritter shall not be required to take
action to remove, raise or lower any portion of its system within less than 48 hours advance
notice.

Page 3 of Ordinance 906



f)       Permission is hereby granted to Ritter to trim trees upon and overhanging the
public ways of the city so as to prevent the branches of such trees from coming in contact with
any portion of its system.

SECTION 10:  The franchise awarded hereunder shall take effect and be in full

force from and after approval by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Maumelle, Arkansas,
from the date signed. Nothing in the preceding sentence shall be construed as to prohibit any
modification of this agreement. The City Clerk/Treasurer shall send a certified copy of this
Ordinance to Ritter once this Ordinance becomes law to notify Ritter of the Ordinance.

SECTION 11:  Severability is intended throughout and within the provisions of this
Ordinance. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance is
held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, then that decision shall
not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.

SECTION 12: All ordinances, agreements or parts of ordinances in conflict with this

Ordinance are hereby repealed.

Approved, this day of 2016.

By:

Michael Watson, Mayor

Attest:

City Clerk Joshua Clausen

Page 4 of Ordinance 906



Approved As To Legal Form:

Caleb Norris, City Attorney

SPONSORED BY:

Mayor Michael Watson

Mosley Saunders Kelley Anderson Lewis Scott Vaprersan Holt

Yes

No

Page 5 of Ordinance 906



Joshua Clausen

City Clerk/Treasurer
550 Edgewood Drive Suite 590

Maumelle, AR 72113

Apri12, 2016

Dear Mr. Clausen:

Please accept this letter and my attached resume as my application for a position on the
Maumelle Tree Board.

I served on the Tree Board previously and, upon learning of an opening on the Board, would like
to serve again. I believe the Board, and Maumelle' s status as a Tree City, USA, is important to
our community. I believe my earlier experience on the Board and desire to serve Maumelle
make me a viable candidate.

If you have questions or require further information, please let me know.

Sincerely,

JU'- &w-
Genoveva Gilbert



GENovEVA GILBERT
404 Riverland Dr.

Maumelle, AR 72113

501- 772- 9798

genovevagilbert@sbcglobal.net

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

03/2013- PRBIENNT Associate— Litigation Department, Employment and Labor law Group
Kutak Rock, LLP

Little Rock, AR, USA

Extensive legal research and writing, including complex litigation

09/2007-06/2010&   Term Law Clerk to the Honorable Billy Roy Wilson
08/2011- 1/ 2013 United States District Court, Eastern District of Arkansas

Little Rock, AR

Extensive legal research

Draft opinions

Prepare documentsibriefings for hearings

Prepare jury instructions/ pretrial issues

08/2010-07/ 2011 Term Law Clerk

High Court of American Samoa

Fogotogo, Am. Samoa

Extensive legal research

Draft appellate bench memoranda

Draft opinions at both appellate and trial level

01/ 2007-08/2007 Attorney, Little Rock, Arkansas

06/2006 Relocated from Moscow, Russia, to Little Rock, Arkansas

Managed the construction of my home

2003- 12/2005 Editor-Marketing Coordinator/ Attorney/ Head of Finance& Administration

Chadbourne& Park LLP

Moscow, Russia

Wrote/ edited legal documents with team of Russian attorneys;

Wrote/ edited Moscow-based client news letter; coordinated trade events

Negotiated lease, supply, employment and other contracts; ensured compliance with risk
management policies; supervised administrative staff

2004-2005 Instructor of Legal Writing
Pericles ABLE Project

Moscow, Russia

1



GENOVEVA GILBERT
404 Riverland Dr.

Maumelle, AR 72113

501- 772- 9798

genovevagilbert@sbcglobal. net

1996- 1999 Marketing Manager

Quality Products
Moscow, Russia

Managed marketing staff of up to 42
Marketed range of 15 brands/ developed strategies and sales goals/ secured marketing

budget from client companies

Developed and maintained trade contacts

EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND AND HONORS

1999- 2002 Juds Doctor

UALR William H. Bowen School of Law

Little Rock, AR

3. 43/ 4.00 final grade point average

Honors graduate

Law Review Assistant Editor

1995- 1996 Master in International Management

Schiller International Univeristy

Heidelberg, Germany
3. 83/ 4.00 final grade point average

Benjamin Franklin scholarship- 50% tuition

1989- 1994 Bachelor of Arts

University of Arkansas at Little Rock
Little Rock, AR

3. 91 / 4.00 final grade point average

Summa cum laude graduate

Donaghey Scholar- full tuition plus stipend

PUBLICATIONS

Genoveva Gilbert, Student Author, International Trade Law, 24 U. Ark. Little Rock L. Rev. 1053 ( 2002).

LANGUAGES

Spoken Wratten Reading Comprehension

German Very Good Very Good Very Good

Russian Very Good Fair Good

2



GENOVEVA GILBERT
404 Riverland Dr.

Maumelle, AR 72113

501- 772- 9798

genovevagilbert@sbcglobal.net

PERSONAL INTERESTS

Licensed as a private pilot, visual flight rules.  Checked out in models Cessna 172 and Diamond Star Katana.

Member, Maumelle Tree Board.   Appointed by Mayor of Maumelle, AR. Served as Chairman 2009- 2010.
Arkansas Association of Women Lawyers. Vice-Chair Mentorship Committee 2011- 2012.   Vice-Chair Development

Committee 2012-2013 & 2013- 2014.

Volunteer/ supporter Pulaski Academy.

Avid SCUBA diver

Running( marathon) and Yoga

REFERENCES

The Honorable Billy Roy Wilson
United States District Court

Eastern District of Arkansas

Richad Sheppard Arnold United States Courthouse

600 W. Capitol, Room A403

Little Rock, AR 72201- 3325

501) 604-5140

Justice Lyle Richmond

High Court of American Samoa

Post Office Box 309

Pago Pago, American Samoa 96799

684) 633- 1261

Reggie Koch

Koch Law Firm

20204 Arkansas Valley Drive
Suite 707

Little Rock, AR 72212

501) 223- 5310

Laura Brank

Former managing partner of Chadbourne& Parke, LLP, Moscow. Currently head of Dechert= s Russia Practice.)
Moscow: + 7- 499- 922- 1100

London: +44-20- 7184- 7870

3



AfW%jk NOTICE
EW

ACADEMICS PLUS SCHOOL BOARD VACANCY

The Maumelle City Council is accepting resumes from residents interested in service on
the Academics Plus Charter School Board.  An appointment will be made for a three year
term ending May 1, 2019.  Resumes should be submitted to the City Clerk/Treasurer' s
Office, 550 Edgewood Drive, Suite 590, Maumelle, Arkansas 72113 no later than 4: 00

p.m., April 13, 2016.  Applicants will be interviewed by the City Council at the regular
City Council meeting April 18, 2016 at 6: 00 p.m. at City Hall.  An appointment will be

made following the interviews.



Joshua Clausen

From:    Don Henderson < grenoble@sbcglobal. net>

Sent:     Thursday, March 24, 2016 3: 36 PM
To:       Joshua Clausen

Subject: Don' s Resume

Attachments:  RESUME. pdf

Joshua: Please accept my attached resume as an indication that I wish the city council to reappoint me to the Academics
Plus Charter School Board. If additional information is needed please let me know.

Thanks, Don Henderson

1



RESUME

Donald J. Henderson

B. S. Degree Elementary Education- Central State College, Wilberforce, Ohio 1964

Master' s Degree Elementary Education- Indiana University- 1968

Doctorate in Curriculum and Instruction- Loyola University of Chicago- 1980

Experience:

Teacher Lincoln Elementary School- Gary, Indiana 1060- 1966

Teacher Corps Team Leader- Gary, Indiana Public Schools 1966- 1968

Resource Teacher- Gary, Indiana Public Schools 1968- 1970

School Administrator- Edison Middle School Gary, Indiana Public Schools- 1970- 1975

Assistant Director for Secondary Education- Gary, Indiana Public Schools- 1975- 1980

Assistant Superintendent for Elementary Schools- Richland County School District One,
Columbia, South Carolina- 1980- 1985

Assistant Superintendent for Secondary Schools- Richland County School District One,
Columbia, South Carolina- 1985- 1990

Deputy Superintendent Richland County School District One, Columbia, South Carolina- 1996-
1997

Superintendent Richland County School District One, Columbia, South Carolina- 1996- 1999

Assistant Superintendent for Support Services- Pulaski County Special School District- 1999- 2002

Superintendent Pulaski County Special School District- 2002-2005



NOTICE

CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION VACANCY

The Maumelle City Council is accepting resumes from residents interested in service on
the Maumelle Civil Service Commission.  An appointment will be made to a five year
term ending May 1, 2021.   An applicant must be a good citizen and a resident of

Maumelle for more than three years, not holding or being a candidate for political office
or be connected in any official capacity with any political party or organization.
Resumes should be submitted to the City Clerk/Treasurer' s Office, 550 Edgewood Drive,
Suite 590,  Maumelle,  Arkansas 72113 no later than 4: 00 p.m.,  April 13,  2016.

Applicants will be interviewed by the City Council at the regular City Council meeting
April 18, 2016 at 6: 00 p.m. at City Hall.  An appointment will be made following the
interviews.



Joshua Clausen

From:    Billy Herrington < mca1985@sbcglobal. net>

Sent:     Monday, April 04, 2016 1: 23 PM
To:       Joshua Clausen

Subject: Civil Service Commission re- appointment

Mr. City Clerk,

As I approach 8 1/ 2 years of service on the Maumelle Civil Service Commission - five years as Secretary and the
last year as Chairman - I have given much thought about whether I would apply for another term because 8 1/ 2
years is a long time to do anything. After my thought process was completed, I came to the realization that I indeed
wanted to continue my work on the Commission so I respectfully ask that the City Council consider me for re-
appointment. It is work that I know benefits our community and work I enjoy. If I am selected, I would also like to
take a few minutes to discuss the work of the Commission with the City Council. I am not sure the Commission' s
role is always well understood.



A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAUMELLE, PULASKI

COUNTY, ARKANSAS

RESOLUTION NO. 2016- 15

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT TO ESCROW

FUNDS AND RELEASE AND THE ESCROW AGREEMENT TO FURTHER

THE REALIZATION OF THE COUNTS MASSIE EXTENSION

WHEREAS, the City of Maumelle is in the process of securing rights of way and
easements for the Counts Massie Extension with the goal of securing additional access to I-40;

WHEREAS, on or about May 2, 2003 and in order to accomplish the extension of a
roadway to I-40, the City of Maumelle and Newton Ridge, LLC entered into an Agreement For
the Dedication of Right of Way, Road Construction, Annexation and the Provision of Certain
Municipal Services ( Road Agreement) wherein the City agreed to commence construction of the
Roadway and Utilities( as defined in the Road Agreement) prior to May 2, 2005, with construction
completed prior to May 2, 2006;

WHEREAS, on or about June 22, 2005, with the partial purpose of amending the Road
Agreement,  the City and Newton Ridge entered into an Agreement for Conveyance of
Conservation Easement, wherein Newton Ridge conveyed a Conservation Easement of 16. 5 acres,

more or less, to the City of Maumelle;

WHEREAS, on February 7, 2011, the Maumelle City Council unanimously passed
Resolution No. 2011- 11  ( attached hereto as Exhibit 1) authorizing the execution of a tolling
agreement to maintain the security of certain rights of way and to continue a spirit of progress
towards the realization of the extension of Maumelle roadways to I-40; and

WHEREAS, in order to secure necessary rights of way and easements for the Counts
Massie Extension and to release City' s contractual obligations under the aforementioned
agreements, the City Council authorizes the City to escrow $ 7500 an acre for each of the 16. 5

acres, more or less, conveyed to the City in the conservation easement, for a total of$ 123, 750 plus
fees, with half of those funds returning to the City if construction of the Roadway is commenced
and completed as stated in the Agreement to Escrow Funds and Release( attached hereto as Exhibit

2) and half of those funds returning to the City if construction of the Qualified Utilities is
commenced and completed as stated in the same agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
MAUMELLE, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1. The Mayor is authorized to sign and further execute the Agreement to
Escrow Funds and Release ( Exhibit 2) and the Escrow Agreement ( Exhibit 3), similar and not

materially different in substantive provisions as those attached hereto as Exhibits 2 and 3
respectively, as well as additional documents necessary to secure rights of way and easements
from Newton Ridge, LLC.

SECTION 2. Repealer. All resolutions and parts of resolutions inconsistent with the
provisions of this resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistency.



RESOLVED this 18th

day April, 2016.

Michael Watson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Joshua Clausen, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:      SPONSOR:

Mayor Michael Watson

Caleb Norris, City Attorney

Mosley Saunders Kelley Anderson Lewis Scott Vaprersan Holt

Yes

No

Page 2 of Resolution 2016- 15



A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAUMELLE
COUNTY OF PULASKI, STATE OF ARKANSAS EXHIBIT

A RESOLUTION TO BE ENTITLED
a

RESOLUTION NO. 2011- 11 To

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAUMELLE,
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A TOLLING AGREEMENT TO MAINTAIN THE

SECURITY OF CERTAIN RIGHTS OF WAY AND TO CONTINUE A SPIRIT OF PROGRESS
TOWARDS THE REALIZATION OF THE EXTENSION OF MAUMELLE ROADWAYS TO

THE INTERSTATE AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES

WHEREAS, on or about May 2, 2003, the City and certain property owners, namely Newton

Ridge, LLC and Interchange, LLC, entered into certain contracts designed to accomplish the extension of

a roadway to the Interstate, a benefit for both the City and the property owners.   Those contracts are

attached as Exhibits A and B respectively; and

WHEREAS, on June 22, 2005, the City and Newton Ridge entered into an Agreement for the

Conveyance of a Conservation Easement, again tailored to the mutually beneficial purpose.   Said

Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit C; and

WHEREAS, the City agreed, in each of the Newton Ridge Road Agreement and the Interchange

Road Agreement, to complete the construction of utilities and a mad to the properties owned by Newton

Ridge and Interchange no later than May 2, 2006. Pursuant to the Conservation Agreement, Newton

Ridge and the City amended the Newton Ridge Road Agreement by extending the City's obligation to

complete the construction of utilities and a mad to the properties owned by Newton Ridge to Tune 30,

2008.  For reasons beyond the control of the parties,  that construction has not occurred,  and

WHEREAS, In reliance on the agreements of the City, Newton Ridge and Interchange have each annexed

into the City and Newton Ridge has made the grant of the Conservation Easement required by the Conservation

Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Although the construction contemplated by the parties has failed to come to pass at this time, the

Parties wish to preserve the relationship and avoid any legal issues which might interfere with the same, the parties wish to



enter into a Tolling Agreement in order that the parties may continue to work together to accomplish that which is

mutually beneficial, an extension of a roadway and utilities to and, ultimately, across the property owned by

Newton Ridge and Interchange which is adjacent to the Interstate.

WHEREAS, Based on the foregoing, the City will execute a tolling agreement to preserve the

Parties' relationship and to move forward with the efforts originally undertaken in 2003.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED By THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

MAUMELLE:

SECTION 1. The Mayor is authorized to sign and further execute necessary tolling agreement,

similar and not materially different in substantive provisions as that attached hereto as Exhibit D with

Newton Ridge and Interchange to preserve the status quo and to maintain the beneficial relationship of the

parties.

rT IS SO ORDERED AND APPROVED this 7' day ofFebruary, 2011.

6

Michael n, Mayor

A7oT/

L,,

J ua Clausen, City Clerk

dpOVED T FORM:

anArnol vis, 0ity Attorney

Sponsor:

Mayor Watson

Jo n SaundWit(74_ Bramer Ladner,-Hogue Anderson Stell

Aye:    _!    

Page 2 Resolution 2011- 11



EXHIBIT

b

s

AGREEMENT FOR THE DEDICATION OF RIGHT OF WAY, ROAD
CONSTRUCTION,,ANNEXATION, AND THE PROVISION OF CERTAIN

MUNICIPAL SERVICES

1'his Agreement For the Dedication ofRight ofWay, Road Construction, Annexation
and the Provision ofCertain Municipal Services( this" Agreement'') is entered into effective
May 2,:2003 ( the" Effective Date") by and between The City of Maumelle( the "City"), a

duly organized city of the first class in Pulaski County, Arkansas, with its principal location
at 554 Edgewood Drive, Suite 590, Maunielle, Arkansas 72113, and Newton Ridge, LLC

Newton Ridge").

WHEREAS,.Newton Ridge is the property owner ofLands located near the corporate
limits of the City ofMaumelle.

VJIMREAS, The City of Maumelle desires to construct a roadway to the east of the.
present City limits in an effort to expand the City limits beyond its present boundaries; and
to make a connection to Interstate 1- 40 to serve the City of Maumelle and all the affected
lando%hers: and

WHEREAS, Newton Ridge owns the approximately 60 acres of land ethe" Newton
Ridge;Property") more particularly described on Exhibit" A" to this Agreement, to which
there is no current access and Newton Ridge desires to assist the City of Maumelle in the
construction of such access and the provision of municipal services to the Newton Ridge
Property: and.

WHEREAS, each of the parties have an interest in insuring improvements to the
Property and to access to the interstate highway; and

NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1.       The City shall construct and will be responsible for all costs of building the
hard surfaced road which is shown as Alternative 02 on Exhibit " B", affixed hereto ( the
Development M— ap"), which,road shall be an undivided two-way roadway, a minimum of

24 feet in width, and shall be constructed to the design standards for a Class IV road ( the
Roadway") by Pulaski County, Arkansas( the" County" .  The Roadway shall not restrict

access to the Newton Ridge Property. The City agrees that the Roadway, once completed,
shall:provide for a hard surface from Interstate 1- 40 to Maumelle Boulevard and to Short
Marche.Road and shall include direct access from Counts Massie to Country Club Parkway.
Newton Ridge will dedicate to the public the 80 foot right vf way( the" Right-of-.Way") for

the 0ortions of this Roadway which cross the Newton Ridge Property, provided that such
dedication shall be for so long as such.Right-of-Way is used as a,public highway and for the
loeajion of the Utilities. However, the Right-of-Way shall not be used for any development
or any use other than fc r the Roadway and for the Utilities except with the prior written
approval ofNex ion Ridge, : Newton Ridge shall agree to dedicate such additional.area for

Page I of 7



the Roadway as may be reasonably required by the County' s engineers Who shall give final
design requirements for the Right-of-Way prior to or during commencement ofconstmetion
of the Roadway, subject to the prior review and approval of such design requirements by
Newton Ridge. The City agrees to grant to Maumelle Sewer improvement District No. 500

li.4SID 500") such easements within the Right-of-NVay as MSID 500 shall require for use
and maintenance of the Utilities,

The conveyances of the Right-of-Way shall be made into escrow and no delivery of
this conveyance shall be trade until the construction of the Roadway and the Utilities set
forth in paragraphs 1 and 2 is completed. The Right-of-Way is generally depicted on the
Development Map but the exact legal description of Right-of-Way shall be determined by
a survey obtained by the City at its expense and subject to the approval of interchange.

2. At its sole cost, the City will provide water and sewer utilities to the locations set
forth on the Development Map (Page 2)( the" Utilities'`}. The water line will consist of a
mininiuni of 12.inch 1 ine from the source ofthe water to the end point ofconstruction on the .
Newton Ridge Property set forth on the Development Map ( Page 2).  The sewer line will

consist ofa minimum of a 10 inch forced main located on the Newton.Ridge Property at the
location set forth on the Development Map ( Page 2) and meeting the. requirements and
approval of the Arkansas State Health Department.  The Utilities will be sized so as to
adequately service industrial and/or commercial customers in all of the Newton Ridge
Property to be annexed to the City pursuant to this Agreement. Once constricted, the City
shall. convey all the Utilities to MSID 500, on the condition_that..tid$ Il?500, shall
I eutrt Badge the right to tie-onto all the Utilities for the use and benefit ofall the Newton.
Rid4o Property without the requirement to pay any additional tie-on fees or charges
whatsoever, provided that MSID 500 is entitled to charge its usual and customary connection
fees and related charges to the ultimate end users who connects to the water and sewer which
are charged to users, as opposed to developers, of utility services in the City. The current
schedule of connection fees and related charges are set forth on Exhibit" C", afC-ixed hereto

and by this reference trade a part hereof.

3.       Newton Ridge agrees to annex the?`;ewton Ridge Property and the Rest Area
Tract( as hereinafter defined) into the City by a voluntary-petition commenced on or before
May 2, 2003,  In return, the City of Maumelle agrees to zone all of the Newton Ridge
Property 1- 1, provided, however, at any time Ring t t> n Qd, upon the

written direction by Nei-vton Ridge to the City, the City shall agree to zone or rezoneany
portion of the Newton Ridge Property to a zoning classification which Newton Ridge shall---
so direct in writing. Furthermore, the City agrees to permit the installation of above ground
electric lines for feeder circuits along and adjacent to the Roadway and in areas permitted
for installation of the Utilities within the Right-of-way,

4.       The City covenants and agrees that the City will complete construction of the
Road'% ay and Utilities within two( 2) years( the" C;oIistructlon Period') after the date ofthis

Agreement, provided, however, that if constnietion of Roadway and Utilities commences
during such two ( 2) year period, then the Construction Period shall be extended for .such

Page 2 of 7



period of substantial and continuous construction of sante up to a maximum of one ( 1)
additiona.1 year,  Newton Ridge acknowledges that the construction of the Roadway and
Utilities may actually be performed and paid for by Pulaski County Arkansas, the,Arkansas
State Highway Department, MSID 500, or other governmental entity, private individual,
business entity or person(" Other Persons"), and Newton Ridge agrees that performance by
any of such Other Persons shall constitute performance by the City pursuant to this
Agreement.

5.       The obligations ofNewton Ridge pursuant to this Agreement are expressly
conditioned upon the tract of land on which the now-closed Interstate 1- 40 rest area was

located and which is the area contiguous to the Interchange Property( as described in the
Lnterchangc Agreement) and is designated the " rest area" on the Development Map ( the
Rest Area Tract'") being reconveyed to Interchange, LLC by the State ofArkansas pursuant

to the terms ofACA§ 27-67-322, as provided in that Agreement For the Dedication ofRight
of Way, Road Construction, Annexation and the Provision of Certain Municipal Services
the" Interchange Agreement") entered into effective on the Effective Date by and between

the City and Interchange, LLC.  The exact legal description of Rest Area Tract shall be .
determined by a survey obtained by Newton Ridge at its expense and subject to the approval  .
of Na vton Ridge.

C.       The obligations ofNewton Ridge pursuant to this Agreement ane expressly
conditioned upon the execution and closing of the Newton Ridge Agreement. Further, any
default pursuant to Sections 1 and 2 of the Newton Ridge Agreement shall entitle Newton
Ridge to exercise the rights set forth in Section 13 hereof.

7.       The obligations of each of Newton Ridge and the City pursuant to this
Agreement are expressly conditioned upon the City obtaining approval from the Arkansas
State Highway Department' s agreement and authorization to allow construction or construct
an access to the. Interstate Highway I-40 by the Roadwav at the Rest Area Tract.

8.       No provision in this Agreement shall be deemed waived, amended, or

modified by either party unless such waiver. amendment. or modification is in writing and
signed by the party against whom it is sought to enforce the waiver. amendment, or
modification. This agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the City and Newton
Ride with respect to the subject matter hereof and shall not be amended or modified
without specific written additional provisions to that effect signed by both parties. No oral
statement of any person whomsoever shalt in anymanner, decree. modify or otherwise affect
the terms and provisions of this Agreement and the obligations of the respective parties.

9.       The parties agree and understand that the Agreement must be considered and.

adopted by the City Council. Further, the parties understand that any .waiver of city
ordinance or zoning of property must likewise be accomplished by action of the City
Council The parties will work in concert to accomplish the same.

Page 3 of 7



1. 0,     This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted. assigns.

I J.     If any provision or portion of thereof of this Agreement is invalid under
applicable statute or rule of law, it is only to that extent to be deemed omitted and the
remaining provisions will survive. Arkansas law shah govern the provisions of this
Agreement.

12.     Any notice to -be given hereunder by either party to the other shall be in:
writing and shall be deemed given when sent by postage pre-paid certified mail or the
equivalent. Notice to the City shall he addressed to: City ofMaurnelle. ATTN: Mayor, 550
Edge,wood Drive, Suite 590, Maumelle, AR 72113. Notice to Newton Ridge shall be
addressed to: 410 Nest Third Street, Suite 120, Little Rock, Arkansas 72201, Attention: Jill
Taylor, with a copy to G. Robert Hardin, Hardin& Grace, P. A.,414 West Third, Suite 200,
Little Rock, Arkansas 72201.  If either party changes its address during the term hereof it
shall S advise the other party in writing and any notice thereafter required to be given shall
he sent by certified mail or the equivalent to such new address.

13.      In addition to any other remedies permitted by applicable law which Newton
Ridge may have as a result of a breach of any of the provisions of this Agreement by the
City, the City agrec;s that Newton Ridge shall have the right and option to de-annex or detach
from the City pursuant to ACA § 14-40- 18111 ( c) or ACA § 14- 40-2002 or ACA §.14-40-

2101 in the even.the City fails to timely comply with any of the covenants of the City set
forth in Sections 1 and 2 of this Agreement or Sections 1 and 2. of the Interchange

Agreement. In the event that Newton Ridge elects its remedy to de-annex or detach from
the City pursuant to any ofthe provisions ofthis Section 13, the City shall agree to take such
action required to accomplish such de-annexation or detachment from the City as shall be
required by Arkansas law.

III WITNESS WHEREOF. the parties hereto have executed this Agreement with
duplicate originals as below reflected.

CITY OF ?MAU-MÈ

BY:    !

TITLE:  .      f
DATE:     - 50 3

NEWTPN RIDGE, LLC

DATE:   
FAWINDOWSINP51tUOCUME:NZ; BOHIF.     aames A emm acya tatu    ! ri wc Pifte,. wpa

Page 4 of 7



Exhibit" A"

Description of Newton Ridge Property

The West 677 feet of the NW 1/ 4 NW 1/ 4, Section 1, Township 2 North, Range 13
West, Pulaski County, Arkansas; and the NE 1/ 4 NE 1/ 4 of Section 2, Township 2 North,
Range 13 West, Pulaski County, Arkansas.

Page 5 of 7



Exhibit" B"

AeveJopment Map

Attached

Page 6 of 7



JiA`    ,• ti'/ jy,': r I.J 1+...:._;' y
03j

1!•    I.
r'

E) Ur: f'G+
7 ;

ti  __.%•   '

r` )     

t" ivS tl,.li.l:t 1. !+>` t! it R:; cnic..iy. ,  '
4,  / s l r, I` r r•:.       , i i r,1_,   j 1   ,.    d''' r'•    

rl:

A4' ;' !'   1  .-     ' ti.. C__.. '. '.•...   ' F  

j•  ...
1•

w, K

y

4 S.

r ,

7MIX,   DEVELOPMENT MAP P4h(} s '?

i_`..`.,.'. S     (    
1,.—1_>>;,   n l Fi [ hf?IVAF t       : X8' k'r17' l,I.(  ,_  ' \ —`

Ct tt'       

ii
SUOWING WATER MID 1n

SEWER FORCE MAIN

l`

l.   .` '    AND END  orhr OF c: c N'sTRUCTI,0;v

l..' ;'V'  ` 1+r.. .(j
l

pr'
i-

r  ,       (  .•..
J  /      + r,'  '     ? 1 1 7, I( r

j Ix ..•     I

r 4•  

Ir
t;-   •._   r9h`(tLtli,MS

i rl' r : i . tail i

1..  `. YJC.      ) '' 4y...•ygp..
a...._      

v'/_'-....._

l'. _—   

CJI      ..(/   
N R.   '.'rA

r .

91 r
f

e ._.__ -.-...-
t7i•E' N :>! tiA[;[':    ..'

s•

j- f
1    .,...,•          - J lit

tart iiF.' i t +`.. FCC \._.

fu,,      r.'J
foil Y i• r.:.     

yam      i 
a         l  ,.!_    f 7

r

tti
t{ •M jF

y 1 k, ir      \\\`,

A
rr̀sf

L °•. 

r7-N ri•

N- , 4;,
j

i,
J      _     .

r,..-•-   '

r'•     

1   ,

Y.    
L•  K

amLw
u!'     

i,11 i.  • iei tori •'"{
ed'    .Y'„ 1 r_x 1.}•• x  :? i

1v/' a

t Yom.       .\     i .•'_ ..
r.      )"      1.    ••(„     

7

I

i  ' 1\'    f• .
yv

y•' 1 N' i'    

e}

f ',    
d.:       kfr`  j'  

l IlFrur•C IS j C, t,:l(•_sj;rt
t2"N/ A^.ij}

i.•
1 1[.

l y" i, E
j•' J)    -

nwm; n•   _.. JI F'  \
T

i % • i

v,      l
f' .

l.

yui1T
ijy;  {     ``_." i_•  iJ"''   f y/ t` '

t ,   '  

i! °.•

r r w.

tl)     •
a    1.   r

I'"" s   e
r
I.       \:

J j   }'(• r r/ „ y,•--4".:
l-i J"f_l'   [4 ffl l': P_'

A• (    U ti    ,.."
r_       

Sr2 ve ! m a r

@. 7a ills

Gp t• j
7 c—,- 

r
a'-      :.

s f
E n.;. a..a i i

fits;;' •,
f"    -       

fA
r v`   C I f

1
m. wru e. u4 J trjf" `-l

y   \'•\`

v

ca.-
r'\•-     r•'11 ten i     '•     '  

n ?{

1`,,    
R      ,

MAUMELLL

i';    ; a Z'    i')
rj----..

r'__  .%,.

r SE'      f'.,    T'-4•- 
F'       z'    (- ,.,-_..    

MMI

f
1 

I

il'     t t) y S2;uX it.1 ' 1W      ,

r

4       ,• J
f.,  .-

F 1•,.—..._'„
a~_

L r  ':.vi.     1      o      rr

m

t
h

l-
3'       c”   < l r,,:,•  \ tt`;        

s-.-   ._._.._.    _ ti
i!t  , S, b. 

pro l7 w   \ 1.. J{ 
lAIA[ t9 tt  " G8.      . R f S}./  e -  `' L"    F    -. r.•--3;. 1  ` 1,,. L'

e","
3   

i
Ljj

i; l a j'      
1,,.-

1 n-  :" .
t.;   f r

ir'       t•6`\"'''c-::' 1(r11     , rJr a,•:_:[
y_

2       <•\ 

5,

s   o.`    -`    l'.•
jyTy::   

U    ,
j  ' L•   r P 1 1     /%'.`.`..

2     ` ltC  r n ,
Fit'.„    j}`.'     1

r       \.    
L

a 1_
u jp,,.(

i
la,

f.     " ten.       7       l
i.

Si•.  { \   i. l ì

1 y-

r    }``

l ii 1{ r,--i{ 
y     * L` t3 1 L,`'.".•,   r   ,•   \ R..,

r •" i
q t  ' 11101 t INif  , ''.' L" -   (   

e•'

1.   
ss'°..

v'. 3   `

1
j/^

2
rt(" v   \ a  _ s,

E
7}!

N   %
F •

1 1^-       
Y    +  

f
j .i ls-  .    ` 

ti

1     ,     ° I p
S   Y f lI._   

4    

i

I1 4r' i"  ._ r `"+('''  `' S! iii \
li{   -

1

r  

t j
J t 1 o! S 11..

9.(, (,
1S'".•. vi•.°',/i       i.(      1I

l r,   r'^.l:t:•:.      I i 3r).,   „ i a.': t.r:_..:1.> f! I



Exhibit" C"

MSXD 500 Current Schedule of Connection Fees

Attached

Page 7 of 7



U / L!/ ZUU3 lU: 4tS Y: 3 5U1 S5! t 413 ai 1v7i5UVAi4A tAU Ll.G 1A"135x wiuul

WATER C'_b" t'T ON F+'FFS AM FMAM CHAMS

METER SIZE CONNECTION I?EPOSrT MUTDULMSAGE

4<7 aO

V4" X 5/$"   30/ RES      $ 5.46/ 2600 GAL.
50/ BLDR

F'      
o

S1314" SPRINKLER 20 5.46/ 2600 GAL
filo.00

1" DISKMETER     .5w'YLliD-.W 100 24.46l11,400GAL,

g v av
11/ 2" DISK hfBM $ `&ft 240 48.91! 22,90 GAL.

2"     MFOUND

SJ70R
M'    400 85.60/ 40,000 GAL

3" C+(J t"QUKD X80 W 1000 ' 189.54/ KODD GAL-'
METER

an

4" COhMILIM      $3400"_OT 1640 324.05! 184,000 GAL
METER

3/4" AND V NMTEIt,S WILL BE FURNISHED AND SET BY MW?&ALL LARGER

MET.ERS WILL.BE FURMSHBD BY MWM AND SET BY THE CON RA MM—
METERS LARGER' THAN I IPZ" MUST HAVE ABYPASS ASSEM LY.

2" MF 1I'YDRAET.h$U.X]$ WMRPZ.A VA IM ASS MRT Y

A$ 1000 REF'S MARLE DEPOSIT IS RFY UIRFD SORE MITER IS ATIACWD
TO HYDRANT PLUS A$200 SMVICE CSEFOR FLUT MONTH OR PART
Tf REUF WITH A$ 100 SMVICE CHARGEMMONTH AFM THE FIRST
MONTH. CUSTONMR WILL,BE B.RX.M FOR.WA'sAT NORMAL RATES AND
MUMVrE MS.)FOR A.2" METER IN ADDTTION.TO TM SMVICE C ARtES.

SUMCO CIN FEF4 Ai+iD REI AMR CME M4

SLrWER CONNECTION CONFECTION CHARGE INUECTIflN FEE

4" SERVICE 375 Z5

6" SERVICE 1200 25

SEWER SERVXCE CHARGES ARE 100% OF WATER.CHARGES. THERE ARE NO
SEWER CIFARGES ON WATER USED THROUCH SPRIItiitE: AM METERS-



EXHIBIT

aa
9

AGREEMENT FOR THE DEDICATION OF RIGHT OF WAY, ROAD
CONSTRUCTION, ANNEXATION, AIND THE PROVISION OF CERTAIN

MUNICIPAL SERVICES

This Agreement Por the Dedication of Right of Way,.Road Construction. Annexation and
the Provision ofCertain Municipal Services( this" Agreement") is entered into effective May 2, 2003the" Effective Date") by and between The City of'Maumelle( the" City'), a duly organized city of
the first class in Pulaski County, YVkansas, with its principal location at 550 Edgewood Drive, Suite
590. Maunzelle, Arlkanm 72113, and Interchange, LLC(" Interchange").

WHEREAS, Interchange is the property owner of lands located near the corporate limits of
the City.

WWEREAS, The City desires to construct a roadway to the east ofthe present City limits in
art effort- to expand the City limits beyond its present boundaries; and to make a connection to
Tnterstate 1- 40 to serve the City and all the affected landowners: and

WHEREAS, Interchange owns the approximately 437.4 acres of land Cthe " Interchang=e
Property") more particularly described.on Exhibit" A" to this Agreement, to which there is no current
access and Interchange desires to assist the City in the construction ofsuch access and the provision
ofmunicipal services to the Interchange Property: and

WHEREAS, each of the parties have an interest in insuring improvements to the Property
and to access to the interstate highway; and

NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows:

I.       The City shall construct and will be responsible for all costs of building the hard
surface road which is shown as Alternative# 2 on Exhibit" B", affixed hereto ( the" Development
Map"), which road shall be an undivided two-way roadway, a minimum of 24 feet in width, and
shall be constructed to design standards for a Class IV road( the" Roadway") by Pulaski County,
Arkansas( the" County").  The Roadway shall not restrict access to the Interchange Property. The
City agrees that the Roadway, once completed, shall provide for a hard surface from.interstate 1- 40
to Maumelle Boulevard and to Short Marche Road and shall include direct access from Count
Massie to Country Club Parkway. Interchange will dedicate to the public the 84 foot right of way
the" Dight-ofWay") for the portions ofthis Roadway which cross the Interchange Property and the

Rest Area Tract( as herein after defined), provided that such dedication shall be for so long as such
Right-of-Way is used as a public highway and for the location of the Utilities. However, the Right-
of-Way shall not be used for any development or any use other than for the Roadway and for the
Utilities except with the prior written approval of Interchange. Interchange shall agree to dedicate
such additional area for the Roadway as may be reasonably required by the County' s engineers who
shall give final design rcquirements for the Right-of-Way prior to or during commencement of
construction of the.Roadwvay, subject to the prior review and approval of such design requirements

Page t of



by Interchange. The City agrees to grant to M.aumelle Sewer Improvcrnem District No. 500(°` MSID

500") such casements within the Right-of-Way as MSIR 500 shall require for use and maintenance
of the Utilities.

The conveyances of the Right-of--Way shall be made into escrow, and no delivery of this
conveyance shall be inade until the construction of the Roadway and the Utilities set forth in
paragraphs 1 and 2 is completed. The Right-of-Way is generally depicted on the Development Map
but the exact legal description of the Right-of-Way shall be determined by a survey obtained by the
City at its expense and subject to the approval of Interchange.

2. At its sole cost, the City will provide water and seiner utilities to the locations set forth
on the Development Map( Page 2)( the" Utilities"). The water line will consist of a minitnum of 12

inch line froin the source of the water to the end point ofconstruction on the Newton Ridge Property
Set forth on the Development Map( Page 2). The sewer line will consist of a minimum ofa 10 inch

forced main to the Newton Ridge Property at the location set forth on the Development Map( Page .
2) and ineeting the requirements and approval of the Arkansas State Health Department.  The

Utilities will be sized so as to adequately service industrial and/ or commercial customers in all of
the Interchange Property to be annexed to the City pursuant to this Agreemcnt. Once constructed,.
the City shall convey all the Utilities to MSID 500, on the condition. that MSID 500 shall grant to
Interchange the right to tie-on to all the Utilities for the use and benefit of all the Interchange
Property without the requirement to pay any additional tie-on fees or charges whatsoever, provided
that MSiD 500 is entitled to charge its usual and customary connection fees and related charges to
the ultimate end users who connects to the water and sewer which are charged to users, as opposed
to developers, of utility services in the City.  The current schedule.of connection fees and related
charges are set forth on Exhibit" C", affixed hereto and by this reference made a part hereof,

3.       Interchange agrees to annex the hitercha.nge Property and the Rest Area Tract ( as
heleinafter defined) into the City by a voluntary petition commenced on or before May 2, 2003. In
return. O e City agrees to zone all of the Interchange Property and all of the Rest Area Tract 1- 1,
except for that portion of the Interchange Property which lies west of White Oak Bayou and that
portion of the Interchange .Property which lies within Section 12, T2N, R13W, Pulaski County,
Arkansas, which the City agrees to zone as C-2, provided, however, at any time during the
Construption Period, upon the written direction by Interchange to the City, the City shall agree to
zone or rezone any portion of the Interchange Property or the Rest Area Tract to a zoning
classification which Interchange shall so direct in writing.  Furthermore, the City agrees to permit
the installation ofabove ground electric lines for feeder circuits along and adjacent to the Roadway
and in areas permitted for installation of the Utilities within the Right-of,vay-

4.       The City covenants and agrees that the City will complete construction of the
Roadway and Utilities within two ( 2) years ( the " Construction Period") after the dateof this

Agreement, provided, however, that if construction ofRoadway and Utilities commences during
such two ( 2) year period, then the Construction Period shall be extended for such period of

substantial tine, continuous consstruction of same up to a maxinit ni of one ( 1) additional year.
lntetch,irgc acknowledges that the construction of the Roadway and Utilities rmav actually be

Page 2 of 7



performed and paid for by Pulas-ki County Arkansas, the Arkansas State Highway Department, MSID
500, or other governmental entity, private individual, business entity or person(" Other Persons"),

and Interchange agrees that performance by any ofsuch Other Persons shall constitute performance
by the City pursuatit to tiles Agreement.

5.       Interchange shall retain all rights under A.C.A. §27- 67- 322 to reacquire from the

Arkansas Higliway Departrnent any surplus land included within the tract ofland on which the now-
closed Interstate 1- 40 rest area was located and which is the area contiguous to the Interchange
Property and is designated the" rest area" on the.Development Map( the" Rest Area Tract') but the

exact legal description of the Rest Area Tract shall be determined by a survey obtained by
Interchange at its expense and subject to the approval of Interchange. The obligations of Interchange
pursuant.to this Agreement are expressly conditioned upon the Rest Area Tract being reconveyed
to Interchange by the State of Arkansas pursuant to the terms ofACA§ 27- 67.322.

6.       The obligations ofInterchange pursuant to this Agreement are expressly conditioned
upon the execution and closing of that Agreement For the Dedication of Right of Way. Road
Construction., Annexation and the Provision of Certain Municipal Services ( the " Newton Ridge
Agrreemf."nt") entered into effective on the Effective Date by and between the City and Newton
Ridge, LLC. Further, any default pursuant to Sections 1 or 2 ofthe Newton Ridge Agreement shall
entitle Interchange to exercise the rights set forth in Section 13 hereof.

7.       The obligations ofeach of Interchange and the City pursuant to this Agreement are .
expressly conditioned upon the City obtaining approval from the Arkansas State Highway
Depattmtnt' s agreement and authorization to allow constriction or construct an access to the

Interstate Highway 1- 40 by the Roadway at the Rest Area Tract.

No provision in this Agreement shall be deemed waived, amended, or modified' by
either party unless such waiver. amendment. or modification is in writing and signed by the party
against . Vhorn it is sought to enforce the waiver. amendment, or modification. This agreement
constitutes the entire agreement between the City and Interchange with respect to the subject matter
hereof and shall not be amended or modified without specific written additional provisions to that

effect signed by both parties. No oral statement of any person whomsoever shall in any manner,
decree. Lnodify or otherwise affect the terms and provisions of this Agreement and the obligations
of the respective parties.

5.       The parties agree and understand that the Agreementmust be considered and adopted

by the City. Council. Further, the parties understand that any waiver of city ordinance or zoning,of
property must likevnse be accomplished by action of the City Council. The parties will work in
concert to accomplish the same.

10.      This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

Page 3 of 7



11.     If any provision or portion of thereof of this Agreement is invalid under applicable

statute or rule oflaw, it is only to that extent to be deemed omitted and the remaining provisions will
survive. Arkansas law shall govern the provisions of this.At reement.

12.     Any notice to be given hereunder by either party to the other shall be in writing and
shall be deemed given when sent by postage pre-paid certified mail or the equivalent. Notice to the
City shall he addressed to: City of Maumelle. AT"rN': Mayor, 550 rdgewood Drive, Suite 590,
Maunlelle, AR 72113.  Notice to Interchange shall be addressed to: 410 West Third Street, Smite

120, Little Rock, Arkansas 72201, Attention: Jill Taylor, with a copy to G. Robert Hardin, Hardin
Grace, P. A., 410 West Third, Suite 200, Little Rock, Arkansas 72201. Ifeither party changes its

address during the term hereof it shall so advise the other party in writing and any notice thercafter
required to be given shall he sent by certified mail or the equivalent to such new address.

13.      In addition to any other remedies permitted by applicable law which Interchange may
have as a result of a breach ofany of the provisions of this Agreement by the City, the City agrees
that Interchange shall have the right and option to de-annex or detach from the City pursuant to ACA

14-40- 1801 ( c) or ACA § 14-40-2002 or ACA§ 14- 40-2101 in the event the City fails to timely
comply with any of the covenants of the City set forth in Sections 1 and 2 of this Agreement or
Sections 1 and 2 of the Newton Ridge Agreement. In the event that Interchange elects its remedy
to de- annex or detach from the City pursuant to any of the provisions of this Section 13, the City
shall agree to take such action required to accomplish such de-annexation or detachment from the
City as shall be required by Arkansas law.

IN WITNTSS WHEREOF. the parties hereto have executed this Agreement with duplicate
originals as below reflected.

CITY OF 1 L3ME

BY: 
G ct7

DATE:

INTE   ' RANGE, LLC

LE: /     .- t-fit.

DATE:

E ', WIvOOit'S,', T51" DOCU!NfEN' MOMFn:e nan lamcAAWamnem City Maum ile n:tdlnterdmttge 6.a-Pd

Pace 4 of 7



Exhibit" A"

Description of Interchange Property

Property on the West side of interstate-40 located in Sections 1, Section 2, and Section 12,
To-wnship 2 North, Range 13' v'Vest, Pulaski County, Arkansas more particularly described as follows:

C: ommcneing at the common corner between Sections 1, 2, 11, and 12 which is the Southeast corner
of Section 2 thence along the South line of Section 2 North 89° 31' 53" West, 2,641. 80 feet to the
Southwest corner oftine Southeast Quarter ofSection 2, thence along the West line ofsaid Southeast
Quarter North 000 59' 38" East, 1, 316.43 feet; thence leaving said West line South 89' 48' 27" East,
1, 313. 28.feet; 'thence North 00° 39' 53" East, 2, 632. 55 feet; thence North 891 52' 54" West, 1, 974.90
feet; thence North 000

19' 48" East, 1, 285. 08 feet to a point on the North line of Section 1 thence
along said North line of Section 1 South 89" 53' 29" East, 963. 39 feetto apoint onthe West right-of-
way line ofInterstate-40, thence along said West right-of-way line South 020 36' 52" East, 19.48 feet,
thence leaving said West right-of-way line South 87155' 38" West, 915. 00 feet; thence South 01° 21'
07" West. 773. 50 feet; thence South 69° 12' 00" East 1, 207.80 feet to a point on the West right-of-
way lisle bf Interstate-40, thence continuing along Die said West right-of-way line of Interstate-40
South 11" 45' 30" East, 1, 334.71 feet; thence along the said West right-of-way line South 144' 15' 39"
East, 1, 1. 01. 13 feet; thence continuing along said ' Vest right-of-way line South 17° 22' 09" East,
703. 49 feet; thence South 110 39' 30" East, 126.52 feet to a point on the East line of the Southwest

Quarter cif Section 1, thence leaving said West right-of-way along said East line of the Southwest
Quarter cf Section 1 South 001 11' 34" Nest, 832.50 feet to the Southwest corner of the Southwest
Quartet-of Section I; thence along the South line of said Section. 1 South 89° 34' 57" West, 660.82
feet; thence South 00° 29' 40" West, 1, 318.48 feet; thence North 89° 2738" West, 1, 975. 65 feet to

a point on the West line of Section 12, Township 2 North, Range 13 West, thence along said West
line Nort=h 00° 09' 54" East, 1, 316. 15 feet to the point ofbeginning containing 437.40 acres more or
less.

Page 5 of 7



k$ \ s.,S     `
4A i +i1' 1 1     „`' aJi1"   `.'

I1•  ' 1 IVL' S  x tCN1iY    ,..•..      .'/   ` C_. J,..._\, t t  + .. i   !. i ('' ta.      
a''•    ,'

1
r, l7*jjlr' h'-i;`.   `. .     5     j

I no WAAA tn
it/ r''" 

i'    ' `'! f       ' it , f
O[ tl t a c h '  ...:.-/•. r... •i j1I. S pl l,!. L•k"

c..._

li 1'. ;,; j'`'({"„?-elf

fI

F.,
fgv

I_
Ia   /!   

3t Wf 1.. 
AEC' ELOPMENT MAP PAGE 2 1  )

IT
J   . 1

SHOWING WATER ' LTNE AND
CAL" A Ali i-': f 1

Y. lt
hi

i
SEWER T'OC?(; C.. M.!aIN

ail} r Fl . . ir _       .

j•,

j\   I     -     ,..—_.._....,   \    

i r..  ::r AN    !. 14D PO OF CONSTRUCT

nr1:

N342 )
I•' nCG

s
y    ."  f

1,,( i l•  __       c i 4!0.'
n '\ ,:

4:, 

iw'
ti”   'i

F(
C)    __ -rfpa?,

I
1(

pyo
f.N S-lACI j If f

s  `
1 l-.•.

j   

J,

tY
r'"'.,  

JUi' f. f'CP     \  . 
1 `:

p       .,.,,
t G///•

1` •/`      ail{

r? TrNlP' `       
r j,

r
V ti”      l

r

r
t+yt 1 f

l r k 4 Yr.'•,
f li      t j  -J-  } \       •_`       1 { /        1 Y•YurJ A 1

i

f. .T , t.      '•''      
1 a:     l, a.. i.,    

r•.«-  

1  '    . WM1 
11r, r    .._- 

K±

W,^ rG.<,•_'•„ 11 1: L\:"'  `   ;. r l
f!,{yf/

I6T!'', 7. iti. _'\.
J'....

r7'  _.

f T' Z 3-  + a Y.. r      , 7,'.4f'i' 7,i•,

y   +      -  

Kt.   • r;•.
r>..  i   .%,,.,       , i\.     

E\ 1, as v r
1yr; f,' ra.,.;•-,__:•;-,.,   ,.,.:... s.  i..     

j -     ( _     a
r Y i. ..     i`. i

d I';,:.,-.   , l
I trt; /,.    -'

v   `.-  'a   11 x.       a
1

y

1"'    f. h. nr: t la    l }     1   /`' ty•:_-• y

4- 12" VGA 1 IE   S"     Y,  i       •   r :.,• u  44}  
S t I      r>wdt•Us r   ._ I t.   t y    , a

t
6-•- 

I  `
4„,

1' !. 1 iL 1711, j1;" 1  ` •.'

F il 1,

lr      '`
ll . k i• 8S\ y-_...       .,i'  i 14' S!

Y`
1Q  tt'''',,  ')     Ua.     

I it
Y       • 

I  ]    

Ci J1 J...   `       '—"—      )
1'

Til ... St 4Ui f            ,.

y\•"
J<:V`

p iyJii\
t'{' i{ r

i         
r

J  '`^"
1J L7'"    ,!  C`, j Jr l¢. 

SI. C. e lM   

11
3 Y Y1-      r K; r

y'•"  Yr%:a a      l Ji_  
c.    

aCir 1[ 651;

11       "    

1    \\   
i`      il   may,i'`d

Jc, 3 B
L..    y :-  (}TC.,. u      .-^-  1I C CI:. A  . e     "'     I

a
I\'  / 1- r¢  l   !      , 1•^ 4:

MAU1GiEt_.t..E CL•     s( l,   
hl  • x •; i ct      " ''     C r       

r% i-...,_""     
t`liati/  

i•i
t     '«

i

X  
Z'' I..T    + Lr.       >,  J,', r,    

rs./-   Via' _-;:`,      •
cj i' ' 4 st' i`\r t

d  !.. I M\.- fes CAkNA      V E:   NS   
J"...-•'"   / /   ,

p'-... J  .:
R!:

1:  '•'__ Y     y-.._.    .-_......_

t

LJ 5EW 7-0,`    
o

di 1'      1.-.  o V 4'`

JS1 
T,  /'      

C x,...`,,
L,^

x`/
7•' 1       <\'`!•

a

l\ P' '/ J
T.. i  '"'

1.

I
C_..;

t
tT.

t.

ra    
dd ftl.    -  

r       \    
y 1f1

els   
r--+..'-'  t

v(..• +   \   `_ 5,";
y'
y 1,  ` t   /

I

TA     •..
r'

i
f`  ://  ..  

t  ,      

f       ^ Wti:ti: .•^=:    J,' ,     
1 fit%{     -"     \

eta

a.  

r`   
rl Nr',

1
J t 5'  

y:
c       •\',..   

1i{    ++.`   

l`

g:*
AIN

fr•
r,:,s     =; 1  .. r•      s C\ ,

i 
o -•  l-•--,' `t , r ^,.,-'

ti'"r 1
h

a...   

1

cam_  t,J f-     / r/,._ ._•;

FT. ,-: 
1 1    .. .

Jtil t  _?'      
1

a•     N
o/   Cp      /'    `:

s, \. \  `

1} t.11\ fIll 1;,I  ,+    
ti J

r  ,

t' t  • t/       , J1  

Pl/     /  
L"7  

I
tAP'_.- .\.

l%'.+"'.".,'     

r  •

L•?   • a
t`     "

y' y`;j\ T' "'.'
j '-

X 2""   

a''  '.
I

uli, za.   "' 111.:`\.   n 1r• l11.. lr, fA'rr-<.  ," i=-'' c- g



Exhibit" C"

MSID 500 Current Schedule of Connection Fees

Attached

Page 7 of 7



04/ 21/ 2003 ld! 48 FA-T 501 851 0415 K30#500AKARAUYELLEWATER Q4,001

MAUDWAF,WATFR NANAGLMEn

WATT WLE-GH MES& M RELAIMCIALOES

METER SIZE CONNECTION DEPOSIT MW BII..LIUSAGB

H R •'e

W4" X 518"     5-3- 3 R1" 30/ RES      $ 5.4612600 GAY..

50/ BLDR

314" SPRINXLPR SL  ' D st0 5.4612600 GAY.

gla 00

3.   1" DISK METER 0V(' 100 24.461 11, 400 GAL.

11/2" DISK METER SrF56." 240 48.9I ! 22,9W GAL_

I 8op
2" COMPOUND 0 400 95. 60/ 40,000 GAL

METER
w

3" CONPQUND s 1000 189.54 96,000 GOAL

METER

rte 00
4" COMPOT-M 53489KXf 1640 324.051 184,000 GAL

METEX

3/4" AND I" METERS WILL BE FURidiSHED AND SET BY MVVK ALL LARD
METERS WILL BE FUlEi i SHED BY MWM AND SET BY TBE CONTRACTOR.
METERS LARGER THAN I 1/ 2" MUST HAVE A BYPASS ASSEMBLY.

2" ELE IDM ANI hlE= K WITH MZ.ALM VAIXE ASSEMBY
A$ 1000 RMJNDABLE DEPOSIT IS REQUIRED BEFORE METER IS ATTACHED

TO HYDRANT PLUS A$200 SERVICE CHARGE FOR FIRST MONTH OR PART
TEMMF WITH A S 100 SERVICE CHARGE PER MONTH AFTER THE FIRST
MONTH.& ISTOMER WJLI. BE BMUM FOR WATER AT NORMAL RATES AND

UMM& 3MS SUR A 2" METER IN ADDITION TO THE SMtVICE CHARMS.

SFV CONNEC'ITc2rLFFF+ AN[l REIN= CH81KMS

SEWER CN) NNECTION CONNECTION CHARGE IKSPECTION FES '

4" SERVICE 3375 25

6" SERVICE 1200 23

SEWER SERVICE CHARGES ARE 1000, OF WATER CHARGES_ THMM ARE NO
SEWER CHARGES ON WATER USED THROUGH SPRINKLER&MIERS.



EX IBIT

aa

AGREEMENT FOR CONVEYANCE OF CONSERVATION EASEMENT

This Agreement For Conservation Easement( this" Agreement") is entered into
effective lune 22, 2005 ( the" Effective Date") by and between The City of Maumelie
the "City"), a duly organized city of the first class in Pulaski County, Arkansas, with

its principal location at 550 Edgewood Drive, Suite 590, Maurrelle, Arkansas 72113,
and Newton Ridge, LLC (" Newton Ridge"), an Arkansas limited liability company.

WHEREAS, the City and Newton Ridge entered into an Agreement For the
Dedication of Right of Way, Road Construction, Annexation and the Provision of
Certain Municipal Services dated effective May 2, 2003 ( the " Road Agreement");

WHEREAS, the City is required to commence construction of the Roadway
and Utilities ( as defined in the Road Agreement) prior to May 2, 2005 and complete
Construction of same prior to May 2, 2006, pursuant to the terms of the Road
Agreement;

WHEREAS, the City has been delayed in obtaining the approvals necessary to
dommence construction of the Roadway and requires an additional conveyance of
easements from Newton Creek and an extension of its deadlines to construct the
Roadway and Utilities pursuant to the Road Agreement; and

WHEREAS, each of the parties have an interest in insuring improvements to
the Property and to access to the interstate highway.

NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Newton Ridge has contemporaneously with the execution of this
Agreement executed and deliver to the City a conservation easement in the form
marked Exhibit " A" and affixed hereto ( the" Conservation Easement Grant").

2.       Section 4 of the Road Agreement is hereby amended to provide as
follows:

4.     The City covenants and agrees that the City will
complete construction of the Roadway and Utilities prior to June 30,
2006( the   " Construction Period"),   provided,   however,   that if,

construction of Roadway and Utilities commences prior to June 30,
2007, then the Construction Period shall be extended for such period
of substantial and continuous construction of same up to a maximum
of one ( 1) additional year.   Newton Ridge acknowledges that the

construction of the Roadway and Utilities may actually be performed
and paid for by Pulaski County Arkansas, the Arkansas State Highway
Department,  MSID 500,  or other governmental entity,  private

individual, business entity or person (" Other Persons"), and Newton

Ridge agrees that performance by any of such Other Persons shall
constitute performance by the City pursuant to this Agreement."

3.       In the event that the City fails to construct the Roadway and Utilities
as provided in Section 4 of the Road Agreement as amended in Section 2 of this

Agreement, then the City agrees, at the City' s election, to ( i) reconvey all rights

Page 1 of 3



arising from the Conservation Easement to Newton Ridge withing thirty ( 30) days
after expiration of the Construction Period or( ii) pay to Newton Ridge the fair market
value of the Conservation Easement as determined by a competent appraiser
selected by Newton Ridge and paid by the City within sixty ( 60) days after the
expiration of the Construction Period.  The provisions of this Section 3 are intended

to give a remedy to Newton Ridge to compensate it for the conveyance of the
Conservation Easement for the City's failure to perform its obligations pursuant to
Section 4 of the Road Agreement and such remedy shall be in addition to any other
remedies to which Newton Ridge is entitled pursuant to the Road Agreement.

4.      This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon
the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

5.       If any provision or portion of thereof of this Agreement is invalid under
applicable statute or rule of law, it is only to that extent to be deemed omitted and
the remaining provisions will survive.   Arkansas law shall govern the provisions of
this Agreement.

6.       Any notice to be given hereunder by either party to the other shall be
in writing and shall be deemed given when sent by postage pre-.paid certified mail
or the equivalent. Notice to the City shall he addressed to: City of Maumeile. ATTN:
Mayor, 550 Edgewood Drive, Suite 590, Maumelle, AR 72113. Notice to Newton
Ridge shall be addressed to: 221 West Second Street, Suite 312, Little Rock, AR
72201, Attention: ] ill Taylor, with a copy to G. Robert Hardin, Hardin& Grace, P. A.,
500 Main Street, Suite A, North Little Rock, Arkansas 72114. If either party changes
its address during the term hereof it shall so advise the other party in writing and
any notice thereafter required to be given shall he sent by certified mail or the
equivalent to such new address.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. the parties hereto have executed this Agreement with
duplicate originals as below reflected.

CITY OF AUMEL

BY:

TITLE:

DATE:

NB
E40N R       , LLC

n

TITLE:/'' J, q-.r. 4G 62
DATE: , 7-,4w,c_   _- 2-,,

w2kserver\ rs\ WINDOWS\ WPS1\€ DOCUMENT\ rSOB\ Freeman James\ CongervationGrantAgreementCltyMaumetie2. wpd

Page 2 of 3



Conservation Easement which shalt become a part of this Conservation Easement and
recorded with it, or by recording a separate subordination agreement pertaining to any
such Lien.

L. Any notices by Grantor to Grantee pursuant to any Term hereof shall be sent by
registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to City of Maumelle,
Arkansas, having an address at City of Maumelle. ATi`N: Mayor, 550 Edgewood Drive,

Suite 590, Maumelle, AR 72113, or to such other address as Grantee may establish in
writing on notification to Grantor, or to such other address as Grantor knows to be the
actual location of Grantee.

M. For purposes of this Conservation Easement, ''Grantor`"shall mean only, at any
given time, the then current fee simple owner of the Property and shall not include the
original Grantor herein unless said original Grantor is still the then current fee simple
owners of the Property,  except that if any Grantor has violated any term of this
Conservation Easement, he shall continue to be liable therefor.

N.  In any case where the Terms of this Conservation Easement require the
permission, consent or approval (" Approval") of Grantee, the Approval shall be requested

by written notice to Grantee prior to the proposed activity or use. Grantee shall consider
the specific Term of this Conservation Easement requiring the Approval, the purpose of
this Conservation Easement and the conservation values listed in Exhibit B. The Approval

shall be deemed to have been given unless within ninety (90) days after receipt of notice
Grantee mails notice to Grantor of disapproval and the reason therefore. In the event of
a conflict between this paragraph and a Term requiring Approval, the Term requiring
Approval shall prevail.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD unto Grantee, its successors and assigns, forever. The
covenants agreed to and the terms, conditions, and restrictions imposed as aforesaid shall

be binding upon Grantor, its successors, agents, assigns and all other successors to them
in interest, and shall continue as a servitude running in perpetuity with the Property.

AND Grantor covenants that it has not done or suffered to be done any act, matter
or thing whatsoever, to encumber the interest in the Property hereby conveyed; that it
will warrant specially the Property granted and that it will execute such further assurances
of the same as may be requisite.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor and Grantee have hereunto set their hands and
seals the day and year above written.

GRANTOR:

NewtonF LLC
r

Jf
lames t. Freeman, Manager

Z

Page - 8-



GRANTEE:

The City of Maumelle, Arkansas

By:  
Name:

Title:

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
STATE OF ARKANSAS
COUNTY OF PULASKI

On this the 22id

day of June, 2005, before me, the undersigned officer, personally
appeared James I. Freeman, who acknowledged himself to be the Manager of Newton
Ridge, LLC, an Arkansas limited liability company, and that he, as such Manager, being
authorized so to do,  executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein
contained, by signing the name of the limited liability company by himself as Manager.

WITNESS my hand and official seal this 22" d
day of Ju e, 

i
005.

ejA.
NOTARY PPBLIC3

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
STATE OF ARKANSAS

T '
15'      °

COUNTY OF S' Yt COO*

On this the day of June, 2005, before me, the undersigned officer, personally
appeared who acknowledged himself to be the

of The City of Maumelle,  Arkansas,  and that he,  as such

being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument for the
Purposes therein contained, by signing the name of the The City of Maumelle, Arkansas
by;himseif as

WITNESS my hand and official seal this day of June, 2005.

NOTARY PUBLIC
This Instrument Prepared By-
G. Robert Hardin
Hardin & Grace, P. A.

410 West Third, Suite 200
Little Rock, Arkansas 72201

w?karrvrr\ fa\ w(N[) OWS\ WPri, DOCUMF.NT\ BOB\ Freeman James interchangeLLC\ MoumeNeeonservatian(-asement3. wp6

Page - 9-



sands lying in the Northeast "./4 of the Noilheast 1/ 4 of Section 2, Township 2 North,
ano,e 13 West, Pulaski County, Arkansas more n miculaflv descril)cd as follows:

Commencing at the northeast corner of said Section 2 thence along the north line of said
Section 2 North 88 degrees 40 rAinutes .14 seconds West 40. 51 feet to the point of
beginning: thence leavin,-,said north line South 19 degrees 36 minutes 0 1 seconds West
246. 70 feet. thence Southth 51 degrees 11. nmutes 00 seconds West 205. 39 feet; thence
South 66 degrees 56 minutes 06 seconds West 196.17 feet; thence South 51 degrees 57
minutes 35 seconds West 143. 72 feet, thence South 42 degrees 12-minutes 14 seconds
West 147. 89 feet. thence South 34 degrees 3) 1. minutes 23 seconds West 182.38 feet;
thence South 02 degrees 37 minutes 55 seconds West 226.68 feet; thence South 39
degrees 08 minutes 42 seconds East 276.43 teet: Thence South 09 degrees 22 minutes 40
seconds East 70. 62 feet;- thence along the south line of said NE 1/ 4, NTE 1/ 4 North 88
degrees 29 minutes 16 seconds Wes', 467-85 ifeet, thence North 38 degrees 20 minutes 03

seconds West 15 3. 2 5 feet; the.-ace North 17 degrets 17 minutes 12 seconds West 125. 08
feet; thence North 00 degrees 15 ininutes 25 seconds East 154. 27 feet: thence North 15
degrees 25 minutes 40 seconds East 297.95 fecttht-.ace North"'? degrees 41 minutes 38

seconds East 242. 83 feet, thence North 26 degrees 00 minutes 09 seconds East 426. 10

feet to a point on the north tire on said Section 2; thence along the north line of said
Section 2 South 88 degre rs 40 minutes 14 seconds East 781. 28 feet to the point of
beginning contauiina 16. 500 acres more or less.



EXHIBIT" B"
SIGNIFICANT CONSERVATION FEATURES

The Property includes a portion of the waterway known as the White Oak Bayou and its
immediate bank area. This area has significant old growth cypress trees and aquatic vegetation
and will be a visually pleasing area vvhen seen by the public in the adjacent roadway planned
for construction by the City of Maumelle, Arkansas. The public will have a spectacular view of
thisarea from the newly planned elevated roadway.  The White Oak Bayou is a major wildlife
corridor for the central Arkansas region and has many attractive water features.  Further, the

White Oak Bayou is a fertile wildlife breading ground with a diverse presence of indigenous
wildlife.



r

i .

nom-•,    

v

A  '

tr  .•,. 

Ya

r..#

r

44r •

r-

e-'.      

r

r''

X   `

y

r

TXAIB_
IT
C- 

PAGE
1

SOU

MEAST
CORNER

il;

LL

LOOKING
WEST

S ^

v

d'   ` ?: ',

g"

cc.

s,

a,

4.`.

i  ^....       

4`
f

e.

a

cf'• 

u       -

y.'

t, 

3tai

R

yC'
A   

T

71

R.,,  .. ,

F,,..  '.`,

axi
a    '"      

h•      

yI'
i

r

y 

R

a

w

J     ..

t.       ..  

ss ,< ,..•  

N4'.     

yam,.,
v-   ^':.

ra

w

Y

Yr,  

A
y.

EWA

S> 

a•

fx  , 

fit

nc
ID
D

t    

au

l,;

a,-  

r      '      

it

JE:..

y+•  ..•

t..'

t.       .:+•.. .'.`..,         

a

a,--.. >$'    

a ':

Ff*"      

SII

r-

r
d.. 

a'^'

4    

t

s5u .+

i: '*

F!'
S'•.     

e.

5-

i      

t      ,

d7l
t

j -,

r'`,    

t   •'-_     

i°  ..  '_     

ss
t

E  ,

fit     +.

t,.   

k,    

ct ;,

xr.,..

Y;



IRI1
C-'

t1.

GF
2

LOOKING
KOM

s-
r

i7+.

7{       

t

vat

j-'  ' 

s
3.'

X    ':

s

i'•

t'

S•
v_

RL

r•..       

k4

f

y,`

k.-

fii

SIMAM

pft.'^,

c'

iA

r.. 

Rf

i'
s+

Lf   -

r

m

r _ .

rte.     

1

id
f

a:

Jil          _   

i

ell,
b     ,

lR

J

p:;,,

s     ,   

v{    

sr

s    .

Re'

Cs
sf• 

5  ', 

r

ata.».    

J'       

v5. .,

f       '.'

yt,
3 +

i,      

Y .

t       



k'-.i      i'VFE         SW•.      +r..:   .-
F

f  ;    
a

r
l    %L35i.fY'«   ,ri

z      

t1
1  '  { ''  vi"       ,a  .  " 

a   {     ,w
4'tff'  4ts`    P1

a+ ,    

nh

e

fr3a
y  .'   

I  aft

x      Pn `.ry :y,    k -       `ifsr^e        tYIqtytt,
y,

y¢
w

rlr ,

Xij

Of

Fi

r .     

i 
t

r,.

SS

ar•'       lq:e°  !-   ;'-     ,h.
rr   •ttf   ,.{

i'''  
qf #    ,f

yC.  r  ;,, Ke ,'.   
a};  

X.^ 

c"
f.,+     '  .'

1  ,..      z
a.,     

r.,,iS,rr    ;

y'  ;     

ff,:k ,  "F"'    {i"   7r +.    _  'p     '
L `

v "    5y   '•       
yq;.lj.;j'

s
fy"  .,  U,,;.:. .,   ;Stoyt, str .t>.t.•     {f,.;c  ,ga-r.,   ,rt•   ;   _.'     '•

y '.
ffP

iPate
j

Yq" . +
q',.pp, xi`     F`x' ' sk    ;bb` '.  ,   'cam„'   ,"

fit    +
T•.w '"1,_    

ti.       is ;
00. .'-c

t'?         
tyri' wz  ,      

i     *'`
iri    

jwy4x '
a

ice+, qsf
As;. 'F,':     

a     Ta=      .+?C'.•'$    ,, ,
r    2'`-t{;     '`'.

a
5..  ,,•,,    .

n..Mpt'"4r4  13^'     t -; ,„s, t.'^   
vry  „

3d'. '    "r,.     +:  +[aa9 ,
y,54y..   r,  ,

t  ,t`4ai
ae< `'

ah1     rtt''
sa'   ,.       ?t,(     `    .

aqt    } •  

i.3a4b

t.?.'..y,,
tf it94d'"•

4ry       `r
i   

tf

r       "rEi. v +j;r    ^`"'.

t
SLa

Stsri:'•
tir$      

a

P "`
t    ,.<  ` .  'Py'v

Aa    ,  }, c     ,.,,^  +:;',       ,•;p
r  { -

t .     _

Acv4 11w}`    r     `ff3'       Sf
J  y•   r, iii

E  {.   
R^,

3,„  '
ia • 

j
1„:      }     A <  k'

L1.     .r...   t  -y
yc*y,r'

1yya`

fit .!ltK.d,.       }

WzQ_     

4  ysS,„      a
SSf   'G1kM  :a( 3.

W4'„  r `,.
r  ',"rt ,'yS:-Hif   t. 

ft    'r•Yf:    `'f':"'rYo,



w  ,

y

t

EWIBIT
c- 

PAGE '
4

i1VAi,.
lt-
J:.

JT
L,

GICtl

Ml
g_

1,.

gall

1

l   ^{'{

y

v

nW  `

i-   

ham•   ..

b

s

r,  

fi

x

Y.}

L



c

NW COR., NB 114, NE 114,
Vi S ON 2,

T-2--N, R- 13—W, I

FA- PIPE ;   ' UWKICOLWN,A.R.       UN1 Y pfPrP cr   

18804W44% M3.24 .       POB 3536 i

40.52'

7.952 AC.     Q      
gg1'

w

S   ° 36' 06
r y

ch:•::  

is/   19637"    

OA 7 S5 llr-35V

n: 
p +Q..,., ',._ s:..:-:     }''  T 542..12 1,4"W

YJf: f îai,'•`'?(
ccr..    }

j:

f1

125,08'    

467.       +.'`  PIN tt
FENCE

QORNEF# W/ SSV COR", 1E 114, NB 1/ 4,     N       ' 16''1 '
3+ C' i'tON 2,    SERN$1RNEI

1 T- 2N,R- 13—W.       
f'    fry 1 rn   *' n     '



EXHIBIT " D"

SURVEY

The Survey for the Property is date stamped June 22, 2005 and has been filed with the
Municipal Clerk' s Office for the City of Maumelle, Arkansas and is available for inspection in that
office and is incorporated herein by this reference_



Exhibit " A"

Form of Conservation Easement Grant

Attached

Page 3 of 3



EXHIBIT

DEED OF CONSERVATION EASEMENT

THIS DEED OF CONSERVATION EASEMENT(" Conservation Easement") made this
22' day of June, 2005, by and between Newton Ridge, LLC, an Arkansas limited liability
company having an address at 221 West Second Street, Suite 312,  Little Rock, AR
72201, Attention: Jill Taylor (" Grantor") and the City of Maumelle, Arkansas, having an
address at City of Maumelle, ATTN: Mayor, 550 Edgewood Drive, Suite 590, Maumelle,
AR 72.113 (" Grantee").

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS the Grantee is governmental unit described in § 170( b)( 1)( A)( v) of the

Internal Revenue Code, which is committed to protect the conservation purposes of the
donation herein by Grantor and has the objective to conserve open space and the natural.
and scenic qualities of the environment,  among other things,  and is a qualified
organization within the meaning of Section 170( h)( 3) of the Internal Revenue Code;

WHEREAS Grantor owns In fee simple 16. 5 acres, more or less, of certain real
property (the " Property") situate, lying and being in Pulaski County, Arkansas, and more
particularly described in Exhibit A attached hereto;

WHEREAS Grantorand Grantee recognize the open- space conservation value of the
Property in its present state, as a natural and rural area that has not been subject to
deVeiopment, and have identified significant conservation features in Exhibit B attached
hereto;

WHEREAS Grantor and Grantee have previously entered into an Agreement for the
Dedication of Right of Way, Road Construction, Annexation, and the Provision of Certain
Municipal Services dated effective May 2, 2003 ( the" Road Agreement"), which in addition
to other matters required the Grantee to construct a Roadway ( as defined the Road
Agreement) and to install certain Utilities ( as defined the Road Agreement), and required
Grantor to convey to Grantee a Right-of-Way ( as described in the Road Agreement), and

a portion of such Right-of-Way lies within the Property; and

NOW, THEREFORE, as an absolute gift for no monetary consideration ($ 17. 00) but

in consideration of the facts stated in the above recitals and the covenants, terms,
conditions and restrictions hereinafter set forth ( the" Terms"), Grantor unconditionally
and irrevocably hereby grant and convey unto Grantee,  its successors and assigns,
forever and in perpetuity, a Conservation Easement of the nature and character and to
the extent hereinafter set forth, with respect to the Property:

Page - 1-



The purpose of this Conservation Easement is to maintain the significant
conservation values, including the significant conservation features identified in Exhibit
B and the dominant scenic, cultural, rural, woodland and wetland characteristics of the
Property, and to prevent the use or development of the Property for any purpose or in
any manner that would conflict with these features and characteristics and the

maintenance of the Property in its open- space condition, except as specifically provided
herein.

ARTICLE I:

DURATION OF EASEMENT

Thfs Conservation Easement shall be perpetual. It is an easement in gross and as
such is inheritable and assignable in accordance with Article VI and runs with the land as
an : incorporeal interest in the Property, enforceable with respect to the Property by
Grantee against Grantor and their personal representatives, heirs, successors and assigns.

ARTICLE II.

PROHIBITED AND RESTRICTED ACTIVITIES

A.  Activities, other than private recreational uses, are prohibited on the Property,
except for use of the Property for the installation, repair, maintenance and reconstruction--
of crossing and parallel utility lines providing water, sewer, gas, electric, cable and other
utilities and for drainage structures as Grantor and its assigns may reasonably require for
the development of other lands owned by Grantor and/ or its assigns ( referred to herein
as " Utility and Drainage Installations").

B.  Display of billboards, signs or advertisements is prohibited on or over the
Property, except: ( 1) to state solely the name and/ or address of the Property and/ or the
owners; ( 2) to advertise the sale or lease of the Property;  ( 3) to commemorate the

history of the Property, its recognition under state or federal historical registers, or its
protection under this Conservation Easement or state and local environmental or game

laws; or( 4) to prohibit trespassing or regulate hunting; provided that no sign or billboard
on the Property shall exceed four (4) feet by four (4) feet. Multiple signs shall be limited
to a' reasonable number, shall be placed at least five hundred ( 500) feet apart, shall not
damage living trees, and shall be placed in accordance with applicable local regulations.

C.  Dumping or placement of soil, trash,  ashes,  garbage, waste,  abandoned

vehicles, appliances, machinery and other materials on the Property is prohibited, except
that soil, rock, other earth materials, vegetative matter or compost may be placed as may
be reasonably necessary for the construction and/ or maintenance of Utility and Drainage
Installations permitted under this Conservation Easement and means of access.

D. Excavation, dredging, mining and removal of loam, gravel, soil, rock, sand, coal,
petroleum and other materials are prohibited, except ( 1) for the purpose of combating
erosion or flooding, ( 2) for the construction and/ or maintenance of Utility and Drainage
Installations, means of access and wildlife habitat.

Page - 2-



E. Other than construction and maintenance of Utility and Drainage Installations,
diking, draining, filling, dredging or removal of wetlands is prohibited. " Wetlands" means

portions of the Property defined by Arkansas state law or federal law as wetlands at the
time of the proposed activity.

F. Buildings, means of access and other structures are prohibited on the Property,
except the following:

1) Utility and Drainage Installations, and

2) reasonable means of access to all permitted uses and structures.

Grantor shall notify Grantee at least ninety  ( 90)  days in advance of any
construction or work preparatory to construction.

G. A one- hundred ( 100) foot vegetative buffer strip (" Buffer") along each side of
the White Oak Bayou (" Water Body") lying withing the Property shall be permitted to
naturally vegetate or shall be planted with native species, and once established, shall not
be disturbed, except as may be reasonably necessary for: ( 1) erosion control; ( 2) subject
to Grantee' s approval, wildlife management; ( 3) recreational water uses and associated
structures;  ( 4)  reasonable access for irrigation,  hunting,  fishing,  or trapping;( S)-
construction and maintenance of Utility and Drainage Installations as provided herein
6) reasonable access to the water; ( 7) control of non- native and invasive species or( 8)

subject to Grantee' s approval, reasonable access to the remainder of the Property.
Manure and compost shall not be stored and pesticides,  insecticides,  herbicides or
fertilizers shall not be used or deposited within one hundred ( 100) feet of any creeks,
streams, rivers or shorelines lying within the Property without Grantee' s approval.

H. All rights reserved by Grantor or activities not prohibited by this Conservation
Easement shall be exercised so as to prevent or to minimize damage to water quality, air
quality, land/ soil stability and productivity, wildlife, scenic and cultural values, and the
natuwai topographic and open- space character of the Property.

I. If Grantor believes or reasonably should believe that the exercise of a right not
prohibited by this Conservation Easement may have a significant adverse effect on the
purpose of this Conservation Easement or the conservation Interests associated with the
Property, Grantor shall notify Grantee in writing before exercising such right.

J.  Notwithstanding the foregoing restrictions and any other restrictions on use of
the Property provided herein, the Grantor shall have the right to grant to Grantee, or such
other governmental entity as required by the Road Agreement, the Right-of-Way and the
Grantee or such other governmental entity acquiring the said Right- of-Way shall have the
right;to construction, maintain, repair and reconstruct the Roadway and Utilities withing
the Right- of-Way as contemplated by the Road Agreement at the general location of the
area shown as the " approximate location of proposed bridge" on the Survey referred
herein as Exhibit " ID" ,

Page - 3-



ARTICLE III.

ENFORCEMENT AND REMEDIES

A. Upon any breach of a Term of this Conservation Easement by Grantor, Grantee
may, exercise any or all of the following remedies:

1) institute suits to enjoin any breach or enforce any Term by temporary, and/ or
permanent injunction either prohibitive or mandatory, including a temporary restraining
order; and

2) require that the Property be restored promptly to the condition, required by this
Conservation Easement.

Grantee' s remedies shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to all appropriate legal
proceedings and any other rights and remedies available to Grantee at law or equity. If
Grantor is found to have breached any of Grantor's obligations under this Conservation
Easement,  Grantor shall reimburse Grantee for any costs or expenses incurred by
Grantee, including court costs and reasonable attorney' s fees.

B. No failure on the part of Grantee to enforce any Term hereof shall discharge or
invalidate such Term or any other Term hereof or affect the right of Grantee to enforce-"
the same in the event of a subsequent breach or default.   

C. Grantee, and its ,employees and agents, shall have the right to enter the

Property at reasonable times for the purpose of inspecting the Property to determine
whether the Grantor is complying with the Terms of this Conservation Easement;
provided that, except In cases where Grantee determines that immediate entry is required
to prevent, terminate or mitigate a suspected or actual violation of this Conservation
Easement, such entry shall be upon sending prior reasonable notice to Grantor's last
known address.

ARTICLE IV.

NO PUBLIC ACCESS

The granting of this Conservation Easement does not convey to the public the right
to enter the Property for any purpose whatsoever.

ARTICLE V.

EXHIBITS

The following exhibits are hereby made a part of this Conservation Easement:

A. Exhibit A: Boundary Description and Property Reference is attached hereto and
made a part hereof. Exhibit A consists of one ( 1) page.

B. Exhibit B: Summary ofConservarion Values is attached hereto and made a part
hereof. Exhibit B consists of one ( 1) page.

Page - 4-



C. Exhibit C: Photographs of the Property With Description of photographs and
Photograph Index Numbers are kept on file at the principal office of the Grantee and are
fully and completely incorporated into this Conservation Easement as though attached
hereto and made a part hereof.  Exhibit C consists of four( 4) color photographs and four
4) gages and a portion of the Survey showing the locations where the photographs were

taken.

D. Exhibit D: Survey of the Property prepared by Robert D. Holloway and date
stamped June 22, 2005 ( the" Survey"), is kept on file at the principal office of the Grantee

and is fully and completely incorporated into this Conservation Easement as though
attached hereto and made a part hereof. Exhibit D consists of one ( 1) page.

The parties acknowledge that these exhibits, other than Exhibit D, ( collectively, the
Baseline Documentation") reflect the existing uses, conservation values and structures

on the Property as of the date of this Conservation Easement.

ARTICLE VI.

MISCELLANEOUS

A. Grantee may assign, upon prior written notice to Grantor, its rights under this,
Conservation Easement to any " qualified organization" within the meaning of Section. --
170'(h)( 3) of the Internal Revenue Code or the comparable provision in any subsequent
revision of the Code and only with assurances that the purpose of this Conservation
Easement will be maintained;  and,  if any such assignee shall be dissolved or shall
abandon this Conservation Easement or the rights and duties of enforcement herein set
forth,  or if the proceedings are instituted for condemnation of this Conservation
Easement, the easement and rights of enforcement shall revert to' Grantee;  and if

Grantee shall be dissolved and if the terms of the dissolution fail to provide a successor,
then Grantor, its successors or assigns, shall institute in a court of competent jurisdiction
a proceeding to appoint an appropriate successor as Grantee. Any such successor shat!
be a " qualified organization" within the meaning of Section 170( h)( 3) of the Internal

Revenue Code or the comparable provision in any subsequent revision of the Code. No
assignment: may be made by Grantee of its rights under this Conservation Easement
unless Grantee, as a condition of such assignment, requires the assignee to carry out the
conservation purpose of this Conservation Easement.

B. In order to provide Grantee with notice of a change in ownership or other
transfer of an interest in the Property, Grantor agrees for itself, its successors and
assigns, to notify Grantee in writing of the names and addresses of any party to whom
the Property, or any part thereof, is to be transferred at or prior to the time said transfer
is consummated.

C. Grantee agrees to hold this Conservation Easement exclusively for conservation
purposes, as defined in Section 170( h)( 4)( A) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Page - 5-



D.

0.) The granting of this Conservation Easement gives rise to a property right,
immediately vested in Grantee, with a fair market value equal to the ratio of the value of
this Conservation Easement on the effective date of this grant to the value of the
Protected Property without deduction for the value of the Conservation Easement on the
effective date of this grant. The value on the effective date of this grant shall be the
deduction for federal income tax purposes allowable by reason of this grant, pursuant to
Section 170( h) of the Code. The parties shall include the ratio of those values with the
Baseline Documentation and shall amend such values, if necessary, to reflect any final
determination thereof by the Internal Revenue Service or a court of competent
jurisdiction. For purposes of this paragraph, the ratio of the value of the Conservation
Easementto the value of the Property unencumbered by the Conservation Easement shall
remain constant, and the percentage interests of Grantor and Grantee in the fair market

value of the Property thereby determinable shall remain constant.

2) If circumstances arise in the future that render the entire purpose of this

Conservation Easement impossible to accomplish, this Conservation Easement may only
be terminated or extinguished whether with respect to all or part of the Property, by
judicial proceedings in a court of competent jurisdiction. In the event of any sale of all or
a portion of the Property ( or any other property received in connection with an exchange
or involuntary conversion of the Property) after such termination or extinguishment, and---
after the satisfaction of prior claims and net of any costs or expenses associated with such
sale, Grantor and Grantee shall divide the proceeds from such sale ( minus any amount
attributable to the value of additional improvements made by Grantor after the effective
date of this Conservation Easement, which amount is reserved to Grantor) in accordance
with their respective percentage interests in the fair market value of the Property, as such
percentage interests are determined under the provisions of the preceding paragraph,
adjusted,  if necessary,  to reflect a partial termination or extinguishment of this

Conservation Easement. All such proceeds received by Grantee shall be used by Grantee
in a manner consistent with Grantee' s conservation purposes.

3) If all or any part of the Property is taken under the power of eminent domain
by public, corporate or other authority, or otherwise acquired by such authority through
a purchase in lieu of a taking, Grantor and Grantee shall join in appropriate proceedings
at the time of such taking to recover the full value of the interests in the property subject
to the taking and all incidental or direct damages resulting from the taking. All expenses
reasonably incurred by the parties to this Conservation Easement in connection with such
taking shall be paid out of the recovered proceeds-  Grantor and Grantee shall be

respectively entitled to compensation from the balance of the recovered proceeds in
conformity with the provisions of paragraphs ( 1) and ( 2) ( with respect to the allocation
of proceeds). The respective rights of Grantor and Grantee set forth in this section ( D)

shall be in addition to, and not in limitation of, any rights they may have at common law
with respect to a modification or termination of this Conservation Easement by reason of
the exercise of powers of eminent domain as aforesaid.

4) The Terms of this section ( D) are subject to any applicable Arkansas or Federal
statutes.

Page - 6-



E. Grantor and Grantee may jointly amend this Conservation Easement; provided
that no amendment shall be allowed that will affect the qualification of this Conservation

Easement or the status of Grantee under any applicable state or federal law, including
Section 170( h)  of the Internal Revenue Code.  Proposed amendments will not be
considered unless in the opinion of Grantee they ( 1) have no adverse effect on the

conservation values protected by this Conservation Easement and ( 2) uphold the intent
of the original Grantor and the fiduciary obligation of Grantee to protect the property for
the bene`it of the public in perpetuity. Grantee shall not be required to agree to any
amendment.  Amendments shall be recorded among the Land Records where  -this
Conservation Easement is recorded.

F.  In the event that any applicable state or federal law imposes affirmative
obligations on owners of land which if complied with by Grantor would be a violation of
a Term of this Conservation Easement, Grantor shall: ( i) if said law requires a specific act

without any discretion on the part of Grantor, comply with said law and give Grantee
written notice of Grantor's compliance as soon as reasonably possible, but in no event
more than thirty ( 30) days from the time Grantor begin to comply; or ( ii) if' said law
leaves to Grantor's discretion over how to comply with said law, use the method most
protective of the conservation features of the Property listed in Exhibit B.

G. This Conservation Easement shall be construed to promote the purpose of this
Conservation Easement, including such purposes as are defined in Section 170( h)( 4)( A)----

of the Internal Revenue Code.

H. The Terms of this Conservation Easement do not replace, abrogate or otherwise
set aside any local, state or federal laws, requirements or restrictions imposing limitations
on the use of the Property.

I. This instrument sets forth the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the
Conservation Easement and supersedes all prior discussions, negotiations, understandings
or agreements relating to this Conservation Easement. If any Term Is found to be invalid,
the remainder of the Terms of this Conservation Easement, and the application of such
Term to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is found to be invalid,
shall not be affected thereby.

J. Grantee shall record this instrument in a timely fashion among the Land Records
of Pulaski County, Arkansas, and may re- record it at any time as may be required to
preserve its rights under this Conservation Easement.

K. Grantor certifies that all mortgages and deeds of trust ( collectively " Liens"), if

any, affecting the Property are subordinate to, or shall become subordinate to, the rights
of Grantee under this Conservation Easement. Grantor has provided, or shall provide, a
copy of this Conservation Easement to all mortgagees, and to all beneficiaries and/ or
trustees of deeds of trust ( collectively " Lien holders"), already affecting the Property or
which will affect the Property prior to the recording of this Conservation Easement, and
shall also provide notice to Grantee of all such Liens.  Each of the Lienholders has
subordinated, or shall subordinate prior to recordation, the Liens to this Conservation

Easement either by signing a subordination instrument contained at the end of this

Page - 7-



EXHIBIT

EXHIBIT D

TOLLING AGREEMENT

This Tolling Agreement is effective as of this day of      _     _  , 2011  ( the

Effective Date"), by and between Newton Ridge, LLC, an Arkansas limited liability company
Newton Ridge"), Interchange, L, L,C, an Arkansas limited liability company(" Interchange") and

The City of Maumelle, Arkansas (" City").  City, Interchange, and Newton Ridge are referred to
in this Tolling Agreement as the" Parties."

WHEREAS,  on or about May 2,  2003,  City and Newton Ridge entered into an
Agreement For the Dedication of Right of Way, Road Construction,  Annexation,  and the
Provision of Certain Municipal Services ( the" Newton Ridge Contract'), and

WHEREAS, on or about May 2, 2003, City and Interchange entered into an Agreement
For the Dedication of Right of Way, Road Construction, Annexation, and the Provision of
Certain Municipal Services ( the" Interchange Contract'), and

WHEREAS, among other covenants in the Newton Ridge Contract and the Interchange
Contract, City agreed to complete construction of the Utilities and the Roadway no later than
May 2, 2006, and

i

WHEREAS, a dispute has arisen between the Parties concerning the City' s performance
of the Interchange Contract and the Newton Ridge Contract and construction of the Utilities and
the Roadway and City' s liability and obligations pursuant to the terms of the Interchange
Contract and the Newton Ridge Contract, and

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to cooperate in resolving any and all issues arising out of,
or related to, the dispute between them, and

WHEREAS, the Parties are investigating the dispute and negotiating and discussing the
possible resolution of the dispute, and wish to maintain the status quo of their legal and equitable
relations with respect to the claims or demands of Interchange and Newton Ridge as such claims
and demands existed as of the Effective Date.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and the mutual benefits
and covenants hereinafter set forth,  Interchange,  Newton Ridge and City hereby agree as
follows:

1. It is the intent of the Parties hereto to reserve the state vs quo as of the Effectivep q
Date.  The Parties wish to avoid the necessity of the filing of any actions, suits, or causes of
action, in advance of the expiration of any applicable statutes of limitation or repose during the
term of this Agreement to allow continued efforts to resolve disputes between or among the
Parties, as described herein.  Therefore, the Parties agree that all statutes of limitation, all statutes



of repose, and any other time-related defenses not otherwise tolled, including, but not limited to,
laches, are tolled beginning on the Effective Date, with respect to claims or declaratory relief that
may be asserted by any Party against any other Parties pursuant to the Interchange Contract and
the Newton Ridge Contract.  The terms " Roadway" and " Utilities" shall have the meaning given
those terms in the Interchange Contract and the Newton Ridge Contract.

2. The Parties agree, at this time, to forbear from filing suit with respect to claims or
demands arising in connection with their dispute, and agree to file such suit or causes of action
only after giving notice to the opposing Party/Parties in the manner set forth in paragraph 8
herein.

3.       The Parties specifically agree and acknowledge that this Agreement shall in no
way affect, waive, or limit:

a)      Any claim ofany Party;

b)      Any defense, plea- in-bar, or offset of any party other than the
statutes of limitation, statutes of repose, and other time-related defenses as herein
above set out; but

c)       Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to reinstate or revive
any claim or cause of action not otherwise tolled as of the Effective Date, if such

claim is already barred or has otherwise been rendered invalid by any statutes of
limitation, statutes of repose, or other time-related defense.

4.       The Parties specifically acknowledge that they have made an effort to properly
analyze their respective rights and claims that may exist with a view toward avoidance or
resolution of the same.  All Parties agree, therefore, that this Agreement cannot be introduced

into evidence in any action filed in any court or in any arbitration or mediation proceeding except
to enforce this Agreement itself, or to inform the tribunal of tolling of any defenses based upon
statutes of limitation, statute of repose, or other time-related defense.

5.       The Parties further agree that nothing herein is, or shall be deemed to be, an
admission by either party of liability or wrongdoing.

6.       This Agreement, as well its application and interpretation, shall be governed

exclusively by laws of the State of Arkansas.

7.       All amendments to this Agreement must be in writing and either the typed
original amendment or a copy thereof must be signed by the Parties hereto to be effective.

8. Any Party may terminate this Agreement by giving forty-five ( 45) days prior

written notice of termination to the other Parties.  Notice to each of the Parties shall be deemed
effective when sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, and addressed as follows:



CITY:    The City of Maumelle
550 Edgewood Drive

Suite 590

Maumelle, AR 72113

NEWTON RIDGE: Newton Ridge, LLC

221 W. 2nd Street

Suite A

Little Rock, AR 72201

INTERCHANGE:  Interchange, LLC

221 W. 2nd Street

Suite A

Little Rock, AR 72201

If such notice is given, the Agreement shall remain in force for forty-five (45) days after
the date of mailing of such notice, during which time all statutes of limitation, statutes of repose,
and other time-related defenses, including, but not limited to, laches, shall remain tolled.  Upon

the expiration of the 45- day period, all statutes of limitation and repose, as well as any time-
related defenses previously tolled, shall commence to run and any Party may proceed to assert
any claims against any other Party.

In the absence of notice as provided herein, this Agreement will terminate automatically
on __     20_, whereupon all statutes of limitation and repose, as well as any time
related defenses previously tolled, shall commence to run and any Party may proceed to assert
any claims against any other Party.

NEWTON RIDGE:  INTERCHANGE:

Newton Ridge, LLC Interchange, LLC

By:    By:
Name:    Name:
Title:      Title:

CITY:

The City of Maumelle

By:
Name:

Title:

TOILING AGREEMENT/ 3



EXHIBIT
a

3

W }

Agreement to Escrow Funds and Release

This Agreement to Escrow Funds and Release ( this " Agreement") is entered by and
between the City of Maumelle ( the " City") and Newton Ridge, LLC (" Newton Ridge") dated

effective April 14, 2016.

WHEREAS, the City and Newton Ridge entered into an Agreement For the Dedication of
Right of Way, Road Construction, Annexation and the Provision of Certain Municipal Services
dated effective May 2, 2003 ( the" Road Agreement");

WHEREAS, the City is required to commence construction of the Roadway and Utilities
as defined in the Road Agreement) prior to May 2, 2005 and complete construction of same

prior to May 2, 2006, pursuant to the terms of the Road Agreement;

WHEREAS,  the City has been delayed in obtaining the approvals necessary to
commence construction of the Roadway and requires an additional conveyance of additional real
property and easements from Newton Creek and an extension of its deadlines to construct the
Roadway and Utilities pursuant to the Road Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City and Newton Ridge entered into an Agreement for Conveyance of
Conservation Easement effective June 22, 2005 (" Conveyance Agreement"), and Newton Ridge

subsequently conveyed a Conservation Easement to the City dated August 5, 2005, and recorded
same with the Pulaski County Circuit Clerk and Recorder' s Office as instrument Number
2005068657; and

WHEREAS, the City and Newton Ridge desire to enter into this Agreement for the City
to Deposit funds with an escrow agent to be disbursed as provided herein and to otherwise
release the City from any obligations set for in any Road Agreements,  the Conveyance

Agreement or any other agreements heretofore entered by Newton Ridge with the City.

NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows.

1.  The City and Newton Ridge have executed that Escrow Agreement dated April
2016  ( the  " Escrow Agreement")  contemporaneously with the execution of this
Agreement and a copy of the Escrow Agreement is marked Exhibit A, affixed hereto
and by this reference made a part hereof.

2.  The City shall contemporaneously herewith, deposit the sum of One hundred Twenty-
Three Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars ($ 123, 750.00) ( the " Deposit") with

Lenders Title company ( the " Escrow Agent") to be held pursuant to the terms of the

Escrow Agreement.



3.  The City warrants to Newton Ridge that construction of the Roadway shall
commence on or before October 14, 2018 ( the " Commencement Target Date"), and

the Roadway shall be completed and open for use by the public on or before April 14,
2020 ( the " Completion Target Date"). Further, the City warrants to Newton Ridge
that construction of the Qualified Utilities shall commence on or before the

Commencement Target Date, and the Qualified Utilities shall be completed and

available for connection by Newton Ridge on or before the Completion Target Date.
As used herein, " Qualified Utilities" shall have the meaning set forth on Exhibit B,
affixed hereto and by this reference made a part hereof.  As used herein,  the

Roadway" shall be the hard surface road described on Exhibit C, which Roadway
shall permit access from the lands owned by the Grantee to the Roadway as described
or shown on Exhibit C.

4.  If the construction of the Qualified Utilities shall not commence on or before the

Commencement Target Date, or the Qualified Utilities shall not be completed and

available for connection by Newton Ridge on or before the Completion Target Date,
then Newton Ridge and the City agree to direct the Escrow Agent to distribute the
one- half of the Deposit to Newton Ridge. If the construction of the Qualified Utilities

shall commence on or before the Commencement Target Date and the Qualified

Utilities shall be completed and available for connection by Newton Ridge on or
before the Completion Target Date, then Newton Ridge and the City agree to direct
the Escrow Agent to distribute the one-half of the Deposit to the City.

5.  If the construction of the Roadway shall not commence on or before the
Commencement Target Date, or the Roadway shall not be completed and open for
use by the public on or before the Completion Target Date, then Newton Ridge and
the City agree to direct the Escrow Agent to distribute the one-half of the Deposit to
Newton Ridge. If the construction of the Roadway shall commence on or before the
Commencement Target Date and the Roadway shall be completed and open for use
by the public on or before the Completion Target Date, then Newton Ridge and the
City agree to direct the Escrow Agent to distribute the one- half of the Deposit to the
City.  The City and Newton Ridge shall further direct the Escrow Agent distribute to
the party entitled to a portion of the Deposit any interest accruing to and attributable
to the portion of the Deposit distributed to either the City or to Newton Ridge.

6.  Release. Newton Ridge hereby releases the City from any further obligation set forth
in the Road Agreements or the Conveyance Agreement.

This Agreement is executed by the parties below.

City of Maumelle

By:
Name:

Title:



Newton reek, LLC

By:
N

Ti e:



Exhibit A

Copy of Escrow Agreement

attached



ESCROW AGREEMENT

This Escrow Agreement (this " Agreement") dated as of April 14, 2016, is by and among:

i)       The City of Maumelle, Arkansas ( the " City");

ii)      Newton Ridge,  LLC,  an Arkansas limited liability company  ( the  " Newton

Ridge"); and

iii)     Lenders Title Company, as escrow agent( the " Escrow Agent").

RECITALS

A.       The City and Newton Ridge have entered into an Agreement to Escrow Funds and
Release, dated as of April 14, 2016 ( the " Deposit Agreement"), which provides, among other

things,  for the deposit of the Escrow Amount to Escrow Agent pursuant to this Escrow

Agreement.

B.       Pursuant to the Deposit Agreement, subject to the other terms of the Deposit

Agreement, the City has warranted to Newton Ridge that the Qualified Utilities would be
completely constructed and operational prior to April 14, 2020, and the City has agreed to pay
Newton Ridge one- half the Escrow Amount in the event that the City' s warranty is breached as
to the Qualified Utilities and the City has warranted that the Roadway ( as described in the
Deposit Agreement) would be completely constructed and operational prior to April 14, 2020,
and the City has agreed to pay Newton Ridge one-half the Escrow Amount in the event that the
City' s warranty is breached as to the Roadway.  Otherwise, the Escrow Amount shall be payable
to the City according to the terms of the Deposit Agreement.

C.       The Deposit Agreement also provides that the claim from breach against the City
shall be satisfied first from the Escrow Amount.

D.       The Escrow Agent has agreed to hold the Escrow Amount in accordance with the

terms and provisions contained herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained

herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are
hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1.       Definitions.    Except as hereinafter defined,  capitalized terms used in this

Agreement will have the meanings assigned to such terms in the Deposit Agreement.  As used

herein, the following terms shall have the following respective meanings:

Escrow Amount" means $ 123, 750.

Escrow Fund" means the Escrow Amount plus the amount of any interest or
other income earned thereon held by the Escrow Agent pursuant hereto from time to time.

Page 1



Distribution Instruction" is defined in Section 6 hereof.

2.       Appointment of the Escrow Agent.

a)      The City and Newton Ridge hereby designate and appoint Lenders Title
Company as the Escrow Agent for the purposes set forth herein, and the Escrow Agent hereby
accepts such appointment on the terms herein provided.  The Escrow Agent shall constitute the

agent of the parties hereto solely to the extent required to execute its duties hereunder.

3.       Deposit of Escrow Amount; Commencement of Duties.  On the Closing Date, the
City shall deliver, or cause to be delivered, the Escrow Amount to the Escrow Agent by wire
transfer of immediately available funds to the following account designated by the Escrow Agent
in accordance with the wire instructions attached hereto as Attachment A:

Account Name:       Account Number:

City of Maumelle/Newton Ridge, LLC Escrow account number tbd]

Upon receipt of the Escrow Amount by the Escrow Agent, the duties and obligations of the
parties to this Agreement shall commence.

4.       Maintenance of Escrow.  During the term of this Agreement, the Escrow Agent
shall hold and safeguard the Escrow Fund in accordance with this Agreement and shall disburse
the Escrow Fund, or any portion thereof, only in accordance with this Agreement.  The Escrow

Fund shall not be subject to any lien, attachment, trustee process or any other judicial process of
any creditor of any party, and shall be held and distributed solely for the purposes and in
accordance with this Agreement.

5.       Investment of Escrow Fund; Tax and Other Reporting.

a)      Permitted Investments.   The Escrow Fund, or any portion thereof then
being held by the Escrow Agent, shall be deposited by the Escrow Agent in an interest bearing
account with Iberiabank insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (" FDIC"),

provided, however, that Escrow Agent shall have no liability whatsoever for any loss of the
Escrow Funds deposited in the account set forth herein, including, but not limited to, failure of
the financial institution in which the funds are deposited or the adequacy of FDIC coverage, and
is hereby relieved of any and all liability under this Agreement except for its misappropriation of
the escrowed funds and in no instance shall Escrow Agent' s liability exceed the amount of the
misappropriated funds.

b)      Tax Treatment.  The parties hereto agree that, for tax purposes, amounts in
the Escrow Fund shall be treated as owned by the City unless and until released.  All interest or

other income earned from the investment of the Escrow Fund shall be reported for tax purposes

as income of the City.  The Escrow Agent shall have no obligation to distribute interest or other
income earned with respect to the Escrow Fund until such interest or other income becomes due

and payable in accordance with the terms of the account in which the funds are deposited in
accordance herewith.

Page 2



c)      Certification of Tax Identification Number.   The parties hereto agree to

provide the Escrow Agent with appropriate certified tax identification numbers on IRS
Forms W-9 ( or Forms W-8 in the case of non-U.S. persons) to the Escrow Agent within 30 days
hereof.  The parties hereto understand that, in the event their tax identification numbers are not

certified to the Escrow Agent, applicable tax law may require withholding of a portion of
payments from the Escrow Fund.

d)      Statements of Account.   The Escrow Agent shall provide the City and
Newton Ridge with monthly statements of the balance of the account( s) in which the Escrow
Fund is held showing, at a minimum, the beginning and ending balance for the applicable period,
distributions made from the Escrow Fund during the applicable period and all earnings and other
income accrued on Escrow Fund during the applicable period.

6.       Issuance of Distribution Instruction.     For purposes of this Agreement,  a

Distribution Instruction"  shall mean  ( i)  any written notice given to the Escrow Agent
directing the disbursement of the Escrow Fund, which shall be signed both by the City and
Newton Ridge or ( ii) a final, non-appealable determination by a court of competent jurisdiction
in respect of the disposition of the Escrow Fund.  Upon receipt of a Distribution Instruction in

accordance with this Section 6, the Escrow Agent shall disburse to the City such portion of the
Escrow Fund as shall equal the Escrow Fund set forth in the Distribution Instruction.

7. Distribution of Escrow Fund.

a)      Any distributions of all or any portion of the Escrow Fund made to the
City shall be made by wire transfer of immediately available funds to the City pursuant to the
wire instructions listed on Attachment B  ( or such other instructions or address as may be
provided in writing to the Escrow Agent by the City).  Any distributions of all or a portion of the
Escrow Fund made to Newton Ridge shall be made by wire transfer of immediately available
funds to Newton Ridge pursuant to the wire instructions listed on Attachment C ( or such other

instructions or address as may be provided in writing to the Escrow Agent by Newton Ridge).

b)      The Escrow Agent is authorized to, and may, disburse to itself from the
Escrow Fund, from time to time, the amount of any compensation and reimbursement of out-of-
pocket expenses due and payable hereunder by Newton Ridge ( including but not limited to any
amount to which Escrow Agent is entitled to seek indemnification pursuant to Section 10 hereof

from Newton Ridge and any fees arising under Section 11 hereof).  The Escrow Agent shall

notify the City and Newton Ridge in writing of any disbursement from the Escrow Fund to itself
in respect of any compensation or reimbursement hereunder and shall furnish to the City and
Newton Ridge copies of all related invoices and other statements.

8.       Reliance by the Escrow Agent; Liability of Escrow Agent.

a)      The Escrow Agent may rely upon any written notice, request, waiver,
consent, certificate, receipt, authorization or other paper or document that the Escrow Agent

reasonably believes to be genuine and what it purports to be.  The duties of the Escrow Agent

hereunder will be limited to the observance of the express provisions of this Agreement.  The

Escrow Agent will not be subject to, or be obliged or entitled to recognize, any other agreement

Page 3



between the parties hereto or directions or instructions not specifically set forth (or as provided
for) herein.  The Escrow Agent will not make any distribution of any portion of the Escrow Fund
that is not expressly authorized pursuant to this Agreement. The Escrow Agent undertakes to use
the same degree of care and skill in performing its services hereunder as an ordinary prudent
person would do or use under the circumstances in the conduct of his or her own affairs.  The

Escrow Agent will not be liable to any party hereto for any action taken or not taken by it under
the terms hereof in the absence of a breach of its obligations hereunder or gross negligence or

willful misconduct on its part.

b)      The Escrow Agent shall have no liability under and no duty to inquire as
to the provisions of any agreement other than this Escrow Agreement.  The Escrow Agent shall

not be liable for any action taken or omitted by it in good faith except to the extent that a court of
competent jurisdiction determines that the Escrow Agent' s gross negligence or willful

misconduct was the primary cause of any loss to the City or Newton Ridge. The Escrow Agent' s
sole responsibility with respect to the Escrow Fund shall be for the safekeeping and disbursement
of the Escrow Fund in accordance with the terms of this Escrow Agreement.  The Escrow Agent

shall have no implied duties or obligations and shall not be charged with knowledge or notice of

any fact or circumstance not specifically set forth herein or in a Distribution Instruction.  The

Escrow Agent shall not be obligated to take any legal action or commence any proceeding in
connection with the Escrow Fund, any accounts in which the Escrow Fund are deposited, or this
Escrow Agreement, or to appear in, prosecute or defend any such legal action or proceeding.
The Escrow Agent shall not be responsible or liable in any manner for the performance by any
other party of such other party' s obligations under the Deposit Agreement, nor shall the Escrow
Agent be responsible or liable in any manner for the failure of any other parry to honor any of the
provisions of this Escrow Agreement.  The Escrow Agent may consult legal counsel reasonably
selected by it in the event of any dispute or question as to the construction of any of the
provisions hereof or of any other agreement or of its duties hereunder, or relating to any dispute
involving any party hereto, and shall incur no liability whatsoever in acting in good faith in
accordance with the opinion or instruction of such counsel.  The City and Newton Ridge shall
promptly pay the reasonable fees and of any such counsel upon presentation of evidence thereof
reasonably satisfactory to the City and Newton Ridge in the form of customary invoices, with the
responsibility for such payments to be borne 50% by the City and 50% by Newton Ridge.

9.       Hold Harmless The City, on the one hand, and Newton Ridge ( on behalf of
Newton Ridges), on the other hand, hereby agree that each shall jointly, to the fullest extent
permitted by law hold the Escrow Agent and each director, officer, employee, and agent of the
Escrow Agent ( the " Escrow Held-Harmless Parties") harmless from and against any and all
actions, claims ( whether or not valid), losses, costs, liabilities, damages or expenses of any kind
or nature whatsoever  ( including,  but not limited to,  reasonable attorneys'  fees,  costs and

expenses) incurred by or asserted against the Escrow Held-Harmless Parties from and after the
date hereof, whether direct, indirect or consequential, as a result of or arising from any claim,
demand, suit, action or proceeding ( including any inquiry or investigation) by any person, arising
from or in connection with the negotiation, preparation, execution, performance or failure of

performance of this Agreement or any transactions contemplated herein, whether or not any of
the Escrow Held-Harmless Parties is a party to any such claim,  demand,  suit,  action or

proceeding ( including any inquiry or investigation); arising out of or in connection with its
carrying out of its duties hereunder; provided however, that such Escrow Held-Harmless Party

Page 4



shall not have the right to be indemnified hereunder for any liability finally determined by a
court of competent jurisdiction, subject to no further appeal, to have resulted from a breach of

such Escrow Held-Harmless Party' s obligations hereunder or its gross negligence or willful
misconduct. The obligations of Newton Ridge and the City under this Section 10 shall survive
any termination of this Escrow Agreement and the resignation or removal of Escrow Agent.

10.      Fees and Expenses of the Escrow Agent.   The City shall pay the fees and
expenses of the Escrow Agent for its services hereunder in accordance with the Fee Schedule
attached hereto as Attachment D.  The City, on the one hand, and Newton Ridge, on the other
hand, hereby agree that each shall pay 50% of any reasonable fees and expenses of counsel to the
Escrow Agent and other reasonable, actual and documented out-of-pocket expenses reasonably
incurred by the Escrow Agent in the performance of its duties hereunder that may arise as a
result of any dispute among the parties hereto with respect to the Escrow Fund, except in the case
of the Escrow Agent' s breach of its obligations hereunder or gross negligence or willful
misconduct.

11.      Resignation of the Escrow Age_nt.  The Escrow Agent may resign from its duties
hereunder by giving each of the parties hereto not less than thirty (30) days prior written notice
of the effective date of such resignation.  The City and Newton Ridge shall appoint a substitute
Escrow Agent prior to the effective date of the resignation.  The substitute Escrow Agent shall

fulfill the duties of the Escrow Agent hereunder for the remaining term of this Agreement and
such substitute Escrow Agent shall be a recognized bank or trust company.  Notwithstanding the
generality of the foregoing, the Escrow Agent shall continue to fulfill all of its obligations
hereunder until the earlier of the appointment of the substitute Escrow Agent or the effective date
of the resignation.  Upon the effective date of such successor' s appointment, the Escrow Agent

will take all appropriate action to transfer all funds and other property, including notices or other
written communications, to such successor, who shall thereafter be the " Escrow Agent" under

this Agreement.

12.      Notices. Any notices, demands and communications to a party hereunder shall be
in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given and received ( a) if delivered personally,
as of the date received, ( b) if delivered by certified mail, return receipt requested, three ( 3)

business days after being mailed, ( c) if delivered by a nationally recognized overnight delivery
service, one ( 1) business days after being entrusted to such delivery service, or ( d) if sent via
facsimile, electronic mail or similar electronic transmission, as of the date received, to such party
at its address set forth below ( or such other address as it may from time to time designate in
writing to the other parties hereto):

If to the City, addressed to:

Michael Watson, Mayor

City of Maumelle
550 Edgewood Drive, Suite 590

Maumelle, AR 72113

501) 851- 2500 office

501) 803- 4673 fax

Email: mikegmaumelle.org

Page 5



With copies (which shall not constitute notice) to:

Caleb Norris

City Attorney
550 Edgewood Drive, Suite 590

Maumelle, AR 72113

Office: (501) 851- 2500

Cell: (501) 515- 8745

Fax: ( 501) 851- 6738

Email: calebnorris@maumelle. org

If to the Escrow Agent to:

Lenders Title Company
One Allied Drive, Suite 1710

Little Rock, AR 72202

Attention: Vandy Belasco
Tel: 501- 537-4180

Email: vbelasco& lenderstitle.com

With copies (which shall not constitute notice) to:

Lenders Title Company
One Allied Drive, Suite 1710

Little Rock, AR 72202

Attention: Wesley Lasseigne
Tel: 501- 537- 4168

Email: wlasseigne@lenderstitle.com

If to Newton Ridge to:

James I. Freeman

3711 Water Oak Drive

Texarkana, Arkansas 71854

With a copy( which shall not constitute notice) to:

G. Robert Hardin

Hardin& Grace, P. A.

500 Main Street, Suite A

North Little Rock, Arkansas 72114

Phone: 501- 378- 7900

Fax: 501- 376- 6337

Email: bhardin@hardingrace.com

Page 6



13.      Assignment.    Neither this Agreement nor any of the rights or obligations
hereunder may be assigned by any party without the prior written consent of the other parties.
Subject to the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns, and no other person, other

than Newton Ridge, shall have any right, benefit or obligation under this Agreement as a third
party beneficiary or otherwise.

14.      Amendment and Termination; Waiver.  This Agreement may be amended by and
upon written notice to the Escrow Agent given by both the City and Newton Ridge, but the
duties and responsibilities of the Escrow Agent may not be modified in any way whatsoever
without its written consent.   This Agreement will terminate on the date on which the entire

Escrow Fund has been distributed, except such provisions which by their terms are intended to
survive any such distribution.  No waiver by any party with respect to any condition, default or
breach of covenant hereunder shall be deemed to extend to any prior or subsequent condition,
default or breach of covenant hereunder or affect in any way any rights arising prior or
subsequent to such occurrence.

15.      Multiple Counterparts.    This Agreement may be executed in one or more
counterparts, each ofwhich shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute

one and the same instrument.

16.      Invalidi  .  In the event that any one or more of the provisions contained in this
Agreement, shall, for any reason, be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect,
then to the maximum extent permitted by law, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall
not affect any other provision of this Agreement.

17.      Titles.  The titles, captions or headings of the sections herein are for convenience

of reference only and are not intended to be a part of or to affect the meaning or interpretation of
this Agreement.

18.      Cumulative Remedies. All rights and remedies of any party hereto are cumulative
of each other and of every other right or remedy such party may otherwise have at law or in
equity, and the exercise of one or more rights or remedies shall not prejudice or impair the
concurrent or subsequent exercise of other rights or remedies.

19.      Choice of Law; Forum; WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL.  This Agreement shall be

governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Arkansas, without regard
to conflicts of laws principles.  Any proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall
be brought in the courts located in the State of Arkansas.  This provision may be filed with any
court as written evidence of the knowing and voluntary irrevocable agreement between the
parties to waive any objections to jurisdiction, to venue or to convenience of forum.  EACH

PARTY HERETO ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT ANY CONTROVERSY THAT

MAY ARISE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT IS LIKELY TO INVOLVE COMPLICATED

AND DIFFICULT ISSUES,  AND THEREFORE IT HEREBY IRREVOCABLY AND

UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN
RESPECT OF ANY LITIGATION DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY ARISING OUT OF OR

Page 7



RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT AND ANY OF THE DOCUMENTS DELIVERED IN

CONNECTION HEREWITH OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY OR
THEREBY.

20.      Actions by Newton Ridge.  The Escrow Agent and the City may rely upon any
decision, act, consent or instruction of Newton Ridge as being the decision, act, consent or
instruction of Newton Ridge.  The Escrow Agent and the City are relieved from any liability to
any Person for any acts done by them in accordance with any decision, act, consent or instruction
given by Newton Ridge.

21.      Specific Performance.   In addition to any and all other remedies that may be
available at law in the event of any breach of this Agreement, the City, Newton Ridge and the
Escrow Agent shall be entitled to specific performance of the agreements and obligations of the

parties hereunder and to such other injunctive or other equitable relief as may be granted by a
court of competent jurisdiction.

22.      Conflict.  The parties agree and acknowledge that, as between the parties, to the

extent any terms and provisions of this Agreement are in any way inconsistent with or conflict
with any term, condition or provision of the Deposit Agreement ( as between parties other than
the Escrow Agent), the Deposit Agreement shall govern and control.   Unless and until the

Escrow Agent shall be notified in writing that an inconsistency or a conflict exists between this
Agreement and the Deposit Agreement, it shall be entitled to assume that no such inconsistency
or conflict exists.

23.      Patriot Act.  To help the government fight the funding of terrorism and money
laundering activities, federal law requires all financial institutions to obtain, verify, and record
information that identifies each person who opens an account.  For a non-individual person such

as a business entity, a charity, a trust, or other legal entity, the Escrow Agent may ask for
documentation to verify its formation and existence as a legal entity.  The Escrow Agent may
also ask to see financial statements, licenses, identification and authorization documents from

individuals claiming authority to represent the entity or other relevant documentation.

Signature Page Follows]

Page 8



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Escrow Agreement as of
the date first written above.

City of Maumelle, Arkansas

By
Name:

Title:

Newton Ridge, LLC

By
Name:

Title:

LENDERS TITLE COMPANY,
as ESCROW AGENT

By
Name:

Title:



ATTACHMENT A

Escrow Agent Wire Instructions



ATTACHMENT B

City' s Wire Instructions



ATTACHMENT C

Newton Ridge' s Wire Instructions

Regions Bank

Little Rock, Arkansas

Routing Number: 082000109
Account Number: 8009746986



ATTACHMENT D

Fees and Expenses of Escrow Agent

Escrow Agent Fees

Acceptance Fee: 500.00

One Time Escrow Fee: 1, 500.00

Out-of-Pocket Expenses:      0

Other Fees/Attorney, etc.:
TOTAL due at execution of this Agreement 2, 000.00

The Acceptance Fee and the One Time Escrow Fee are payable upon execution of

this Agreement.  In the event the escrow is not funded, the Acceptance Fee and all related

expenses, including attorneys' fees, remain due and payable, and if paid, will not be
refunded.

The fees quoted in this Attachment D apply to services ordinarily rendered in the
administration of an escrow account and are subject to reasonable adjustment based on

final review of documents, or when the Escrow Agent is called upon to undertake

unusual duties or responsibilities, or as changes in law, procedures, or the cost of doing
business demand.   Services in addition to and not contemplated in this Agreement,

including, but not limited to, document amendments and revisions, non-standard cash
and/or investment transactions, calculations, notices and reports, and legal fees, will be

billed as extraordinary expenses.

Unless otherwise indicated, the above fees relate to the establishment of one

escrow account.   Additional sub-accounts governed by this Agreement may incur an
additional charge.  Transaction costs include charges for wire transfers, checks, internal
transfers and securities transactions.



Exhibit B

Definition of Qualified Utilities

The term, Qualified Utilities shall mean water and sewer utilities to the locations set forth
on the Development Maps affixed hereto.   The Qualified Utilities will be sized so as to

adequately service industrial and/ or commercial customers in all of the property of Grantor,
Interchange, LLC and Newton Ridge, LLC adjacent to the property conveyed by the Contract.
Grantor shall have the right to tie-on to all the Qualified Utilities for the use and benefit of all the

lands of Grantor, Interchange, LLC and Newton Ridge, LLC adjacent to the property convey by
the Contract without the requirement to pay any additional tie-on fees or charges whatsoever,
provided that the utilities are entitled to charge their usual and customary connection fees and
related charges to the ultimate end users who connects to the water and sewer which are charged

to users, as opposed to developers, ofutility services serviced by such utilities.



Bob Hardin

From:    Mike Watson < mike@maumelle.org>
Sent:     Tuesday, November 24, 2015 3: 20 PM
To:       Bob Hardin

Subject: Maps

Attachments:  NLRWW Sewer Interceptor Map.pdf, CAW Transmission Line Map.pdf

Mr. Hardin,

The gentleman who prepared the map for North Little Rock Wastewater is out of the office this week
so I made a partial copy of the map on our copier and it is attached. I will forward the complete map
when I get it next week. I have also attached a pdf of the maps showing the proposed CAW
Transmission Line route.

If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact me.

Sincerely,

Michael Watson

Mayor

City of Maumelle
550 Edgewood Drive, Suite 590

Maumelle, AR 72113

501) 851- 2500 office

501) 803-4673 fax

1



4

4

F n

h

4 c

PA

a?"

r

2"TH

1

WJE wJ

AiSfsetna



WHAVVKINSAWIR

CAW TO MAUMELCE
TRANSMISSION MAIN ROUTE STUDY

WEST PANEL

s 2015090 NOVEMBER 2095

Y

3

p9
94

y

yg9
S



1I3.4,K(' 5 ' Vitt

CAW TO MAUMELLE
TRANSMISSION MAIN ROUTE STUDY

EA9T.PANEL

20'19090'    NOVEMBER 2015

3

m.R

g3
S

ffi

1'R

q



Exhibit C

Description of Roadway

Drawings attached



1 I 2 1 3 1 4 1 5 1 6 1 7 1 B 1 9 1 10 1 11 1 12 1 13 1 14 1 15 1

1
O STA if

K j j I I
30 0 15 30

K

SCALE: 1'= 30'

SEE SHEET C- 108 11
1

STA. 165+ 01. 92 TO 166+ 99.77

DUMPED RIPRAP W/ FILTER FABRIC r
WIDTH 6'    

NIB' 40 20' E
LENGTH 197. 8'     15.30' j a

J
1 DEPTH= 1. 5'      p 1

2 RIPRAP 66. 0 C.Y.

i'       
FILTER FABRIC= 197. 9 SY

i  !!
o

END CONSTRUCTION
COUNT$ MASSIE ROAD

rc

STA. 169+ 5D.00

1      

s

i

r

END COUNTS MASSIE ROAD
ALIGNMENT STA. 170+ 50.00

E

COUNTS MASSIEROAD185171
CURVE 4

N
1 E: 1206326. 71 4RG I 8:

167+ 81. 38 COUNTS MASSIE ROAD o KR: 930.00 STA. 168+ 98.34 oil^       
D

x c  . 5  $,DOC: 6' 09' 39 SHORT MARCHE ROAD 3 y+

e: 344G8' 45' 
STA. 10+ 00.00=  rn iX

T: 285.63
COUNTS MASSIE TURNOUT CL BEGIN COUNTS MASSIE TURNOUT CL

STA. 10. 00.00 ALIGNMENT STA. 8+ 80.00
N: 185218. 67 I   +   N: 185100. 75

E: 7206100.62 E: 1206158.40

F 315

i......._..................................................._.._...:..................................;..................................i.._..............................a..................................................._........_..._;..................................:...................................       
F

A..................................:..................................!.........
a..................................!................................._!.........      y..................._.............:.................................. o..................................!...................................!.........................._.......

ENO CONSTRUCTION 0 MAX SUPERELEVAlION 0.04 FT iT "' e..................................
a.._....._............._........ i....._.._.......................:...................................:.   b..._..,_..._.     310a.............................._..,._..._.._....................._:. I
e.................................. a........--.....................:........_.........................:._................................ i

1__"____......._.
e.

a..._............................. s._....._._._..................

f.....

s..................................:....................................    y.._.................... b,,.d........................_........................................._._.................."`_.-",..    1"    
e.................................. a.................................. W

a..........................._.....:.................................._._......._.....................:.   305
us N

e................................ ........._.........................._..........._..............:..................................,...................................<_................................<.........._............_........  00¢
a...............................  ................................................................._.........................................

Joo  !..................................:..................................:..................................:...................................:.    
a ........................... e..................................,..................................  o Z to

E I---"'--____ a___—'      _----'?________:____      _      Soo W Z
n

295  :__._..____...__.,._ i___._..__,..__..___{................._.__.__.__,..__...__,..._._..;...._.__.__...,..`!_-.......-._.___...._.,L_.._  ,._.....,.-!....__..__....,,,._...... 5 __w,-.,  z,...................._—_,..__.,__.,,.,....::;;;._: T.__ __ W; :..._:_`;;::_':: L::":::::::
e................................_«............._..................:.

m................................................................... Z p Q
e.....................................................................,..........................................................................................................................................................      o w

e r    ......................................._..........,--------..._..................!..................................  
390 0 o f

e...._..,___,.....___....................__.._-__._.........-__....,
BTA: 169+) 8.)]._....._   ,,,,,,. r-._.,___—._.

EM 28aB9 ....:....................._......................................_.-..._ F::::::::..::....-   ::...........:::. __;_...,................._.__., 1pp Q' J
e..................._.............    f0

e........................................._...........................;.....................................  57 LF 24 RCP RT..............     OiTcw RT.    
I w Wv-      ....;...............

2a5 0 2. 116 zas
a..................................:............._...................!..     ..............,  .............   A: 189+) 8.90.....:.........................._......b.....................................................................!................................._ i.......  W Q

t........._....................: D

zeD vo
ipaiiz

Qo,
Eq

e....._.__.....    21Di.
a........      av 0.

p....................................................................;......................................._............................  
275 Z C'    Z

a_..    ............<...........    ...  .........._...............  .............................  BTA: 16Bf50.00.:..._   .:::....:::.::::::::    i  _____......_._  0
F-'"...........................

z:1° B oZ§....'EEEw zT9. 1)
3"

Z4 FES   fE......   
V MICR PT.  a

C u:'"'  " CC- IA1STA: 18)+ 00.  ; BTAi... 1674s0'..  e..................................:... BTA: 1fi8tS0.   TA: 189t5p.OD................. a....... 
L3

4: 1814.:  

no

ELEv:    ELEv: 2)). 82 ................. e........................_........ b............,  C

las v- M7cN LT_«.  v- OrtcR r-     
v- DITCH LT.._:......__._................. v- MTCN LT. r--_...__._...__._.......___._!'____........,.___..___.._...._.

2.
a......._......................._ a....._........................... u................................_;..................................:............_....._................................................ b..........._._.................:................................_!................................._:........................................................................._...

a................................!......................_.............    t,_._....._..._._......_.;...__••___.....___..._!--__._..,....,.__.

260 i..................................:................................._I i..................._..._._...._:...................................

280
i_._.__.___.,..._..,,,,..:.........._.___.__._._..

e..-._.._._.......__.._...______. _._.....__.._..._...__._:...__—____........_......._....-__....

e............_...._....._.........................................!...................................;.
a.................................. i...._............................L.................................;......................................................................C.-............................. a.................................. e.................................. DEBIDNEO BY MEW

25s  !....__.____..__._.,.., d........._._.......____.   I I. j.._........._...................e..................................:..................................

B N n n      ........................................ Na............_........._......._........................... 
d.__..._._.......,.._--i--_..._._..

u e 4
of

n a n..„ ........._......... .

o ....................    ...................   ............._........_   ..._.._._.._........   .............._.._.._   ........................._ _......................_.

6 CHECKED BY DL

S

n n W n b       $ b m m a       m  APPROVED BY BOL

166+ 00      + 50 167+ 00      + 50 168+ 00      + 5D 169+ 00      + so 170+ 00      + 50 171+ 00      + so 172+ 00 t5D 173+ 00
DATE T......

SCALE 1'• 30'

REGISTER PROJECT NUMBER

A
PREN I AL

307304

A SREET1 REV
ONO. LAV1P     C-106

11 or 114
1 1 1 2 1 3 1 4 1 5 1 6 I 7 1 B I 9 1 10 1 11 1 12 1 13 1 14 1 15



1 1 1 2 I 3 1 4 1 5 1 6 1 7 1 B 1 9 1 10 1 11 1 12 1 13 I 14 1 15 1

INSTALL 72 L. F. 24 0 RCPCOUNTS 16551E ROAD STA. 168+ 49 TO 168+ 63

STA. MARCHE
CLASS III)       

WIDTH RIPRAP W/ FlUER FABRICSHORT 1ARCHE ROAD STA 10+ 55( SHORT MARCHE RD.)       
WIDTH- 6'

K STA. 10+ 00, 00-       W/ 2- FES® 1. 89%       
LENGTH- 14'       30 0 15 30 K

COUNTS MASSIF F. L. IN- 277. 34
DEPTH- 1. 5'TURNOUT CL F. L. OUT- 2275.98
RIPRAP= 4. 7 CU SCALE:STA. 10.00.00 1 FILTER FABRIC- 9.3SYI d'N. 785218. 67 1 x

E: 1206180. 62
1

PI- 1] f STA, 10+ 55 TO 10+ 75
1

I
1 DUMPED RIPRAP W/ FILTER FABRIC

I
1 1 WIDTH= 6' I 7

END CONSTRUCTION

J

1
j LENGTH- 20'  SHORT NARCNL ROAD SHORT MARCHE ROAD

j 1 DEPTH- 1. 5
CURVE 1 STA. 14+ 23.56

PI: 12+ 50.73`
3 1 RIPRAP 6. 7 CU T1E,? O EXISTING SHORT MA CHE RD.

FILTER FABRIC- 13. 3 Sy R: 3502D9C: 16' 2
L•148.6

1
1 40' 20' E
1 I 1

94BEGIN COUNTS MASSIF TURNOUT CL
1

175.30'

1kir REMOVE @ DISPOSE 4110 SHORT MARCHE ROA75
ALIGNMENT STA. 8+ 80.00 1 310 LF EXISTING FENCE ALIGNMENT STA. 14+ 50.00

N: 185100. 75

I L

N: 185660. 97
I

E: 1206158. 40 OH10.      M1  

N

E: 1206179. 4$--^''  ' 4TY g
9p•  .

E a
T

Q
120.0

1 iP,\`      
I 7

00t

47. 4 LIN. FT.
0     

u•. iI+GO

k V

ipAHTD TYPE" A' CURB It

60 L. F. EXISTING FENCE
J 1B u s

f'

k'
1 1

L
1

1

TO BE REMOVED j1
1 1

jx.......  .._... ......    I1     _     SHO T- MA1iCH
S I2 zg
D     ,*' 1$ RSEC711 N RT.

STA. 169+ 35 TO 169+ 45 STA. 10+ 55 TO 10+ 75 Y 1

DUMPED RIPRAP W/ FILTER FABRIC DUMPED RIPRAP W/ FILTER FABRIC I B I

F
WIDTH- B'       WIDTH- 6'      I     )   1

LENGTH= 10'     LENGTH- 20'      TE; Sk1DRT- MARCHE' URIVE RT.    F

DEPTH- 1. 5'      DEPTH- 1. 5'    

I
TO EXISTING GRADE

h$ RIPRAP- 3. 3 CU RIPRAP= 6. 7 CU

29. 20'   
FILTER FABRIC= 6.7 SY FILTER FABRIC 13. 3 SY

LOW PTSTA: 9+ 74 DI I ( I
REGI6TE Q

Low PT ELEv
Z

283. 92 PROF AL 1•'
pN STA: 9+ 7a.03 EN tl2 0 N

VI ELE1282. 77

K: 7. 3D
W Z Q

90198. 188/ 0? 0 S Z N
E m No. LAV+

a E K HQ
r n TA: 14400.00 Q W YY

r 295 80.33'     100. 00'      V ITCH

iTB

395 M
w

m.............  

NNIGW" PT' ST:... 10+ 47:BBn m.t..._.._.._.........................................................t.._.........     m.........   ..  ....  W
p... w :................ P..........._.........._m....................................-....................................tSTA: 12+ 89.  .....<.......... ......._._._.-..:...........» m......_ L05T, i' T. STA:_ 10+ 22: 1.8.::::: Nmi .. TA: 11+' 2s:Su::::::::::::::::::::::
a.... ... HIGH..R.T.. E4E.V:..' 1b4,32..

y ri.i..............._..................°...................................<.ELEV: 2) 7.49.......;........... tX......_..........:_.......... d ..........LOY..F.I.EI.EV_ 22.2. 4,M....._' n.. EIEv: 275.66...   
a Ni 290  '.. h .......PVt" STA'° 19w51: 1K.....:....

m: 1...-..:.:.:.........:............ p....::.::..:::.....:.:.......:: T v- dTCN LT:..... e............................... 1............  ..........._' PW" STAT19' V' M:SBT......... :.. V- DITCH LT.  290 t•       
J

N
o...........35.1n.. ELE$d: ied.R6......__.....°. 1 WSTA: i4+ 25.06................._.

ze5 t................................................. 1 ......................... a............ m.................. FT.VI.. ELCV:.. 22. B$............. e......       ......................
295 p..........................

S7A: 12+ 50.00;.._..:.:....
e.......

0
K- 18:'34....................      ...............    r....................:  v: 2) 562...

t.   s......................... e..............._..................<.     ...... FLEW Z] B. J............_..     K:: 118;T9:::::::::::o::::::::::
r....... W p Ni..............    1......................... F V- dial RT:................ e................................,......_

N...................
e..................__............. i..........IQ::.............. e......................_...........

1 285 J

2Eito
w t....   e....................      1: 42F..._..

290      .........     290 YLEI

OTCH78T7
a

tr- _ V- 91TfNiCL'  O
x................................................:...............................     

LL

u.so7:....................:. I.. 1 ..     280 O
9:  ............... ............................     ...... ....... ...:::.............:::.....    TBH.. 4 .............:::  ..... 9 a

I2.V- I11TLN RT.     N

9Et      -......... T..........._..:.:W...'......,........   

y
F-.-'.. ... ...      

275   .. STAI... tO+00.W      ... .--     O F7.....................  ..     ...   ... u..........    

kTE.V.:...2B3::62...........   Ar O U
E.................._.........      six, D+ s:. os..............................._,......    a.ssz

7 Zzs

280  ;._..-.......      280 LEV: 2) J.N..................................;........t:BOR............... I..................................:................................................ V- dTa1..R1......._.........- D: 909i....................  Y..    U
A....C I.......     V- DITCH RT. .................................. I.......... V_  . T....;...........................    STA: 1s. DD.m....,......................vwlTUr     ..... S+ L;... 3AA:13: A C aSTA. 10+ 52.  D_IT..L7T. 1.......:.._...___.._.....1..       

Ev: z78. BB__ i PO211
A

F................._....... 24 RC::..:.......:..:::.:::::::::::::::::.':  ELEV: 275. 98_-__...-..____. 4.     ___.- a--_-._  

STAT 13+ 50.0_.._.._
I............................;      CH L, TCH

Jl- dfdl...,LT_'v_275 ELEN. 2] 7.9  - -
b_................................. a............................ V- dill Ll:   .. ..........................

LEY.    

e................................... e........................._...._-:..................- W  ...................................      RRCH. RT....    .      :::::::  :::::::::::::365  ........................................   2.44K
24' RCP:..::...:':::..._....................:................__....................,....._....._  . T _..............................:.EyEv: z] a. 9e........}........................_.._. a....._.......... 255

1................................ b................................._.............. Y...R!1.P..!.1..:..«..  
aV- o T N LT. ........°...............-..................:.......... STA: 14+ 00.vo e..................-............... e.........  

N. 2] 3.] 5............_....................
270

i......................................................................a..................................:«. 28BF.............

O TFH: R a280   ......................................................................«.................................. e................................... d..................     e.........................._....... a...................................:.   Y- OITAI. R.T.._................._......._._:.:  DESIGNED BY MEWV- dTCH' LT.........      
e................_.._............. 1..................................

260
e................................ T...................._............. T...................................

i.........................._...........................................i......_...._.....................e..._...............................
o.................................: a........................._...._..._....._._......................°...   OMWN BY LAS

8+ 80 9+ 00 B cHEGKEO BY DUN

iv-------------- ry-------'------------ o------------.- APPRWED BY SOL
255

4 d m n

COUNTS MASSIE CURB TURNOUT CL DATE 7/01I201fi

10+ 00 hso 11+ 00       • So 12+ 00       + 6D 13+ 00       + 50 14+ 00       + 50 15+ 00 E r- SD•

PROJECT NUNBER

A SHORT MARCHE ROAD 307304

A SHEET REV

C- 108

v  « 114

1 1 1 2 1 3 1 4 1 5 1 6 1 7 1 6 1 9 1 10 1 11 1 12 1 13 1 14 1 15



2 I 3 I 4 1 5 1 6 1 7 1 8 I 9 1 10 1 it 1 12 1 13 1 14 1 15 I

9

K
q.........,........................................ d..

o m..  !................._!.......       P.     K
I H 8    t...... !      j.........._i  ` o Ri

q1 1
i..

g8 g3 v

I

j

d   .................._......._ i_...........................

Rr........!.......... i......_. t......._.
L.....   

28D      !
a     ........................................_........._:........_:......... e.........:.........:.......  280

J- 

1
1

i  !     !      277.02:   
i.........'

j
I

i
i

i i

1....................
I

T  !    
i j.......... 4..I

t 2] 0
100   - 90   - 80   - 70   - 60   - 50   - 40   - 30   - 20   - 10 0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 BD 90 100

COUNTS MASSIE ROAD
169+ 50 END CONSTRUCTION FULL DEPTH SECTION

H SL- 190 COUNTS MASSIE ROAD H

STA. 169+ 50

l

t.........i.........:..........:......._!........-;..........E............................. a. 6.......   j................. P
i...._......   

D
m

ry
290:  !  !     !  !  i m

i

G a.............................:.............................:..............^ ............_
m ....    m° a

vW fig

1 q`      0
G t.n

o

SHORT MARCH ROAD--------,-_..:.--•------ ----  -  .. CURBED ----------`      --  -      -
I i i

o
I j

I TIjRNOUT...-".....     i
t I

F 280!..........i........_ E._.......' _....'.._.....'.........'..................!       i
o  ;     .     ...........:..........................................................      '......._ i.......... i.  ! I

4 e........ q.      ................... F..............
i p.........       F

fl: Q....24 RCP ACP!..  _
z7q. iz

i

i  !  i i i.......
z270 i

100   — 90   — 80   — 70   — 60   — 50   — 40   — 30   — 20   — 10 0 10 2.0 30 40 5o 6D 70 BO  ....... 910

1001
1

X 3E

rwww f

E X
COUNTS MASSIF ROAD fC W

169+ 00
z O QSL- 128 O tli

U      - w
D N W

to
q i____ I  !  :     to S

E  !      .........'.  !......... i......     ..... i...........     R i
i

II

290........_....................
q.........,.........,......... a..............................;........_;.......... f......_...........:._...._«.................;......_...._^   290 UOo '

x: 9̀ O U
C SHORT MARCH ROA TURNOU   -     

U

1

i i....   G

i

i

2ao! r i....       i..........
i................_...;...................i...._........................   i 280I

i........_!..................!............................:........_.................................._'...... jf. ......
i  !  !     ++

T{   

O r d q....._............       1.................... I..........      ofskRED er 1nRwB..t.... P!._
aRAWR W LAS

B
i

278. 0

I i i i CRECNEO BY OlW

1     !     !       I j..........:.........:.........      
APPRovEo Br aoL

i..........t...................'.._.....'.........'................_..........:........_ I........_...... j i.I

270!     I  !  !       I     ..       j....    DATE iNV2016
27

100   — 90   — 80   — 70   — 60   — 50   — 40   — 30   — 20   — 10 0 70 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100 SaALE 1"• 10'

COUNTS MASSIE ROAD PROJECT NUMBER

168+ 98
307304A SL- 129 ( Short Marche Road) 

A SNffi RfV

C- 830

Eo  - 114
I 1 1 2 1 3 I 4 1 5 1 6 1 7 1 B I 9 1 10 1 11 1 12 1 13 1 14 1 15



EXHIBIT

ESCROW AGREEMENT

This Escrow Agreement (this " Agreement") dated as of April 14, 2016, is by and among:

i)       The City of Maumelle, Arkansas( the " City");

ii)      Newton Ridge,  LLC,  an Arkansas limited liability company  ( the  " Newton

Ridge"); and

iii)     Lenders Title Company, as escrow agent( the" Escrow Agent").

RECITALS

A.       The City and Newton Ridge have entered into an Agreement to Escrow Funds and
Release, dated as of April 14, 2016 ( the " Deposit Agreement"), which provides, among other
things,  for the deposit of the Escrow Amount to Escrow Agent pursuant to this Escrow
Agreement.

B.       Pursuant to the Deposit Agreement, subject to the other terms of the Deposit

Agreement, the City has warranted to Newton Ridge that the Qualified Utilities would be
completely constructed and operational prior to April 14, 2020, and the City has agreed to pay
Newton Ridge one-half the Escrow Amount in the event that the City' s warranty is breached as
to the Qualified Utilities and the City has warranted that the Roadway ( as described in the
Deposit Agreement) would be completely constructed and operational prior to April 14, 2020,
and the City has agreed to pay Newton Ridge one- half the Escrow Amount in the event that the
City' s warranty is breached as to the Roadway.  Otherwise, the Escrow Amount shall be payable
to the City according to the terms of the Deposit Agreement.

C.       The Deposit Agreement also provides that the claim from breach against the City
shall be satisfied first from the Escrow Amount.

D.       The Escrow Agent has agreed to hold the Escrow Amount in accordance with the

terms and provisions contained herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained

herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are
hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1.       Definitions.    Except as hereinafter defined,  capitalized terms used in this

Agreement will have the meanings assigned to such terms in the Deposit Agreement.  As used

herein, the following terms shall have the following respective meanings:

Escrow Amount" means $ 123,750.

Escrow Fund" means the Escrow Amount plus the amount of any interest or
other income earned thereon held by the Escrow Agent pursuant hereto from time to time.

Page 1



Distribution Instruction" is defined in Section 6 hereof.

2.       Appointment of the Escrow Agent.

a)      The City and Newton Ridge hereby designate and appoint Lenders Title
Company as the Escrow Agent for the purposes set forth herein, and the Escrow Agent hereby
accepts such appointment on the terms herein provided.  The Escrow Agent shall constitute the

agent of the parties hereto solely to the extent required to execute its duties hereunder.

3.       Deposit of Escrow Amount; Commencement of Duties.  On the Closing Date, the
City shall deliver, or cause to be delivered, the Escrow Amount to the Escrow Agent by wire
transfer of immediately available funds to the following account designated by the Escrow Agent
in accordance with the wire instructions attached hereto as Attachment A:

Account Name:       Account Number:

City of Maumelle/Newton Ridge, LLC Escrow account number tbd]

Upon receipt of the Escrow Amount by the Escrow Agent, the duties and obligations of the
parties to this Agreement shall commence.

4.       Maintenance of Escrow.  During the term of this Agreement, the Escrow Agent
shall hold and safeguard the Escrow Fund in accordance with this Agreement and shall disburse
the Escrow Fund, or any portion thereof, only in accordance with this Agreement.  The Escrow

Fund shall not be subject to any lien, attachment, trustee process or any other judicial process of
any creditor of any party, and shall be held and distributed solely for the purposes and in
accordance with this Agreement.

5.       Investment of Escrow Fund; Tax and Other Reporting.

a)      Permitted Investments.   The Escrow Fund, or any portion thereof then
being held by the Escrow Agent, shall be deposited by the Escrow Agent in an interest bearing
account with Iberiabank insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (" FDIC"),

provided, however, that Escrow Agent shall have no liability whatsoever for any loss of the
Escrow Funds deposited in the account set forth herein, including, but not limited to, failure of
the financial institution in which the funds are deposited or the adequacy of FDIC coverage, and
is hereby relieved of any and all liability under this Agreement except for its misappropriation of
the escrowed funds and in no instance shall Escrow Agent' s liability exceed the amount of the
misappropriated funds.

b)      Tax Treatment. The parties hereto agree that, for tax purposes, amounts in

the Escrow Fund shall be treated as owned by the City unless and until released.  All interest or
other income earned from the investment of the Escrow Fund shall be reported for tax purposes
as income of the City.  The Escrow Agent shall have no obligation to distribute interest or other

income earned with respect to the Escrow Fund until such interest or other income becomes due
and payable in accordance with the terms of the account in which the funds are deposited in

accordance herewith.

Page 2



c)      Certification of Tax Identification Number.   The parties hereto agree to

provide the Escrow Agent with appropriate certified tax identification numbers on IRS

Forms W-9 ( or Forms W-8 in the case of non-U.S. persons) to the Escrow Agent within 30 days

hereof.  The parties hereto understand that, in the event their tax identification numbers are not

certified to the Escrow Agent, applicable tax law may require withholding of a portion of
payments from the Escrow Fund.

d)      Statements of Account.   The Escrow Agent shall provide the City and
Newton Ridge with monthly statements of the balance of the account( s) in which the Escrow
Fund is held showing, at a minimum, the beginning and ending balance for the applicable period,
distributions made from the Escrow Fund during the applicable period and all earnings and other
income accrued on Escrow Fund during the applicable period.

6.       Issuance of Distribution Instruction.     For purposes of this Agreement,  a

Distribution Instruction"  shall mean  ( i)  any written notice given to the Escrow Agent
directing the disbursement of the Escrow Fund, which shall be signed both by the City and
Newton Ridge or ( ii) a final, non-appealable determination by a court of competent jurisdiction
in respect of the disposition of the Escrow Fund.  Upon receipt of a Distribution Instruction in

accordance with this Section 6, the Escrow Agent shall disburse to the City such portion of the
Escrow Fund as shall equal the Escrow Fund set forth in the Distribution Instruction.

7.       Distribution of Escrow Fund.

a)      Any distributions of all or any portion of the Escrow Fund made to the
City shall be made by wire transfer of immediately available funds to the City pursuant to the
wire instructions listed on Attachment B  ( or such other instructions or address as may be
provided in writing to the Escrow Agent by the City).  Any distributions of all or a portion of the
Escrow Fund made to Newton Ridge shall be made by wire transfer of immediately available
funds to Newton Ridge pursuant to the wire instructions listed on Attachment C ( or such other

instructions or address as may be provided in writing to the Escrow Agent by Newton Ridge).

b)      The Escrow Agent is authorized to, and may, disburse to itself from the
Escrow Fund, from time to time, the amount of any compensation and reimbursement of out-of-
pocket expenses due and payable hereunder by Newton Ridge ( including but not limited to any
amount to which Escrow Agent is entitled to seek indemnification pursuant to Section 10 hereof
from Newton Ridge and any fees arising under Section 11 hereof).  The Escrow Agent shall

notify the City and Newton Ridge in writing of any disbursement from the Escrow Fund to itself
in respect of any compensation or reimbursement hereunder and shall furnish to the City and
Newton Ridge copies of all related invoices and other statements.

8.       Reliance by the Escrow Agent; Liability of Escrow Agent.

a)      The Escrow Agent may rely upon any written notice, request, waiver,
consent, certificate, receipt, authorization or other paper or document that the Escrow Agent

reasonably believes to be genuine and what it purports to be.  The duties of the Escrow Agent

hereunder will be limited to the observance of the express provisions of this Agreement.  The

Escrow Agent will not be subject to, or be obliged or entitled to recognize, any other agreement

Page 3



between the parties hereto or directions or instructions not specifically set forth (or as provided
for) herein.  The Escrow Agent will not make any distribution of any portion of the Escrow Fund
that is not expressly authorized pursuant to this Agreement. The Escrow Agent undertakes to use
the same degree of care and skill in performing its services hereunder as an ordinary prudent
person would do or use under the circumstances in the conduct of his or her own affairs.  The

Escrow Agent will not be liable to any party hereto for any action taken or not taken by it under
the terms hereof in the absence of a breach of its obligations hereunder or gross negligence or

willful misconduct on its part.

b)      The Escrow Agent shall have no liability under and no duty to inquire as
to the provisions of any agreement other than this Escrow Agreement.  The Escrow Agent shall

not be liable for any action taken or omitted by it in good faith except to the extent that a court of
competent jurisdiction determines that the Escrow Agent' s gross negligence or willful

misconduct was the primary cause of any loss to the City or Newton Ridge. The Escrow Agent' s
sole responsibility with respect to the Escrow Fund shall be for the safekeeping and disbursement
of the Escrow Fund in accordance with the terms of this Escrow Agreement.  The Escrow Agent

shall have no implied duties or obligations and shall not be charged with knowledge or notice of

any fact or circumstance not specifically set forth herein or in a Distribution Instruction.  The

Escrow Agent shall not be obligated to take any legal action or commence any proceeding in
connection with the Escrow Fund, any accounts in which the Escrow Fund are deposited, or this
Escrow Agreement, or to appear in, prosecute or defend any such legal action or proceeding.
The Escrow Agent shall not be responsible or liable in any manner for the performance by any
other party of such other party' s obligations under the Deposit Agreement, nor shall the Escrow
Agent be responsible or liable in any manner for the failure of any other party to honor any of the
provisions of this Escrow Agreement.  The Escrow Agent may consult legal counsel reasonably
selected by it in the event of any dispute or question as to the construction of any of the
provisions hereof or of any other agreement or of its duties hereunder, or relating to any dispute
involving any party hereto, and shall incur no liability whatsoever in acting in good faith in
accordance with the opinion or instruction of such counsel.  The City and Newton Ridge shall
promptly pay the reasonable fees and of any such counsel upon presentation of evidence thereof
reasonably satisfactory to the City and Newton Ridge in the form of customary invoices, with the
responsibility for such payments to be borne 50% by the City and 50% by Newton Ridge.

9.       Hold Harmless The City, on the one hand, and Newton Ridge ( on behalf of
Newton Ridges), on the other hand, hereby agree that each shall jointly, to the fullest extent
permitted by law hold the Escrow Agent and each director, officer, employee, and agent of the
Escrow Agent ( the " Escrow Held-Harmless Parties") harmless from and against any and all
actions, claims ( whether or not valid), losses, costs, liabilities, damages or expenses of any kind
or nature whatsoever ( including,  but not limited to, reasonable attorneys'  fees,  costs and

expenses) incurred by or asserted against the Escrow Held-Harmless Parties from and after the
date hereof, whether direct, indirect or consequential, as a result of or arising from any claim,
demand, suit, action or proceeding ( including any inquiry or investigation) by any person, arising
from or in connection with the negotiation, preparation, execution, performance or failure of

performance of this Agreement or any transactions contemplated herein, whether or not any of
the Escrow Held-Harmless Parties is a party to any such claim,  demand,  suit,  action or

proceeding ( including any inquiry or investigation); arising out of or in connection with its
carrying out of its duties hereunder; provided however, that such Escrow Held-Harmless Party

Page 4



shall not have the right to be indemnified hereunder for any liability finally determined by a
court of competent jurisdiction, subject to no further appeal, to have resulted from a breach of

such Escrow Held-Harmless Party' s obligations hereunder or its gross negligence or willful
misconduct. The obligations of Newton Ridge and the City under this Section 10 shall survive
any termination of this Escrow Agreement and the resignation or removal ofEscrow Agent.

10.      Fees and Expenses of the Escrow Agent.   The City shall pay the fees and
expenses of the Escrow Agent for its services hereunder in accordance with the Fee Schedule
attached hereto as Attachment D.  The City, on the one hand, and Newton Ridge, on the other
hand, hereby agree that each shall pay 50% of any reasonable fees and expenses of counsel to the
Escrow Agent and other reasonable, actual and documented out-of-pocket expenses reasonably
incurred by the Escrow Agent in the performance of its duties hereunder that may arise as a
result of any dispute among the parties hereto with respect to the Escrow Fund, except in the case
of the Escrow Agent' s breach of its obligations hereunder or gross negligence or willful

misconduct.

11.      Resignation of the Escrow Agent.  The Escrow Agent may resign from its duties
hereunder by giving each of the parties hereto not less than thirty (30) days prior written notice
of the effective date of such resignation.  The City and Newton Ridge shall appoint a substitute
Escrow Agent prior to the effective date of the resignation.  The substitute Escrow Agent shall

fulfill the duties of the Escrow Agent hereunder for the remaining term of this Agreement and
such substitute Escrow Agent shall be a recognized bank or trust company.  Notwithstanding the
generality of the foregoing, the Escrow Agent shall continue to fulfill all of its obligations
hereunder until the earlier of the appointment of the substitute Escrow Agent or the effective date
of the resignation.  Upon the effective date of such successor' s appointment, the Escrow Agent

will take all appropriate action to transfer all funds and other property, including notices or other
written communications, to such successor, who shall thereafter be the " Escrow Agent" under

this Agreement.

12.      Notices. Any notices, demands and communications to a party hereunder shall be
in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given and received ( a) if delivered personally,
as of the date received, ( b) if delivered by certified mail, return receipt requested, three ( 3)

business days after being mailed, ( c) if delivered by a nationally recognized overnight delivery
service, one ( 1) business days after being entrusted to such delivery service, or ( d) if sent via
facsimile, electronic mail or similar electronic transmission, as of the date received, to such party
at its address set forth below ( or such other address as it may from time to time designate in
writing to the other parties hereto):

If to the City, addressed to:

Michael Watson, Mayor

City of Maumelle
550 Edgewood Drive, Suite 590

Maumelle, AR 72113

501) 851- 2500 office

501) 803- 4673 fax

Email: mike@maumelle.org

Page 5



With copies (which shall not constitute notice) to:

Caleb Norris

City Attorney
550 Edgewood Drive, Suite 590

Maumelle, AR 72113

Office: (501) 851- 2500

Cell: ( 501) 515- 8745

Fax: ( 501) 851- 6738

Email: calebnorris@maumelle.org

If to the Escrow Agent to:

Lenders Title Company
One Allied Drive, Suite 1710

Little Rock, AR 72202

Attention: Vandy Belasco
Tel: 501- 537-4180

Email: vbelascoglenderstitle.com

With copies (which shall not constitute notice) to:

Lenders Title Company
One Allied Drive, Suite 1710

Little Rock, AR 72202

Attention: Wesley Lasseigne
Tel: 501- 537-4168

Email: wlasseigne@lenderstitle.com

If to Newton Ridge to:

James I. Freeman

3711 Water Oak Drive

Texarkana, Arkansas 71854

With a copy( which shall not constitute notice) to:

G. Robert Hardin
Hardin& Grace, P. A.

500 Main Street, Suite A

North Little Rock, Arkansas 72114

Phone: 501- 378- 7900

Fax: 501- 376-6337

Email: bhardin@hardinlzrace.com

Page 6



13.      Assignment.    Neither this Agreement nor any of the rights or obligations
hereunder may be assigned by any party without the prior written consent of the other parties.
Subject to the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns, and no other person, other

than Newton Ridge, shall have any right, benefit or obligation under this Agreement as a third
party beneficiary or otherwise.

14.      Amendment and Termination; Waiver.  This Agreement may be amended by and
upon written notice to the Escrow Agent given by both the City and Newton Ridge, but the
duties and responsibilities of the Escrow Agent may not be modified in any way whatsoever
without its written consent.   This Agreement will terminate on the date on which the entire

Escrow Fund has been distributed, except such provisions which by their terms are intended to
survive any such distribution.  No waiver by any party with respect to any condition, default or
breach of covenant hereunder shall be deemed to extend to any prior or subsequent condition,
default or breach of covenant hereunder or affect in any way any rights arising prior or
subsequent to such occurrence.

15.      Multiple Counterparts.    This Agreement may be executed in one or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all ofwhich together shall constitute
one and the same instrument.

16.      Invalidity.  In the event that any one or more of the provisions contained in this
Agreement, shall, for any reason, be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect,
then to the maximum extent permitted by law, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall
not affect any other provision of this Agreement.

17.      Titles.  The titles, captions or headings of the sections herein are for convenience

of reference only and are not intended to be a part of or to affect the meaning or interpretation of
this Agreement.

18.      Cumulative Remedies. All rights and remedies of any party hereto are cumulative
of each other and of every other right or remedy such party may otherwise have at law or in
equity, and the exercise of one or more rights or remedies shall not prejudice or impair the

concurrent or subsequent exercise of other rights or remedies.

19.      Choice of Law; Forum; WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL.  This Agreement shall be

governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Arkansas, without regard
to conflicts of laws principles.  Any proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall
be brought in the courts located in the State of Arkansas.  This provision may be filed with any
court as written evidence of the knowing and voluntary irrevocable agreement between the
parties to waive any objections to jurisdiction, to venue or to convenience of forum.  EACH

PARTY HERETO ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT ANY CONTROVERSY THAT
MAY ARISE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT IS LIKELY TO INVOLVE COMPLICATED
AND DIFFICULT ISSUES,  AND THEREFORE IT HEREBY IRREVOCABLY AND

UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN
RESPECT OF ANY LITIGATION DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY ARISING OUT OF OR

Page 7



RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT AND ANY OF THE DOCUMENTS DELIVERED IN
CONNECTION HEREWITH OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY OR
THEREBY.

20.      Actions by Newton Ridge.  The Escrow Agent and the City may rely upon any
decision, act, consent or instruction of Newton Ridge as being the decision, act, consent or
instruction of Newton Ridge.  The Escrow Agent and the City are relieved from any liability to
any Person for any acts done by them in accordance with any decision, act, consent or instruction
given by Newton Ridge.

21.      Specific Performance.   In addition to any and all other remedies that may be
available at law in the event of any breach of this Agreement, the City, Newton Ridge and the
Escrow Agent shall be entitled to specific performance of the agreements and obligations of the

parties hereunder and to such other injunctive or other equitable relief as may be granted by a
court of competent jurisdiction.

22.      Conflict.  The parties agree and acknowledge that, as between the parties, to the

extent any terms and provisions of this Agreement are in any way inconsistent with or conflict
with any term, condition or provision of the Deposit Agreement ( as between parties other than
the Escrow Agent), the Deposit Agreement shall govern and control.   Unless and until the

Escrow Agent shall be notified in writing that an inconsistency or a conflict exists between this
Agreement and the Deposit Agreement, it shall be entitled to assume that no such inconsistency
or conflict exists.

23.      Patriot Act.  To help the government fight the funding of terrorism and money
laundering activities, federal law requires all financial institutions to obtain, verify, and record
information that identifies each person who opens an account.  For a non-individual person such

as a business entity, a charity, a trust, or other legal entity, the Escrow Agent may ask for
documentation to verify its formation and existence as a legal entity.  The Escrow Agent may
also ask to see financial statements, licenses, identification and authorization documents from

individuals claiming authority to represent the entity or other relevant documentation.

Signature Page Follows]

Page 8



ATTACHMENT A

Escrow Agent Wire Instructions



ATTACHMENT B

City' s Wire Instructions



ATTACHMENT C

Newton Ridge' s Wire Instructions

Regions Bank

Little Rock, Arkansas

Routing Number: 082000109
Account Number: 8009746986



ATTACHMENT D

Fees and Expenses of Escrow Agent

Escrow Agent Fees

Acceptance Fee: 500.00

One Time Escrow Fee: 1, 500.00

Out-of-Pocket Expenses:     0

Other Fees/Attorney, etc.:    0

TOTAL due at execution of this Agreement 2,000.00

The Acceptance Fee and the One Time Escrow Fee are payable upon execution of

this Agreement.  In the event the escrow is not funded, the Acceptance Fee and all related

expenses, including attorneys' fees, remain due and payable, and if paid, will not be
refunded.

The fees quoted in this Attachment D apply to services ordinarily rendered in the
administration of an escrow account and are subject to reasonable adjustment based on

final review of documents, or when the Escrow Agent is called upon to undertake

unusual duties or responsibilities, or as changes in law, procedures, or the cost of doing
business demand.   Services in addition to and not contemplated in this Agreement,

including, but not limited to, document amendments and revisions, non-standard cash
and/ or investment transactions, calculations, notices and reports, and legal fees, will be

billed as extraordinary expenses.

Unless otherwise indicated, the above fees relate to the establishment of one
escrow account.   Additional sub- accounts governed by this Agreement may incur an
additional charge.  Transaction costs include charges for wire transfers, checks, internal
transfers and securities transactions.



A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAUMELLE, PULASKI

COUNTY, ARKANSAS

RESOLUTION NO. 2016- 16

A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE 2016 MAUMELLE GENERAL FUND BUDGET

WHEREAS, as stated in Resolution No. 2016- 15, the City Council desires that $ 123, 750

be placed into escrow for the purpose of acquiring rights of way and easements for the Counts
Massie Extension and to release the City from certain agreements;

WHEREAS, the City must also pay escrow fees of$ 2000; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend the budget as stated below.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

MAUMELLE, ARKANSAS, AS FOLLOWS:

Amend the General Fund Budget:

Description Account Number Current Revision +/- Revised

Budget Budget

Escrow for Counts Massie 101- 4910-432340 0. 00 125, 750 125, 750

Extension

General Fund Balance 101- 0000- 253200 5, 409,408 125, 750 5, 283, 658

Approved this 18th

day of April, 2016.

Michael Watson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Joshua Clausen, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:      SPONSOR:

Mayor Michael Watson

Caleb Norris, City Attorney



Mosley Saunders Kelley Anderson Lewis Scott Vaprersan Holt

Yes

No

Page 2 of Resolution 2016- 16



A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAUMELLE, PULASKI

COUNTY, ARKANSAS

RESOLUTION NO. 2016- 17

CHANGING THE NAME OF THE MAUMELLE DIAMOND
CENTER TO THE BURCH JOHNSON DIAMOND CENTER

WHEREAS, the Maumelle Diamond Center baseball complex is a city-owned sports
complex currently consisting of six baseball fields and two tee-ball fields;

WHEREAS, Burch Johnson served as Maumelle' s first elected mayor after Maumelle' s

change to a mayor-council form of government and was mayor when the Diamond Center

ballfields were constructed; additionally, he later served as an alderman for Maumelle' s Ward 3;

WHEREAS, Burch Johnson served as a volunteer and coach starting in 1998 and
continued to take an active role in the athletic programs for several years;

WHEREAS, Burch Johnson helped spearhead the extension of Country Club Parkway to,
among other things, provide additional access to the Diamond Center; and

WHEREAS, Burch Johnson also served as the athletic director for Academics Plus Charter

School ( APCS) and continues to volunteer his time as a bus driver for athletic and extracurricular
programs at APCS.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

MAUMELLE, ARKANSAS:

In recognition of his service and dedication to the City of Maumelle, its residents, and
community athletics, the City Council hereby changes the name of the Maumelle Diamond Center
baseball complex to the Burch Johnson Diamond Center.

RESOLVED this 18th

day April, 2016.

Michael Watson, Mayor



ATTEST:

Joshua Clausen, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:      SPONSOR:

Alderman Preston Lewis

Caleb Norris, City Attorney

Mosley Saunders Kelley Anderson Lewis Scott Vaprersan Holt

Yes

No

Page 2 of Resolution 2016- 17



CITY OF MAUMELLE

DEPARTMENT OF CODE ENFORCEMENT/ PERMITS

THREE YEAR SINGLE FAMILY PERMIT COMPARISONS

As of March 2016

2014 2015 2016

Permits Fees Permits Fees Permits Fees

January 0       $ 0 0 0 6       $ 9, 842.80

February 5      $ 8,284.40 1      $ 1, 083. 60 4       $ 4,520. 60

March 2      $ 5, 109. 60 3      $ 5, 370.80 2       $ 2, 864.80

April 8      $ 7,423. 60 5      $ 7, 149.60 1       $ 1, 092.00

May 10    $ 15,403. 60 3      $ 2, 710.80

June 6      $ 6,443.60 0 0

July 5      $ 7, 116.40 6      $ 7, 615.60

August 4      $ 6,964.80 3      $ 3, 622.40

September 3      $ 2, 664.40 4      $ 4,856.40

October 39    $ 15,964.18 4      $ 6,720.00

November 6      $ 7,956.00 2      $ 1, 852.40

December 10    $ 11, 431.20 4      $ 4,551. 90

TOTALS 98     $ 94,761.78 35    $ 45, 533. 50 13     $ 18,320.20



CITY OF MAUMELLE

DEPARTMENT OF CODE ENFORCEMENT/ PERMITS

THREE YEAR DEPOSIT COMPARISONS

2014-2015- 2016

As of March 2016

2013 2014 2015

JANUARY 6, 309. 64 36,466.32 9,694. 17

FEBRUARY 11,821.91 4,944.83 11, 809.21

MARCH 11, 342. 92 15, 289.41 7,978.82

APRIL 6,872.69 10, 927.37

MAY 9,420. 13 17,397.25

JUNE 7,409.11 20,583. 10

JULY 17, 930.77 6,812.44

AUGUST 9,288.73 15, 955. 97

SEPTEMBER 9,964.26 24,665. 94

OCTOBER 36,796. 33 15,030.56

NOVEMBER 18, 336.67 6, 190.52

DECEMBER 11, 603.06 5, 515.82

TOTALS 157,096.22 179,779. S3 29,482.20



CITY OF MAUMELLE

SINGLE FAMILY TOTAL VALUES

March 2016

Estimated Values

DATE BUILDER LOT/SUB ADDRESS LOT BUILDING TOTAL

3/ 10/2016 Start Construction L143 OST4 8 Seneca Cove 30,000 170,000    $ 300,000

3/ 24/2016 E-CO Residential Builders L142 OST 165 Oneida Way 50,000 375,000    $ 425,000



BUILDING PERMITS

MAUMELLE, ARKANSAS

March 2016

SINGLE FAMILY NEW CONSTRUCTION

Sq.Feet stimate

Date Lot& Subdivision Address Builder Heated/Cooled Value

3/ 10/ 16 L143 OST4 8 Seneca Cove Start Construction 2871      $ 300,000

3/ 24/ 16 L142 OST 165 Oneida Way E-CO Residential Builders 3100      $ 425,000



CITY OF MAUMELLE
COMMERCIAL BUILDING PERMITS

2016

SQUARE TOTAL

DATE BUILDER OWNER ADDRESS FOOTAGE VALUE

NO COMMERCIAL TO REPORT AS OF 1/ 31/ 2016

2/ 26/ 16 Ross Sparks Builders Maumelle Senior Center 2 Club Manor Cove 169060 399049257

3/ 14/ 16 Tri-South Contractors Child Care Development 104 Country Club 9017 192459000



NATIONAL HISTORIC PRESERVATION MONTH
2016

WHEREAS, historic preservation is an effective tool for managing
growth, revitalizing neighborhoods, fostering local pride and maintaining
community character while enhancing livability; and

WHEREAS, historic preservation is relevant for communities across
the nation, both urban and rural, and for Americans of all ages, all walks of
life and all ethnic backgrounds; and

WHEREAS, it is important to celebrate the role of history in our lives
and the contributions made by dedicated individuals in helping to preserve
the tangible aspects of the heritage that has shaped us as people; and

WHEREAS, 2016 Marks the
501

anniversary of passage of the
National Historic Preservation Act of 1966; and

WHEREAS, "This Place Matters!" is the theme for National

Preservation Month 2016 and " Arkansas Arts: Celebrating Our Creative
Culture" is the theme for Arkansas Heritage Month, cosponsored by
Maumelle, the Arkansas Historic Preservation Program, the Department of
Arkansas Heritage and the National Trust for Historic Preservation.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, MAYOR MIKE WATSON, do proclaim
May 2016, as National Historic Preservation Month and call upon the
people of Maumelle, Arkansas to join their fellow citizens across the United

States in recognizing and participating in this special observance.

So proclaimed the
18th

Day of April, 2016.

OF

r      !

Mayor Mike atson

t

G
4+

L RE A


